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Report of the Directors

The Directors are pleased to present their report together with the audited consolidated financial statements of Nanyang Commercial
Bank, Limited (hereinafter as the “Bank”) and its subsidiaries (together with the Bank hereinafter as the “Group”) for the year ended
31 December 2015.

Principal Activities
The Bank is a licensed bank authorised under the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance. The principal activities of the Bank are provision of
banking and related financial services. The principal activities of the Bank's subsidiaries are shown in “Appendix — Subsidiaries of the

Bank” to the Financial Statements.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated income statement on page 21.

The directors declared an interim dividend of HK$77.50 per share totaling HK$542,500,000 on 11 June 2015 which was paid on 30
June 2015.

Donations
Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year amounted to approximately HK$44,000.

Shares Issued
No shares were issued by the Bank during the year. Details of the issued shares of the Bank are set out in Note 33 to the Financial

Statements.

Directors

The Directors of the Bank during the year and up to the date of this report are:

Board of Directors

Chairman: Yue Yi* (appointment as Director and Chairman of the Board of Directors
effective from 20 March 2015)
Gao Yingxin® (resignation effective from 11 March 2015)
Vice Chairman: Fang Hongguang
Directors: Li Jiuzhong”
Sui Yang® (appointment effective from 9 June 2015)
Chan Sai Ming

Chang Hsin Kang*
Lan Hong Tsung, David*
Lau Hon Chuen*

Zhu Yanlai* (retirement effective from 23 May 2015)

# Non-executive Directors

* Independent Non-executive Directors



35 NCB #1731 % 441

Report of the Directors (continued)

Directors (continued)

Save for Mr. Yue Yi, Mr. Gao Yingxin**, Mr. Fang Hongguang and Mr. Li Jiuzhong being also directors of a subsidiary of the Bank,

other directors of the subsidiaries of the Bank during the year and up to the date of this report are:

Cheng Zeyu Cheng Po Kee Chow Tak Man Gong Huazhang
He Guangbei** Leung Ka Chun Lin Jingzhen Ng Kwok Yuen
Wang Jiangiang Xiao Wei

** Resigned during the year.

In accordance with Article 81 of the Articles of Association of the Bank, Mr. Fang Hongguang, Mr. Chang Hsin Kang and Mr. Lau Hon

Chuen retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

In accordance with Article 82 of the Articles of Association of the Bank, Ms. Sui Yang retires at the forthcoming annual general

meeting and, being eligible, offers herself for re-election.

Directors’ Interests in Equity or Debt Securities
At no time during the year was the Bank or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors of the Bank to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the

Bank or any other body corporate.

Directors’ Interests in Transactions, Arrangements or Contracts
No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance, in relation to the Group's business to which the Bank or any of its holding
companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the Bank or his/her connected entity had a

material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Management Contracts
No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Bank were

entered into or existed during the year.

Permitted Indemnity Provision
Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Bank, every Director shall be indemnified out of the assets of the Bank against any
liability incurred by him/her in relation to the Bank. The Bank has maintained insurance for the benefit of Directors against liability

which may lawfully be insured by the Bank.

Compliance with the Banking (Disclosure) Rules
The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2015 comply with the requirements set out in the Banking (Disclosure)

Rules under the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance.

Auditor
The financial statements for the year 2015 have been audited by Ernst & Young who retire and offer themselves for re-appointment at

the 2016 annual general meeting.
On behalf of the Board
YueYi

Chairman
Hong Kong, 18 March 2016
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Corporate Governance

The Group strives to achieve high standards of corporate governance and has followed CG-1 “Corporate Governance of Locally

Incorporated Authorised Institutions” of the Supervisory Policy Manual issued by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority.

Board of Directors and the Management

The Board is responsible for setting objectives and formulating long term strategies as well as managing the Group’s overall business.
It currently comprises eight Directors with a variety of different experience and professionalism. Among them, two are Executive
Directors, while the remaining six are Non-executive Directors. Of the six Non-executive Directors, three are Independent
Non-executive Directors whose indispensable function is to provide independent scrutiny. The Board meets regularly and four board
meetings were held in the year with an average attendance rate of 93.5%. The Management, led by the Chief Executive, is
responsible for formulating and implementing detailed programmes to effect the approved strategies and policies, and providing
detailed reports on the Group’s performance to the Board on a regular basis to enable the Board to discharge its responsibilities
effectively. In order to focus its attention on strategic and material issues that have significant impact on the Group’s finances and
long-term development, the Board has set up four committees to oversee the major areas of the Group. Details of the committees are

given below:

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee has been delegated with power directly from the Board to handle matters which require the Board'’s review

during the adjournment of the Board. Its responsibilities include:

- approving policies, implementing plans and management measures to effect the group-wide development strategies and

business plans approved by the Board;
- reviewing the progress on implementation of the strategies and business plans;
- recommending strategic proposals to the Board for its consideration and approval; and
- approving the Group’s policies according to the policies imposed by the supervisory authorities and the holding company.

The members of Executive Committee during the year were Mr. Fang Hongguang (Chairman) and Mr. Chan Sai Ming. Both of them

were Executive Directors of the Bank.

12
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Corporate Governance (continued)

Audit Committee

The Committee assists the Board in fulfilling its oversight role over the Group in the following areas:

- integrity of financial statements and the financial reporting process;

- internal control system;

- performance of internal audit functions and internal auditors;

- appointment of external auditor and evaluation of external auditor’s qualifications, independence and performance;

- periodic review and annual audit of the Group’s financial statements;

- compliance with applicable accounting standards and legal and regulatory requirements on financial disclosures; and
- enhancement of the corporate governance framework.

The members of Audit Committee during the year were Mr. Lau Hon Chuen (Chairman), Mr. Lan Hong Tsung David and Ms. Sui Yang.
All were Non-executive Directors of the Bank. Among them, Mr. Lau Hon Chuen and Mr. Lan Hong Tsung David were Independent

Non-executive Directors.

Risk Management Committee

The Risk Management Committee assists the Board in performing the duties in respect of the risk management of the Bank in the

following areas:
- formulation of the risk appetite and risk management strategy of the Bank and determination of the Bank’s risk profile;
- identification, assessment and management of material risks faced by the Bank;

- the review and assessment of the adequacy of the Bank’s risk management policies, system and internal control, including the

Bank’s compliance with prudential, legal and regulatory requirements governing the businesses of the Bank;
- review and approval of high-level risk-related policies of the Bank; and
- review and approval of significant or high risk exposures or transactions.

The members of the Risk Management Committee during the year were Mr. Li Jiuzhong (Chairman), Mr. Fang Hongguang, Mr.
Chang Hsin Kang, Mr. Lau Hon Chuen and Mr. Chan Sai Ming. All were Directors of the Bank. Among them, Mr. Chang Hsin Kang

and Mr. Lau Hon Chuen were Independent Non-executive Directors.

13
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Corporate Governance (continued)

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprises three members, including one Non-executive Director, Ms. Sui Yang, and
two Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Lau Hon Chuen and Mr. Lan Hong Tsung David. It was chaired by Mr. Lan
Hong Tsung David, an Independent Non-executive Director of the Board. The Independent Non-executive Directors represent 66.7%
of the Committee members. With effect from 23 May 2015, Ms. Zhu Yanlai, a Non-executive Director of the Board, resigned as the
member of Nomination and Remuneration Committee. Ms. Sui Yang was appointed as a member of Nomination and Remuneration
Committee at 9 June 2015. Prior and subsequent to such changes, the Independent Non-executive Directors represent 66.7% of the

Committee members.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee assists the Board in performing the duties in respect of the Group in, among others,

the following areas:
- human resources, remuneration strategy and incentive framework of the Group;

- selection and nomination of Directors, Board Committee members and certain senior executives as designated by the Board from

time to time (defined as “Senior Management”);

- structure, size and composition (including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,

geographical location, professional experience, skills and knowledge etc.) of the Board and Board Committees;
- remuneration of Directors, Board Committee members, Senior Management and Key Personnel;
- effectiveness of the Board and Board Committees; and

- training and continuous professional development of Directors and Senior Management.

Key tasks performed by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee during 2015 included the approval, review and proposal to the

Board on the following according to the responsibilities and authorities:

- formulation, review and amendment on major human resources and remuneration policies, including the review of the
“Remuneration and Incentive Policy” and “Deferral Variable Remuneration Policy”; as well as the review of “Senior Management”,
“Key Personnel”, “Key Employee Group” and “Risk Control Personnel” as delineated in the “Guideline on a Sound Remuneration

System” published by Hong Kong Monetary Authority;
- performance appraisal result of the Senior Management and Key Personnel for year 2014;
- proposal on staff bonus for year 2014 and salary adjustment for year 2015 of the Senior Management and Key Personnel;
- key performance indicators of the Senior Management and Key Personnel for year 2015;
- review of the Mandate, Working Rules and Standing Agenda of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee;
- review of Directors’ Independency Policy;
- election of Directors for 2015;
- Directors’ independency report for 2014;
- self-evaluation report of the Board and Board Committees for 2014;
- consideration of the matters relating to the adjustment and appointment of the Directors of the Group;

- consideration of the appointment and resignation of Key Personnel.

There were two Nomination and Remuneration Committee meetings held during 2015. The attendance rate of the three Directors was

80.0%.
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Corporate Governance (continued)

Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism

The Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism of the Group is based on the principles of “effective motivation” and “sound
remuneration management”. It links remuneration with performance and risk factors closely. It serves to encourage staff to enhance

their performance, and at the same time, to strengthen their awareness of risk so as to achieve sound remuneration management.

The Remuneration and Incentive Policy of the Group is generally in line with the broad principles set out in the HKMA's “Guideline on
a Sound Remuneration System” and applicable to Nanyang Commercial Bank Limited and all of its subsidiaries (including the

branches and subsidiaries within and outside Hong Kong).

® “Senior Management” and “Key Personnel”

The following groups of employees have been identified as the “Senior Management” and “Key Personnel” as defined in the

HKMA's “Guideline on a Sound Remuneration System”:

« “Senior Management”: The senior executives designated by the Board who are responsible for oversight of the group-wide

strategy or material business lines, including Chief Executive and Deputy General Managers.

« “Key Personnel”. The employees whose individual business activities involve the assumption of material risk which may
have significant impact on risk exposure, or whose individual responsibilities are directly and materially linked to the risk
management, or those who have direct influence to the profit, including heads of material business lines, Head of Treasury,

as well as Head of Risk Management Department.

® Determination of the Remuneration Policy

To fulfill the above-mentioned principles and to facilitate effective risk management within the framework of the Remuneration
Policy of the Group, Human Resources Division is responsible for proposing the Remuneration Policy of the Group and will
seek consultation of the risk control units including risk management, financial management and compliance if necessary, in
order to balance the needs for staff motivations, sound remuneration and prudent risk management. The proposed
Remuneration Policy will be submitted to the Nomination and Remuneration Committee for review and thereafter to the Board
of Directors for approval. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors will seek opinions from

other Board Committees (e.g. Risk Management Committee, Audit Committee, etc.) where they consider necessary.

15
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Corporate Governance (continued)

Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism (continued)
® Key Features of the Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism

1. Performance Management Mechanism

To reflect the “performance-driven” corporate culture, the Group has put in place a performance management mechanism to
formalise the performance management at the levels of the Group, units and individuals. The annual targets of the Group
will be cascaded down under the framework of balanced scorecard whereby the performance of the Senior Management
and different units (including business units, risk control units and other units) would be assessed from the perspectives of
financial, customer, building blocks/key tasks, human capital, risk management and compliance. For individual staff at
different levels, annual targets of the Group will be tied to their job requirements through the performance management
mechanism. Performance of individuals will be appraised on their achievement against targets, their contribution towards
performance of their units and fulfilment of risk management duties and compliance, etc. Not only is target accomplishment
taken into account, but the risk exposure involved during the course of work could also be evaluated and managed, ensuring

security and normal operation of the Group.

2. Risk Adjustment of Remuneration

To put the principle of aligning performance and remuneration with risk into practice, based on “The Risk Adjustment Method”
of BOCHK, the key risk modifiers of the bank have been incorporated into the performance management mechanism of the
Group. Credit risk, market risk, interest rate risk, liquidity risk, operational risk, legal risk, compliance risk and reputation risk
form the framework of “The Risk Adjustment Method”. The size of the variable remuneration pool of the Group is calculated
according to the risk adjusted performance results approved by the Board of BOCHK and is subject to its discretion. This
method ensures the Group to fix the Group’s variable remuneration pool after considering risk exposures and changes and

to maintain effective risk management through the remuneration mechanism.
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Corporate Governance (continued)

Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism (continued)

Key Features of the Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism (continued)

3. Performance-based and Risk-adjusted Remuneration Management

The remuneration of staff is composed of “fixed remuneration” and “variable remuneration”. The proportion of one to the
other for individual staff members depends on job grades, roles, responsibilities and functions of the staff with the
prerequisite that balance has to be struck between the fixed and variable portion. Generally speaking, the higher the job
grades and/or the greater the responsibilities, the higher will be the proportion of variable remuneration so as to encourage

the staff to follow the philosophy of prudent risk management and sound long-term financial stability.

Every year, the Group will conduct periodic review on the fixed remuneration of the staff with reference to various factors like
remuneration strategy, market pay trend and staff salary level, and will determine the remuneration based on the
affordability of the Group as well as the performance of the Group, units and individuals. As mentioned above, performance

assessment criteria include quantitative and qualitative factors, as well as financial and non-financial indicators.

According to the Group Bonus Funding Policy of BOCHK, the size of the variable remuneration pool of the Group is
determined by the Board of BOCHK on the basis of the financial performance of the Group and the achievement of
non-financial strategic business targets under the long-term development of the BOCHK Group. Thorough consideration is
also made to the risk factors in the determination process. The size of the pool is reached based on pre-defined formulaic
calculations but the Board of BOCHK can make discretionary adjustment to it if deemed appropriate under prevailing
circumstances. When the BOCHK group’s performance is relatively weak (e.g. failed to meet the threshold performance
level), no variable remuneration will be paid out that year in principle. However, the Board of BOCHK reserves the rights to

exercise its discretion.

As far as individual units and individual staff are concerned, allocation of the variable remuneration is closely linked to the
performance of the units, and that of each individual staff as well as the unit he/she is attaching to, and the assessment of
which should include risk modifiers. The performance and remuneration arrangement of risk control personnel are
determined by the achievement of their core job responsibilities, independent from the business they oversee; for front-line
risk controllers, a cross-departmental reporting and performance management system is applied to ensure the suitability of
performance-based remuneration. Within the acceptable risk level of the Group, the better the performance of the unit and

the individual staff, the higher will be the variable remuneration for the individual staff.

17
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Corporate Governance (continued)
Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism (continued)

® Key Features of the Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism (continued)

4. Linking the payout of the variable remuneration with the time horizon of the risk to reflect the long-term value
creation of the Group

To work out the principle of aligning remuneration with the time horizon of risk and to ensure that sufficient time is allowed to
ascertain the associated risk and its impact before the actual payout, payout of the variable remuneration of staff is required
to be deferred in cash if such amount reaches certain prescribed threshold. The Group adopts a progressive approach
towards deferral. The longer the time horizon of risk in the activities conducted by the staff, the higher the job grade or the

higher amount of the variable remuneration, the higher will be the proportion of deferral. Deferral period lasts for 3 years.

The vesting of the deferred variable remuneration is linked with the long term value creation of the Group. The vesting
conditions are closely linked to the annual performance of the BOCHK Group in the next 3 years and the individual
behaviour of the staff concerned. When the BOCHK Group’s performance has met the threshold requirement, the deferred
variable remuneration would be vested following the corresponding schedule. However, if a staff is found to have committed
fraud, or any financial or non-financial factors used in performance measurement or variable pay determination are later
proven to have been manifestly worse than originally understood in a particular year, or individual behaviour / management
style pose negative impacts to the business unit and even the Group, including but not limited to improper or inadequate risk

management, etc., the unvested portion of the deferred variable remuneration of the relevant staff would be forfeited.

® Disclosure on remuneration

The Group has fully complied with the guideline in Part 3 of the “Guideline on a Sound Remuneration System” issued by the

HKMA to disclosure information in relation to our remuneration and incentive mechanism.
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Ernst & Young

22/F, CITIC Tower
E I ﬁﬁ( 1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central, Hong Kong

Independent Auditors’ Report

To the members of Nanyang Commercial Bank, Limited

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Nanyang Commercial Bank, Limited (the “Bank”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 21 to 221, which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2015, and the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended, and significant accounting policies and other explanatory

information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Bank are responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of

consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not

assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable

assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated

financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Bank and its subsidiaries
as at 31 December 2015, and of their financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

18 March 2016
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EENES R Consolidated Income Statement
FfaE:

BHE 12 A 31 HibERE For the year ended 31 December Notes 2015 2014
BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEHA Interest income 8,746,484 10,037,240
FIESZ H Interest expense (4,026,334) (4,847,191)
FRIEBA Net interest income 6 4,720,150 5,190,049
AR %% B AU A Fee and commission income 1,446,527 1,332,965
A% g e Fee and commission expense (89,577) (78,239)
TR E RS Net fee and commission income 7 1,356,950 1,254,726
FEAZ SIS Net trading gain 8 54,159 8,858

FUE Ry A SEE et AR 2 Net loss on financial instruments designated at
SR T Hif51E fair value through profit or loss (6,382) (7,958)
HAthGRE E 2 F s Net gain on other financial assets 9 336,421 122,530
HARLLZUT A Other operating income 10 42,408 70,808

REUREEERT R EBUA Net operating income before impairment

allowances 6,503,706 6,639,013
TAE TR Net charge of impairment allowances 11 (633,324) (904,294)
JREBUTA Net operating income 5,870,382 5,734,719
et Operating expenses 12 (2,632,162) (2,497,589)
KBRSH Operating profit 3,238,220 3,237,130

SEYIEHE N ERRRE Net gain from disposal of/fair value adjustments
RS on investment properties 13 121,046 129,896

HEEEYIE - SRR Net gain/(loss) from disposal/revaluation of

FEs S (E5E) properties, plant and equipment 14 19,246 (347)
ErFERTEAl Profit before taxation 3,378,512 3,366,679
FTE Taxation 15 (481,735) (615,180)
AEEERSH] Profit for the year 2,896,777 2,751,499
e Dividends 16 542,500 700,000

527 £ 221 H s EBAM%#E#7ZE  The notes on pages 27 to 221 are an integral part of these financial statements.
AT -
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 31 December

Profit for the year

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently

to income statement:

Premises:
Revaluation of premises
Deferred tax

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to

income statement:

Available-for-sale securities:

Change in fair value of available-for-sale

securities

Release upon disposal of available-for-sale
securities reclassified to income

statement
Amortisation with respect to

available-for-sale securities transferred
to held-to-maturity securities reclassified

to income statement

Deferred tax

Change in fair value of hedging instruments

under net investment hedges
Currency translation difference

Other comprehensive income for the year,

net of tax

Total comprehensive income for the year

The notes on pages 27 to 221 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Bt
Notes 2015 2014
BT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000
2,896,777 2,751,499
374,898 495,305
31 10,657 (70,286)
385,555 425,019
280,066 557,098
(256,051) (93,642)
1,054 1,062
31 (15,548) (95,845)
9,521 368,673
44,284 38,400
(589,711) (288,736)
(535,906) 118,337
(150,351) 543,356
2,746,426 3,294,855
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

As at 31 December

ASSETS

Cash and balances with banks and other
financial institutions

Placements with banks and other financial
institutions maturing between one and
twelve months

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Derivative financial instruments

Advances and other accounts

Financial investments

Investment properties

Properties, plant and equipment

Current tax assets

Deferred tax assets

Other assets

Assets held for sale

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Deposits and balances from banks and other
financial institutions

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss

Derivative financial instruments

Deposits from customers

Other accounts and provisions

Current tax liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities

Liabilities associated with assets held for sale

Total liabilities

23

liE=s
Notes 2015 2014
BB AT
HK$'000 HK$'000
19 54,244,805 58,282,800
7,056,785 18,180,762
20 6,963,572 6,155,213
21 696,266 439,072
22 168,924,014 163,903,699
24 55,407,983 47,168,324
25 414,736 1,280,271
26 7,008,020 7,328,497
46,690 -
31 5,962 152,171
27 4,295,231 1,013,444
32 132,729 -
305,196,793 303,904,253
30,961,174 37,735,611
28 4,575,356 4,970,693
21 302,944 278,506
29 218,261,983 209,633,935
30 12,974,800 15,181,966
187,530 222,225
31 812,352 986,473
32 21,884 -
268,098,023 269,009,409
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Consolidated Balance Sheet (continued)

As at 31 December

EQUITY

Share capital
Reserves

Total equity

Total liabilities and equity

The notes on pages 27 to 221 are an integral part of these financial statements.

ek
Notes 2015 2014
ARTT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000
33 3,144,517 3,144,517
33,954,253 31,750,327
37,098,770 34,894,844
305,196,793 303,904,253

Approved by the Board of Directors on 18 March 2016 and signed on behalf of the Board by:
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Fang Hongguang

Director
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At 1 January 2014

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive

income:

Premises

Available-for-sale
securities

Change in fair value
of hedging
instruments under
net investment
hedges

Currency translation
difference

Total comprehensive

income

Transfer to share

capital

Transfer from retained

earnings

Dividends (Note 16)

At 31 December 2014

At 1 January 2015

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive

income:

Premises

Available-for-sale
securities

Change in fair value
of hedging
instruments under
net investment
hedges

Currency translation
difference

Total comprehensive

income

Release upon disposal

of premises

Transfer from retained

earnings

Dividends (Note 16)

At 31 December 2015

* PR GRS 30 St EOIIRHURK
BRSNS R B Sy W
FI BB E AR T — A Eb 2 A
RAGRK AR T TSR ) -

5 27 % 221 HZ I A ek

ZHRRHER ST -

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

fetifhi
Reserves
B
A TE
Lo
Reserve for
R fair value
HEflifkf#  changes of
N it N Premises available- B A G EER ERERIF FARHEET
Share Share Capital  revaluation for-sale  Regulatory  Translation Retained Total
capital premium reserve reserve securities reserve* reserve earnings equity
EWETT BT BT BT BT BT BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
700,000 2,444,517 605 5,515,739 (164,888) 1,944,980 964,629 20,894,407 32,299,989
R - - - - - - 2,751,499 2,751,499
- - - 425,019 - - - - 425,019
- - - - 368,673 - - - 368,673
- - - - - - 38,400 - 38,400
- - - (3,649) 3,123 - (288,210) - (288,736)
- - - 421,370 371,796 - (249,810) 2,751,499 3,294,855
2,444,517 (2,444,517) - - - - - - -
- - - - - 228,610 - (228,610) -
- - - - - - - (700,000)  (700,000)
3,144,517 - 605 5,937,109 206,908 2,173,590 714,819 22,717,296 34,894,844
3,144,517 - 605 5,937,109 206,908 2,173,590 714,819 22,717,296 34,894,844
- - - - - - - 2,896,777 2,896,777
- - - 385,555 - - - - 385,555
- - - - 9,521 - - - 9,521
- - - - - - 44,284 - 44,284
- - - (8,455) (2,675) - (578,581) - (589,711)
- - - 377,100 6,846 - (534,297) 2,896,777 2,746,426
- - - (459,399) - - - 459,399 -
- - - - - 82,083 - (82,083) -
- - - - - - - (542,500)  (542,500)
3,144,517 - 605 5,854,810 213,754 2,255,673 180,522 25,448,889 37,098,770

* In accordance with the requirements of the HKMA, the amounts are set aside for general banking risks, including future losses

or other unforeseeable risks, in addition to the loan impairment allowances recognised under HKAS 39.

The notes on pages 27 to 221 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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GFEHSRER Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
FEE
BHE 12 A 31 HibERE For the year ended 31 December Notes 2015 2014
AT AT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
KBEBIHERE Cash flows from operating activities
IR RTaCE RS 2 TR Operating cash inflow before taxation 34(a) 3,079,357 15,674,762
SATEBIER Hong Kong profits tax paid (464,589) (458,285)
ISR Overseas profits tax paid (112,701) (189,366)
QBEB T HERNPE Net cash inflow from operating activities 2,502,067 15,027,111
BREEBIHRERE Cash flows from investing activities
HEAWISE ~ 2301 Rkt Purchase of properties, plant and equipment 26 (74,240) (84,996)
ARSI Purchase of investment properties 25 (2,903) (821)
HEYZE - 30 MELHETSECE Proceeds from disposal of properties, plant
and equipment 398,673 248
HEREYIHESECE Proceeds from disposal of investment
properties 986,800 -
BEEBZHERA (FE) 348 Net cash inflow/(outflow) from investing
activities 1,308,330 (85,569)
MEEGEIRERE Cash flows from financing activities
Ep);cas) Dividend paid (542,500) (700,000)
B IR S Net cash outflow from financing activities (542,500) (700,000)
IR 4 K S [ B 418 B B Increase in cash and cash equivalents 3,267,897 14,241,542
P1H1HZREREERESTEH Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 52,301,071 39,008,565
EsREE NG R ERIRSEE N Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and
= cash equivalents (1,746,559) (949,036)
12 H 31 BZHE KEEWRELIEE Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 34(b) 53,822,409 52,301,071

527 £ 221 B M EA B The notes on pages 27 to 221 are an integral part of these financial statements.
ZHHRRE ST o
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1. Principal activities

Nanyang Commercial Bank, Limited was incorporated in Hong Kong (hereinafter as the
“Bank”) and its subsidiaries were incorporated in Hong Kong or Shanghai (together with the
Bank hereinafter as the “Group”). The Bank is a licensed bank authorised under the Hong
Kong Banking Ordinance.

The principal activities of the Bank are the provision of banking and related financial services.
The principal activities of the Bank’s subsidiaries are shown in “Appendix — Subsidiaries of
the Bank”. The address of the Bank’s registered office is 151 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong
Kong.

2. Significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are set out below.

These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (HKFRSs is a collective term which
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, HKASs and
Interpretations) issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the revaluation of available-for-sale securities, financial
assets and financial liabilities (including derivative financial instruments) at fair value
through profit or loss, precious metals at fair value, investment properties which are
carried at fair value and premises which are carried at fair value or revalued amount less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Repossessed assets and
assets held for sale are stated at the lower of their carrying amounts and fair values less
costs to sell as further explained in Notes 2.24 and 2.27 respectively.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires the Management to exercise
judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 3.

Except for the annual improvements to HKFRSs that are already mandatorily effective
for accounting period beginning on 1 January 2015, there is no other standard or
amendment adopted by the Group in 2015. The impact of the adoption of these annual
improvements is not material to the Group’s financial statements.
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2. FEEEEE (8) 2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
2.1 EEIEE (8B 2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(a) BEEME R oa s (a) Standards and amendments issued that are not yet mandatorily effective and

AR B R A EE R have not been early adopted by the Group in 2015

2015 EIRATERGZ A

RIR 5T

DU E B 2 #E R The following standards and amendments have been issued and are mandatory for

BETir 2016 421 H 1 accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016:

HEES IR FIGBIN S

SHEREARTRFIEARY -

AEEEHER
REAREH A Currently
%]/ 1837 Applicable for relevant
Standards/ AR financial years to the
Amendments Content beginning on/after  Group
EEETHEGE 15 (&1&5T) PR E i 2016 £1 A 1H s
HKAS 1 (Amendments) Disclosure Initiative 1 January 2016 Yes
ARG 16 9t FEEHEAS  BE  AEMEY 2016 F1 A 1H &
41 5% (&1E3T)
HKAS 16 and HKAS 41 (Amendments) Agriculture: Bearer Plants 1 January 2016 No
FEETHEAS 16 9t FEEHEAE BRI iy TR A 2016 F1 A 1H &
38 5F (&&fE3T)
HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 (Amendments) Clarification of Acceptable Methods of 1 January 2016 No
Depreciation and Amortisation
FEETREAG 27 97(2011) (£4B3T) BIMBERNIIRERE 2016 1 A1 H i
HKAS 27 (2011) (Amendments) Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements 1 January 2016 Yes
EAEGTHEAS 28 57 (2011) R EAE  REHHHERENSECE L MNVERELES0E e
B AR 10 5% (45(&3T) A
HKAS 28 (2011) and Sale or Contribution of Assets between an To be determined No
HKFRS 10 (Amendments) Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture
EBRESTEASE 28 57(2011) - FAEME  EER © SEOHRESMNEERIEM 2016 1 H 1 H S
Bt 2RSS 10 Sf R BRI e
512 5% (&1E5T)
HKAS 28 (2011), HKFRS 10 and Investment entities: Applying the Consolidation 1 January 2016 No
HKFRS 12 (Amendments) Exception
AR S R A 9 5% GRATH 2018 1 H 1 H =2
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments 1 January 2018 Yes
TR B EEAERISE 11 57 (KEsT) W& EER L G TR 2016 F1H1H =
HKFRS 11 (Amendments) Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint 1 January 2016 No
Operations

TR G AR R 14 5% SRR H 201641 H1H =
HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts 1 January 2016 No
T S RIS 15 5 TR F & ERIA 20181 H1H =
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 1 January 2018 Yes
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1 gmBlEE (8)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
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have not been early adopted by the Group in 2015 (continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be applicable to the
Group is as follows:

+ HKAS 1 (Amendments), “Disclosure Initiative”. The amendments to HKAS 1 are
designed to further encourage companies to apply professional judgement in
determining what information to disclose in their financial statements. For
example, the amendments make clear that materiality applies to the whole of
financial statements and that the inclusion of immaterial information can inhibit the
usefulness of financial disclosures. Furthermore, the amendments clarify that
companies should use professional judgement in determining where and in what
order information is presented in the financial disclosures. This amendment will
not have material impact on the Group’s financial statements.

+ HKAS 27 (2011) (Amendments), “Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements”.

The amendments restore the option to allow an entity to apply the equity method
to account for its investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in its
separate financial statements. Early application is permitted. Entities electing to
change to the equity method in its separate financial statements shall have to
apply the same accounting for each category of investments so elected and are
required to apply this change retrospectively. These amendments will not have
any material impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1 gmBlEE (8)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

() TARARAE I R 56 Al
EBRARKAEER

(a) Standards and amendments issued that are not yet mandatorily effective and
have not been early adopted by the Group in 2015 (continued)
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+ HKFRS 9, “Financial Instruments”. The issuance of IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

completes the International Accounting Standards Board's comprehensive
response to the financial crisis. HKFRS 9, the equivalent standard of IFRS 9
under HKFRS, includes a logical model for classification and measurement, a
single, forward-looking “expected loss” impairment model and a tighter linkage of
risk management to hedge accounting. The changes introduced in HKFRS 9 are
highlighted as follows:

(i) Classification and Measurement

Financial assets

Financial assets are required to be classified into one of the following
measurement categories: (1) measured subsequently at amortised cost, (2)
measured subsequently at fair value through other comprehensive income (all fair
value changes other than interest accrual, amortisation and impairment will be
recognised in other comprehensive income) or (3) measured subsequently at fair
value through profit or loss. Classification is to be made on transition, and
subsequently on initial recognition. The classification depends on the entity’s
business model for managing its financial instruments and the contractual cash
flow characteristics of the instruments.
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1 ¢EEEE (&) 2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(2) SARMIE R385
ERRARBEAEER
2015 ARG X
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(a) Standards and amendments issued that are not yet mandatorily effective and
have not been early adopted by the Group in 2015 (continued)

() 7R E (4E) (i) Classification and Measurement (continued)
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Financial assets (continued)

A financial instrument is subsequently measured at amortised cost only if it is a
debt instrument, and the objective of the entity’s business model is to hold the
asset to collect the contractual cash flows, and the asset’s contractual cash flows
characteristics represent only unleveraged payments of principal and interest. A
debt instrument is subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income if it is held in a business model whose objective is
achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and
the instrument fulfils the contractual cash flows characteristics. All other debt
instruments are to be measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Equity instruments are generally measured subsequently at fair value with limited
circumstances that cost may be an appropriate estimate of fair value. Equity
instruments that are held for trading will be measured at fair value through profit
or loss. For all other equity investments, an irrevocable election can be made at
initial recognition to recognise unrealised and realised fair value gains and losses
in other comprehensive income without subsequent reclassification of fair value
gains and losses to the income statement even upon disposal. Dividend income is
recognised in the income statement when the right to receive payment is
established.
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1 gmBlEE (8)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
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(a) Standards and amendments issued that are not yet mandatorily effective and
have not been early adopted by the Group in 2015 (continued)
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(i) Classification and Measurement (continued)

Financial liabilities

Except for the two substantial changes described below, the classification and
measurement requirements of financial liabilities have been basically carried
forward with minimal amendments from HKAS 39.

The accounting for fair value option of financial liabilities were changed to
address own credit risk. The amount of change in fair value attributable to
changes in the credit risk of the financial liabilities will be presented in other
comprehensive income. The remaining amount of the total gain or loss is included
in the income statement. If this creates or enlarges an accounting mismatch in
profit or loss, then the whole fair value change is presented in the income
statement. The determination of whether there will be a mismatch will need to be
made at initial recognition of individual liabilities and will not be re-assessed.
Amounts presented in other comprehensive income are not subsequently
reclassified to the income statement but may be transferred within equity. This
removes the volatility in profit or loss that was caused by changes in the credit risk
of liabilities elected to be measured at fair value. It also means that gains caused
by the deterioration of an entity's own credit risk on such liabilities will no longer
be recognised in profit or loss.
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2.1 gmBlEE (8)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
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have not been early adopted by the Group in 2015 (continued)

(i) Classification and Measurement (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

The standard also eliminates the exception from fair value measurement
contained in HKAS 39 for derivative financial instruments that are linked to and
must be settled by delivery of an unquoted equity instrument.

(i) Impairment

The standard introduces a new, expected-loss impairment model that will require
more timely recognition of expected credit losses. Specifically, it requires entities
to account for 12 months expected credit losses from inception when financial
instruments are first recognised and to recognise full lifetime expected credit
losses on a more timely basis when there have been significant increases in
credit risk since initial recognition. The impairment for financial instruments that
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income (debt instruments), loan commitments and financial
guarantees will be governed by this standard.
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2.1 gmBlEE (8)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
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(a) Standards and amendments issued that are not yet mandatorily effective and
have not been early adopted by the Group in 2015 (continued)
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(iii) Hedge accounting

The requirements related to hedge accounting would better align the accounting
treatments with risk management activities and enable entities to better reflect
these activities in their financial statements. It relaxes the requirements for
assessing hedge effectiveness which more risk management strategies may be
eligible for hedge accounting. It also relaxes the rules on using non-derivative
financial instruments as hedging instruments and allows greater flexibility on
hedged items. Users of the financial statements will be provided with more
relevant information about risk management and the effect of hedge accounting on
the financial statements.

Early application of HKFRS 9 in its entirety at the same time is permitted. Only the
part related to own credit risk can be elected to be early applied in isolation. The
Group has already formed a groupwide project team to assess the impact of
HKFRS 9, formulate the work plan and implement the standard. Significant works
has been done on analysing our financial instruments, building models and
designing new workflows. Due to the complication of the project, no guantitative
information of the potential effect is concluded yet.
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« HKFRS 15, “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”. HKFRS 15 applies a
single model and specifies the accounting treatment for all revenue arising from
contracts with customers. The new standard is based on the core principle that
revenue is recognised to reflect the consideration expected to be entitled when
control of promised good or service transfers to customer. It is also applicable to
the recognition and measurement of gains or losses on the sale of some
non-financial assets such as properties or equipment that are not an output of
ordinary activities. HKFRS 15 also includes a set of disclosure requirements
about revenue from customer contracts. The new standard will replace the
separate models for goods, services and construction contracts stipulated in
different standards under the current HKFRS. Early application is permitted. The
Group is considering the financial impact of the standard and the timing of its
application.
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2. TEeEE (8) 2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
2.1 EEIEE (8B 2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(b) BEEEBUBRESE (b) Improvements to HKFRSs

i

Mg B B 8 “Improvements to HKFRSs” contains numerous amendments to HKFRSs which the
B BE ST E S HKICPA considers not urgent but necessary. It comprises amendments that result in
et A g AIER accounting changes for presentation, recognition or measurement purpose as well as
SEAEEEMMEET & terminology or editorial amendments related to a variety of individual HKFRSs. The
T EFES [BAEF IR ~ T amendments will be effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
REEtE AR g 2016. The adoption of these improvements does not have a material impact on the
FHEERBET LI Group'’s financial statements.
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(c) &HE (ANEMER) (c) Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
A& (AEIRGI) 559 The requirements of Part 9 “Accounts and Audit’ of the Hong Kong Companies
R E R FaT Ordinance came into effect for the first time during the current financial year. The
BN S SR A A B T main impact to the Group’s financial statements is on the presentation and disclosure
BERARY - Ehtaz B of certain information in the Group’s financial statements.
FERBREH NS
G BRENETE
RHIFIREHE R -

2.2 BREMHHRE 2.2 Consolidation
EEMBHRREEANE The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Bank and all
KATAENBATEZE 12 of its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December.

H 31 BB -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control is achieved when the Group is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights
that give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between
Group companies are eliminated; unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of impairment of the assets transferred. Where necessary,
accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

In the Bank’s balance sheet, the investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
allowance for impairment losses. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Bank on the basis of dividends received and receivable. Dividend income from
subsidiaries is recognised in the income statement when the right to receive payment is
established.
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.3 RS 2.3 Segmental reporting
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The operating result of segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal
reporting provided to the Management, which is the chief operating decision maker of
the Group, that allocates resources and assesses the performance of operating
segments. Income and expenses directly associated with each segment are included in
determining operating segment performance.

2.4 Foreign currency translation

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the Bank’s functional and presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or exchange rates at the end
of the reporting period for items that are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of foreign currency transactions using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions and monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies translated at the exchange rate at the end of the
reporting period are recognised directly in the income statement, except when deferred
in other comprehensive income as qualifying net investment hedges.

Translation differences on monetary securities held at fair value through profit or loss are
reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. Changes in the fair value of monetary
securities denominated in foreign currency classified as available for sale are analysed
between translation differences resulting from changes in the amortised cost of the
securities and other changes in the carrying amount of the securities. Translation
differences related to changes in the amortised cost are recognised in the income
statement, and other changes in the carrying amount are recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (continued)

Translation differences on non-monetary items are reported as part of the fair value gain
or loss. Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets such as equities
classified as available for sale are included in other comprehensive income.

The results and financial position of all the Group entities that have a functional currency
different from Hong Kong dollars are translated into Hong Kong dollars as follows:

- assets and liabilities are translated at the closing rates at the end of the reporting
period;
income and expenses are translated at average exchange rates; and

- all resulting exchange differences are recognised in the currency translation reserve in
equity through other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of the net investment
in foreign entities, borrowings and other currency instruments designated as hedges of
such investments are taken to other comprehensive income. When a foreign entity is
sold, such exchange differences are recognised in the income statement, as part of the
gain or loss on sale.

2.5 Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date the derivative contract is
entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Fair values are obtained
from quoted market prices in active markets, including recent market transactions, and
through the use of valuation techniques, including discounted cash flow models and
option pricing models, as appropriate. All derivatives are carried as assets when fair
value is positive and as liabilities when fair value is negative.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.5 Derivative financial instruments (continued)

Certain derivatives embedded in other financial instruments are treated as separate
derivatives when their economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to those
of the host contract and the host contract is not carried at fair value through profit or loss.
These embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in the income statement.

Derivatives are categorised as held for trading and changes in their fair value are
recognised immediately in the income statement.

2.6 Hedge accounting

The Group documents at inception the relationship between hedging instruments and
hedged items, as well as its risk management objective and strategy for undertaking
various hedge transactions. The Group also documents its assessment, both at the
hedge inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives that are used in
hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values of hedged
items. These criteria should be met before a hedge can be qualified to be accounted for
under hedge accounting.

Net investment hedge

A gain or loss on the effective portion of the hedging instrument is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity; a gain or loss on the ineffective
portion is recognised immediately in the income statement. Accumulated gains and
losses previously recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to the
income statement upon disposal of the foreign operation as part of the gain or loss on
disposal.

2.7 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance
sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.8 Interest income and expense and fee and commission income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognised in the income statement for all financial
assets and financial liabilities using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset or a financial liability and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or,
when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or
financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates future
cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument (e.g. prepayment
options or incentives relating to residential mortgage loans) but does not consider future
credit losses. The calculation includes fees, premiums or discounts and basis points paid
or received between parties to the contract, and directly attributable origination fees and
costs which represent an integral part of the effective yield.

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been written down as a
result of an impairment loss, interest income is recognised on the written down value
using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring the impairment loss. Subsequent unwinding of the discount allowance is
recognised as interest income.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.8 FSBA RSO ~ IRHsE B

2.8 Interest income and expense and fee and commission income and expense
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(continued)

Fee and commission income and expenses that are not an integral part of the effective
yield are recognised on an accrual basis ratably over the period when the related service
is provided, such as administrative fee, asset management fee and custody services fee.
Loan syndication fees are recognised as revenue when the related syndication
arrangement has been completed and the Group has retained no part of the loan
package for itself or has retained a part at the same effective interest rate as applicable
to the other participants.

2.9 Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets into the following four categories: financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity
securities and available for sale financial assets. The Management determines the
classification of investments at initial recognition. The classification depends on the
purpose for which the financial assets are held. All financial assets are recognised
initially at fair value. Except for financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss,
all transaction costs of financial assets are included in their initial carrying amounts.

(1) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

This category has two sub-categories: financial assets held for trading, and those
designated at fair value through profit or loss at inception.

A financial asset which has been acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of
selling in the short term or is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are
managed together and for which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking is classified as held for trading. Derivatives are also classified as
held for trading.

A financial asset, other than one held for trading, will be designated as a financial asset
at fair value through profit or loss, if it meets one of the criteria set out below, and is so
designated by the Management:
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.9 Financial assets (continued)
(1) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency
(sometimes referred to as “an accounting mismatch”) that would otherwise arise
from measuring the financial assets or recognising the gains and losses on them on
different bases; or

applies to a group of financial assets, financial liabilities or both that is managed and
its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented
risk management or investment strategy, and information about the group is
provided internally on that basis to the Management; or

relates to financial assets containing one or more embedded derivative that
significantly modifies the cash flow resulting from those financial assets.

These assets are recognised initially at fair value, with transaction costs taken directly to
the income statement, and are subsequently re-measured at fair value.

Gains and losses from changes in the fair value of such assets (excluding the interest
component) are reported in net trading gain/loss or net gain/loss on financial instruments
designated at fair value through profit or loss. The interest component is reported as part
of interest income.
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.9 SREEE (8)

2.9 Financial assets (continued)
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(2) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market, including placements with and
advances to banks and other financial institutions, investment debt securities without an
active market and loans and advances to customers. They arise when the Group
provides money, goods or services directly to a debtor with no intention of trading the
receivable. They are initially recorded at fair value plus any directly attributable
transaction costs and are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method less allowances for impairment losses.

(3) Held-to-maturity

Financial assets classified as held-to-maturity are those traded in active markets, with
fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities that the Group’s Management has
both the positive intention and the ability to hold to maturity. Where the Group sold
held-to-maturity assets (i) other than due to an isolated event beyond the Group’s
control, non-recurring and could not have been reasonably anticipated by the Group,
such as a significant deterioration in the issuer’s creditworthiness, significant change in
statutory or regulatory requirement; or (i) other than an insignificant amount of
held-to-maturity assets, the entire category would be tainted and reclassified as
available-for-sale. They are initially recorded at fair value plus any directly attributable
transaction costs, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method less allowances for impairment losses.

(4) Available-for-sale

Financial assets classified as available-for-sale are those that are either designated as
such or are not classified in any of the other categories. They are intended to be held for
an indefinite period of time but may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or changes
in interest rates, exchange rates or equity prices.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.9 Financial assets (continued)

(4) Available-for-sale (continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets are initially recorded at fair value plus any directly
attributable transaction costs, and are subsequently measured at fair value. Unrealised
gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of investments are recognised
directly in other comprehensive income, until the financial asset is derecognised or
impaired at which time the accumulated gain or loss previously recognised in equity
should be transferred to the income statement. However, interest income which includes
the amortisation of premium and discount is calculated using the effective interest
method and is recognised in the income statement. Dividends on equity instruments
classified as available-for-sale are recognised in other operating income when the
Group'’s right to receive payment is established.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-sale category, the fair value
carrying amount at the date of reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and any
previous gain or loss on that asset that has been recognised in other comprehensive
income is amortised to profit or loss over the remaining life of the investment using the
effective interest method. Any difference between the new amortised cost and the
maturity amount is also amortised over the remaining life of the financial asset using the
effective interest method. If the financial asset is subsequently determined to be
impaired, the amount recorded in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or
loss immediately.

The treatment of translation differences on available-for-sale securities is dealt with in
Note 2.4.

2.10 Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities under the following categories: trading
liabilities, deposits and other liabilities. All financial liabilities are classified at inception
and recognised initially at fair value.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.10 Financial liabilities (continued)

(1) Trading liabilities

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if it is incurred principally for the
purpose of repurchasing in the short term. Derivatives are also classified as held for
trading. It is measured at fair value and any gains and losses from changes in fair value
are recognised in the income statement.

(2) Deposit, and other liabilities

Deposits and other liabilities, other than those classified as trading liabilities are carried
at amortised cost. Any difference (if available) between proceeds net of transaction costs
and the redemption value is recognised in the income statement over the period using
the effective interest method.
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.11 i BERey

2.11 Financial guarantee contracts
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Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the issuer to make specified
payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to
make payments when due, in accordance with the terms of a contract between the
holder and the debtor.

Financial guarantee contracts are initially recognised as financial liabilities and reported
under “Other accounts and provisions” in the financial statements at fair value on the
date the guarantee was given. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group’s liabilities
under such guarantees are measured at the higher of (i) the amount determined in
accordance with HKAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets” and
(ii) the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate, accumulated amortisation
recognised over the life of the guarantee on a straight-line basis. Any changes in the
liability relating to financial guarantee contracts are taken to the income statement.
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
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Purchases and sales of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
available-for-sale and held-to-maturity are recognised on the trade date, the date on
which the Group purchases or sells the assets. Loans and receivables (except
investment securities without an active market) are recognised when cash is advanced
to the borrowers. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the financial assets have expired or where the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. When the Group neither transfers nor
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the
Group either continues to recognise the transferred financial asset to the extent of its
continuing involvement if control remains or derecognise it if there is no retained control.

Trading liabilities are recognised on the trade date. Deposits that are not trading liabilities
are recognised when money is received from customers, other liabilities are recognised
when such obligations arise. Financial liabilities are derecognised from the balance
sheet when and only when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or expires.

Securities and bills sold to a counterparty with an obligation to repurchase at a
pre-determined price on a specified future date under a repurchase agreement are
referred to as repos. Securities and bills purchased from a counterparty with an
obligation to re-sell to the counterparty at a pre-determined price on a specified future
date under a resale agreement are referred to as reverse repos.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.12 Recognition and derecognition of financial instruments (continued)

Repos or securities lending are initially recorded as due to banks, placements from
banks and other financial institutions, as appropriate, at the actual amount of cash
received from the counterparty. Financial assets given as collateral for repurchase
agreements are not derecognised and are recorded as financial investments or
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. Reverse repos or securities
borrowing are initially recorded in the balance sheet as cash and due from banks or
placements with banks and other financial institutions, as appropriate, at the actual
amount of cash paid to the counterparty. Financial assets received as collateral under
reverse repurchase agreements are not recognised on the balance sheet. The
difference between sale and repurchase price is recognised as interest income or
interest expense over the life of the agreements using the effective interest method.

2.13 Fair value measurement

The Group measures its premises and investment properties, precious metals and
certain financial instruments at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value
is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants in its principal market or the most
advantageous market accessible by the Group at the measurement date.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market
participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.
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2.13 Fair value measurement (continued)
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If the market for assets or liabilities is not active, the Group uses valuation techniques,
including the use of recent arm’s length transactions, discounted cash flow analysis,
option pricing models and other valuation techniques commonly used by market
participants, that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

2.14 Precious metals

Precious metals comprise gold. Precious metals are initially recognised and
subsequently re-measured at fair value. Mark-to-market gains or losses on precious
metals are included in net trading gain/loss.

2.15 Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses as at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred if, and only
if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event”) and that loss event (or
events) has an impact on the reliably estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
or group of financial assets. Objective evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets may be impaired includes observable data that comes to the attention of
the Group about the following probable loss events:
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.15 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor;

(i) a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal payment;

(i) the Group granting to the borrower, for economic or legal reasons relating to the
borrower’s financial difficulty, a concession that the lender would not otherwise
consider;

(iv) it becoming probable that the borrower will enter into bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

(v) the disappearance of an active market or downgrading below investment grade level
for that financial asset because of financial difficulties; or

(vi) observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows from a group of financial assets since the initial recognition of those
assets, although the decrease cannot yet be identified with the individual financial
assets in the group, including:

adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers in the group; or

national or local economic conditions that correlate with defaults on the assets in
the group.

(1) Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for
financial assets that are individually significant. If the Group determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset, it includes the
asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment together with all other financial assets that are not
individually significant or for which impairment has not yet been identified. Assets that
are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is or
continues to be recognised are not included in a collective assessment of impairment.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.15 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(1) Assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and receivables or
held-to-maturity securities has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred), discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is
reduced through the use of an allowance account and the amount of the loss is
recognised in the income statement. If a loan or held-to-maturity security has a variable
interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current effective
interest rate determined under the contract. As a practical expedient, the Group may
measure impairment on the basis of an instrument’s fair value using an observable
market price.

The calculation of the present value of the estimated future cash flows of a collateralised
financial asset reflects the cash flows that may result from foreclosure less costs for
obtaining and selling the collateral.

For the purposes of a collective assessment of impairment, financial assets are grouped
on the basis of similar and relevant credit risk characteristics. Those characteristics are
relevant to the estimation of future cash flows for groups of such assets by being
indicative of the debtors’ ability to pay all amounts due according to the contractual terms
of the assets being evaluated.

Future cash flows in a group of financial assets that are collectively evaluated for
impairment are estimated on the basis of the contractual cash flows of the assets in the
group and historical loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics similar to
those in the group. Historical loss experience is adjusted on the basis of current
observable data to reflect the effects of current conditions that did not affect the period
on which the historical loss experience is based and to remove the effects of conditions
in the historical period that do not exist currently.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.15 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(1) Assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

When a loan is uncollectible, it is written off against the related allowance for impairment
losses. Such loans are written off after all the necessary procedures have been
completed and the amount of the loss has been determined. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off decrease the amount of impairment losses in the income
statement.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of allowance for impairment losses decreases and
the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised (such as an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the previously
recognised impairment loss to the extent of its decrease is reversed by adjusting the
allowance account. The amount of the reversal is recognised in the income statement.

Loans whose terms have been renegotiated with substantial difference in the terms are
no longer considered to be past due but are treated as new loans.

(2) Assets classified as available-for-sale

If evidence of impairment exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the accumulated
losses, measured as the difference between the acquisition cost or amortised cost and
the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously
recognised in the income statement, is removed from equity and recognised in the
income statement. In the case of equity investments classified as available-for-sale, a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is
considered in determining whether the assets are impaired. If, in a subsequent period,
the fair value of a debt instrument classified as available-for-sale increases and the
increase can be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised in the income statement, the impairment loss to the extent of its decrease is
reversed through the income statement. With respect to equity instruments, further fair
value changes are recognised in the reserve for fair value change of available-for-sale
securities through other comprehensive income, impairment losses are not reversed
through the income statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.16 ¥ffB AT EIEERIEE 2.16 Impairment of investment in subsidiaries and non-financial assets
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Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. Potential indications of
impairment may include significant adverse changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment in which the assets operate or whether there has been
a significant or prolonged decline in value below their cost. “Significant” is evaluated
against the original cost of the investment and “prolonged” against the period in which
the fair value has been below its original cost.

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's
fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (cash generating units). Assets that suffered impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

In the Bank’s balance sheet, impairment testing of the investment in a subsidiary is
also required upon receiving dividend from that entity if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of that entity concerned in the period the dividend is declared
or if the carrying amount of that entity in the Bank's balance sheet exceeds the
carrying amount of that entity’s net assets including goodwill in its consolidated
balance sheet.

2.17 Investment properties

Properties that are held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both,
and that are not occupied by the companies in the Group, are classified as investment
properties. Properties leased out within Group companies are classified as investment
properties in individual companies’ financial statements and as premises in
consolidated financial statements. Land held under operating lease is classified and
accounted for as investment property when the rest of the definition of investment
property is met. The operating lease is accounted for as if it is a finance lease.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.17 Investment properties (continued)

Investment properties are recognised initially at cost, including related transaction
costs. After initial recognition, investment properties are measured at fair value.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying amount only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The item is stated at cost less
impairment and is included in the carrying amount of investment properties. Once the
item begins to generate economic benefits, it is then measured at fair value. All other
repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in the income statement during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

Any changes in fair value are recognised directly in the income statement.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified as premises, and
its fair value at the date of reclassification becomes its cost for accounting purposes. If
an item of premises becomes an investment property because its use has changed,
any difference resulting between the carrying amount and the fair value of this item at
the date of transfer is recognised in other comprehensive income as a revaluation of
premises under HKAS 16 “Property, Plant and Equipment”. However, if a fair value
gain reverses a previous revaluation loss or impairment loss, the gain is recognised in
the income statement up to the amount previously debited.
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
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revaluation is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net
amount is restated to the revalued amount of the asset. In the intervening periods, the
directors review the carrying amount of premises, by reference to the open market value
of similar properties, and adjustments are made when there has been a material
change.

All plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation.
Historical cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition and
installation of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in an asset's carrying amount or are recognised as a
separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The item is stated at cost until it begins to generate economic benefits, then the
item is subsequently measured according to the measurement basis of its respective
assets class. All other repairs and maintenance costs are charged to the income
statement during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of premises are credited to the
premises revaluation reserve through other comprehensive income. Decreases that
offset previous increases of the same individual asset are charged against premises
revaluation reserve through other comprehensive income; all other decreases are
expensed in the income statement. Any subsequent increases are credited to the
income statement up to the amount previously debited, and then to the premises
revaluation reserve. Upon disposal of premises, the relevant portion of the premises
revaluation reserve realised in respect of previous valuations is released and transferred
from the premises revaluation reserve to retained earnings.
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
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2.18 Properties, plant and equipment (continued)
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Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line method to write down the cost or revalued
amount of such assets over their estimated useful lives as follows:

+ Properties Over the life of government land leases

+ Plant and equipment 2 to 15 years

The useful lives of assets are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, as at the end of
each reporting period.

At the end of each reporting period, both internal and external sources of information are
considered to determine whether there is any indication that properties, plant and
equipment, are impaired. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated and where relevant, an impairment loss is recognised to reduce the
asset to its recoverable amount. Such an impairment loss is recognised in the income
statement except where the asset is carried at valuation and the impairment loss does
not exceed the revaluation surplus for that same asset, in which case it is treated as a
revaluation decrease. The recoverable amount is the higher of the asset'’s fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. Impairment loss is reversed through the premises
revaluation reserve or the income statement as appropriate.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying
amount, relevant taxes and expenses. These are recognised in the income statement.

Properties, plant and equipment classified as held for sale is not depreciated and is
accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5 "Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations".
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.19 Leases

(1) Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained
by the lessor are classified as operating leases. The total payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the
income statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

When an operating lease is terminated before the lease period has expired, any
payment required to be made to the lessor by way of penalty is recognised as an
expense in the period in which termination takes place. Rental income from operating
leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

(2) Finance leases
Leases of assets where lessee have obtained substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as finance leases. Government land leases in Hong Kong are
classified as finance leases as the present value of the minimum lease payments (i.e.
transaction price) of the land amounted to substantially all of the fair value of the land as
if it were freehold.

Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s commencement at the lower of the fair
value of the leased asset and the present value of the minimum lease payments. Each
lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance charges so as to achieve a
constant rate on the finance balance outstanding. The corresponding rental obligations,
net of finance charges, are included in other liabilities. Investment properties acquired
under finance leases are carried at their fair value.

When assets are leased out under a finance lease, the present value of the lease
payments is recognised as a receivable. Lease income is recognised over the term of
the lease using net investment method, which reflects a constant periodic rate of return.
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
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For the purposes of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents
comprise balances with original maturity less than three months from the date of
acquisition, including cash, balances with banks and other financial institutions,
short-term bills and notes classified as investment securities.

2.21 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation
as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the
amount of the obligation can be made.

2.22 Employee benefits

(1) Retirement benefit costs

The Group contributes to defined contribution retirement schemes under either
recognised ORSO schemes or MPF schemes that are available to the Group’s
employees. Contributions to the schemes by the Group and employees are calculated
as a percentage of employees’ basic salaries for the ORSO schemes and in accordance
with the MPF rules for MPF schemes. The retirement benefit scheme costs are charged
to the income statement as incurred and represent contributions payable by the Group to
the schemes. Contributions made by the Group that are forfeited by those employees
who leave the ORSO scheme prior to the full vesting of their entittement to the
contributions are used by the Group to reduce the existing level of contributions or to
meet its expenses under the trust deed of the ORSO schemes.

The assets of the schemes are held in independently-administered funds separate from
those of the Group.

(2) Leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and sick leave are recognised when they accrue
to employees. A provision is made for the estimated liability for unused annual leave and
the amount of sick leave expected to be paid as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of the reporting period.
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

222 @B (8 2.22 Employee benefits (continued)
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(2) Leave entitlements (continued)

Compensated absences other than sick leave and special approved annual leaves are
non-accumulating; they lapse if the current period’s entitlement is not used in full. Except
for unexpired annual leaves, they do not entitle employees to a cash payment for unused
entitlement on leaving the Group.

(3) Bonus plans

The expected cost of bonus payments are recognised as a liability when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of services rendered by employees
and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made. Liabilities for bonus plans that are
expected to be settled longer than twelve months will be discounted if the amounts are
significant.

(4) Defined benefit plan

The Group operates a defined benefit plan which is unfunded. The cost of providing
benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit
actuarial valuation method.

Remeasurements arising from actuarial gains and losses of the defined benefit plan, is
recognised immediately in the consolidated balance sheet with a corresponding debit or
credit to retained profits through other comprehensive income in the period in which they
occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss at the earlier of:

the date of the plan amendment or curtailment; and

the date that the Group recognises restructuring-related costs.
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

222 @B (8 2.22 Employee benefits (continued)
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Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability
or asset. The Group recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit
obligation under “interest expenses” and “operating expenses” in the consolidated
income statement by function:

service costs comprising current service costs, past service costs, gains and
losses on curtailments and non-routine settlements

net interest expense or income

2.23 Current and deferred income taxes

Tax expenses for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the
income statement, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in other
comprehensive income. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Income tax payable on profits, based on the applicable tax law enacted or substantially
enacted at the end of the reporting period in each jurisdiction where the Bank and the
subsidiaries operate and generate taxable income, is recognised as a current income tax
expense in the period in which profits arise.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the balance sheet liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantially enacted by
the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
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2.23 Current and deferred income taxes (continued)
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The principal temporary differences arise from asset impairment provisions, depreciation
of premises and equipment, and revaluation of certain assets including available-for-sale
securities and premises. However, the deferred income tax is not recognised if it arises
from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss.

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided in full on all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred income tax assets are recognised on all deductible temporary differences, the
carry forward of any unused tax credits and unused tax losses to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses
can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is charged or credited in the income statement except for deferred
income tax relating to fair value re-measurement of available-for-sale securities and
revaluation of premises which are charged or credited to other comprehensive income,
in which case the deferred income tax is also credited or charged to other
comprehensive income and is subsequently recognised in the income statement
together with the realisation of the deferred gain and loss.

Deferred tax liability or deferred tax asset arising from investment property is determined
based on the presumption that the revaluation amount of such investment property will
be recovered through sale with the relevant tax rate applied.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.24 Repossessed assets

Repossessed assets are initially recognised at the lower of their fair value less costs to
sell and the amortised cost of the related outstanding loans on the date of repossession,
and the related loans and advances together with the related impairment allowances
are derecognised from the balance sheet. Subsequently, repossessed assets are
measured at the lower of their cost and fair values less costs to sell and are reported as
“non-current assets held for sale” included in “Other assets”.

2.25 Fiduciary activities

The Group commonly acts as a trustee, or in other fiduciary capacities, that result in its
holding or managing assets on behalf of individuals, trusts and other institutions. These
assets and any gains or losses arising thereon are excluded from these financial
statements, as they are not assets of the Group.

2.26 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group. It can also be a
present obligation arising from past events that is not recognised because it is not
probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required or the amount of
obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised as a provision but is disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements. When a change in the probability of an outflow occurs so that
outflow is probable, it will then be recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group.
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
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2.26 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets (continued)
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Contingent assets are not recognised but are disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements when an inflow of economic benefits is probable. When the inflow is virtually
certain, it will be recognised as an asset.

2.27 Assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale when their carrying amounts will be
recovered principally through sale, they are available for sale in their present condition
and their sale is highly probable. Non-current assets held for sale are measured at the
lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell, in accordance with
HKFRS 5 "Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations".

2.28 Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is considered to be related to the
Group if that party (i) controls, jointly controls or has significant influence over the Group;
(i) is a member of the same financial reporting group, such as parents, subsidiaries and
fellow subsidiaries; (iii) is an associate or a joint venture of the Group or parent reporting
group; (iv) is a key management personnel of the Group or parents; (v) is subject to
common control with the Group; (vi) is an entity in which a person identified in (iv)
controls; and (vii) provides key management personnel services to the Group or its
parent. Related parties may be individuals or entities.
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3. EREsEEERE & A 3. Critical accounting estimates and judgements in applying
e EET BRI accounting policies

K% EEH A s EEFIEEEE  The Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect the carrying amounts of assets and

HEeR s N —giHMEEAYEZEM  liabilities within the next financial year. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated
%{EE@EEEETE wEfEE ¥ and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future
Er 2RI S 4CER KA E R events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Areas susceptible to

B Nl e R 2 changes in essential estimates and judgements, which affect the carrying amount of assets
AR ARARE AR TRIAM and liabilities, are set out below. The effect of changes to either the key assumptions or other

W ERHE R R - %}L EEY  estimation uncertainties will be presented below if it is practicable to determine. It is possible
(Gt & HErEsE > a2 HIE that actual results may require material adjustments to the estimates referred to below.
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3.1 B ERCE R EER 3.1 Impairment allowances on loans and advances
AREHZ/ VEFHEFEHE The Group reviews its loan portfolios to assess impairment at least on a quarterly basis.
HYRE BRI T — 2T In determining whether an impairment loss should be recorded in the income statement,
fifi o PORE R GHEEURERE the Group makes judgements as to whether there is any observable data indicating that
KA s > AEEE A there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a portfolio of
B —E3EHE N {E R &K loans and advances before the decrease can be identified with an individual loan in that
ZREREET - EE S portfolio. This evidence may include observable data indicating that there has been an
EAAEEEIEE R E adverse change in the payment status of borrowers in a group (e.g. payment delinquency
AREFRE A 2 KR FEE IR or default), or economic conditions that correlate with defaults on assets in the group.
fﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁfﬂﬁTiF@7T The Management uses estimates based on historical loss experience for assets with

o B EFERERE LA credit risk characteristics and objective evidence of impairment similar to those in the

& W{E. A ZBFARAE R portfolio when estimating expected future cash flows. The methodology and assumptions
FlliEgAy Rz &R (A0 used for estimating both the amount and timing of future cash flows are reviewed
RECGMEAER) BB E N regularly.
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& 20154 12 H 31 HWY Carrying amounts of loans and advances as at 31 December 2015 are shown in Note 22.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

3. Critical accounting estimates and judgements in applying
accounting policies (continued)

3.2

3.3

Impairment of held-to-maturity and available-for-sale securities

The Group reviews its held-to-maturity and available-for-sale investment portfolios to
assess impairment at least on a quarterly basis. In determining whether any of these
investments is impaired, risk characteristics and performance such as external credit
rating and market price will be assessed. The Group makes estimates on the default rate
and loss severity of each investment with reference to market performance of the
portfolios, current payment status of the issuers or performance of the underlying assets,
or economic conditions that correlate with defaults on the collateralised assets. The
methodology and assumptions used for impairment assessments are reviewed regularly.

Carrying amounts of financial investments as at 31 December 2015 are shown in Note
24,

Fair values of derivative financial instruments

The fair values of derivative financial instruments that are not quoted in active markets
are determined by using valuation techniques. Valuation techniques used include
discounted cash flows analysis and models with built-in functions available in externally
acquired financial analysis or risk management systems widely used by the industry such
as option pricing models. To the extent practical, the models use observable data. In
addition, valuation adjustments may be adopted if factors such as credit risk are not
considered in the valuation models. Management judgement and estimates are required
for the selection of appropriate valuation parameters, assumptions and modeling
techniques. Further details will be discussed in Note 5.

Carrying amounts of derivative financial instruments as at 31 December 2015 are shown
in Note 21.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

3. Critical accounting estimates and judgements in applying
accounting policies (continued)

3.4 Held-to-maturity securities

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39 in classifying certain non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity as held-to-maturity
securities. This classification requires significant management judgement to evaluate the
Group’s intention and ability to hold such investments to maturity. If the Group fails to
hold these investments to maturity other than for specific circumstances defined in HKAS
39, such as selling an insignificant amount, selling close to maturity or due to significant
credit deterioration of such investments, it will be required to reclassify the entire portfolio
of financial assets as available-for-sale securities. The investments would then be
measured at fair value and not amortised cost.

Carrying amounts of held-to-maturity securities as at 31 December 2015 are shown in
Note 24.

3.5 Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets on unused tax losses are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that
can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits.

Deferred tax assets on unused tax credits are recognised. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognised, based upon the estimation of available tax credits and the possibility to
recover such deferred tax assets recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management

The Group is exposed to financial risks as a result of engaging in a variety of business
activities. The principal financial risks are credit risk, market risk (including currency risk and
interest rate risk) and liquidity risk. This note summarises the Group’s exposures to these
risks, as well as its objectives, risk management governance structure, policies and
processes for managing and the methods used to measure these risks.

Financial risk management framework

The Group’s risk management governance structure is designed to cover all business
processes and ensures various risks are properly managed and controlled in the course of
conducting business. The Group has a robust risk management organisational structure with
a comprehensive set of policies and procedures to identify, measure, monitor and control
various risks that may arise. These risk management policies and procedures are regularly
reviewed and updated to reflect changes in markets and business strategies. Various groups
of risk takers assume their respective responsibilities for risk management.

The Board of Directors, representing the interests of shareholders, is the highest
decision-making authority of the Group and has the ultimate responsibility for risk
management. The Board, with the assistance of its committees, has the primary
responsibility for the formulation of risk management strategies and ensuring that the Group
has an effective risk management system to implement these strategies.

The Risk Management Committee, a standing committee established by the Board of
Directors, is responsible for overseeing the Group's various types of risks, approving
high-level risk management policies and monitoring their implementation, approving
significant or high risk exposures or transactions.The Risk Management Committee would
refer any specific transaction to the Board if it is deemed so significant that Board approval is
desirable. The Audit Committee assists the Board in fulfilling its role in overseeing the
internal control system.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

Financial risk management framework (continued)

The Chief Executive is responsible for organizing and implementing the risk management
strategies and objectives established by the Board of Directors, managing various risks and
approving significant risk exposures or transactions within the authorization granted by the
Board of Directors.

Various units of the Group have their respective risk management responsibilities. Business
units act as the first line of defence while risk management units, which are independent
from the business units, are responsible for the day-to-day management of different kinds of
risks. Risk management units have the primary responsibilities for drafting, reviewing and
updating various risk management policies and procedures.

The Group has put in place appropriate internal control systems, including establishment of
an organisation structure that sets clear lines of authority and responsibility for monitoring
compliance with policies, procedures and limits. Proper reporting lines also provide sufficient
independence of the control functions from the business areas, as well as adequate
segregation of duties throughout the organisation which helps to promote an appropriate
internal control environment.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

Product development and risk monitoring

To ensure the effectiveness of risk assessment and monitoring, the Group has a
comprehensive product development and risk monitoring system where roles and
responsibilities of all related units are clearly defined and proper due diligence processes on
product development are in place.

In accordance with the strategic objectives set by the Board and the Management,
respective product management units are responsible for formulating business and product
development plans, and proceeding to specific product development activities. The strategic
development unit shall ensure the plans are aligned with the Group’s overall strategies. Units
that are responsible for risk management, legal, compliance and finance, etc. are
accountable for risk assessment and review.

Apart from product development, respective product management units shall work closely
with relevant risk evaluating units to identify and assess the risks of new products. Risk
evaluating units shall conduct independent review on the risk assessment results and the
corresponding risk management measures. Products can only be launched upon completion
of the product due diligence process to the satisfaction of all risk evaluating units.

A prudent approach is adopted in offering treasury products to our clients. All new treasury
products require approval from a special committee before launching.

4.1 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss that a customer or counterparty is unable to or unwilling to
meet its contractual obligations. Credit risk exists in the trading book and banking book,
as well as from on- and off-balance sheet transactions of the Group. It arises principally
from lending, trade finance and treasury businesses.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 EERE (8) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
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Credit risk management framework

The Group has formulated a comprehensive set of credit risk management policies and
procedures, and appropriate credit risk limits to manage and control credit risk that may
arise. These policies, procedures and credit risk limits are regularly reviewed and updated
to cope with changes in market conditions and business strategies.

The Group’s organisation structure establishes a clear set of authority and responsibility for
monitoring compliance with policies, procedures and limits.

The Credit and Loans Management Committee, a management committee authorised by
the Chief Executive, is responsible for the implementation of the credit risk management
strategies as well as the approval of credit policies. It also monitors the Group’s loan
portfolio, quality of credit asset and risk concentration level. Different units of the Group
have their respective credit risk management responsibilities. Business units act as the first
line of defence. The risk management units, which are independent from the business
units, are responsible for the day-to-day management of credit risks and have the primary
responsibilities for providing an independent due diligence through identifying, measuring,
monitoring and controlling credit risk to ensure an effective checks and balances, as well
as drafting, reviewing and updating credit risk management policies and procedures.
They report directly to the Credit and Loans Management Committee, Chief Executive and
Risk Management Committee.

NCB (China) sets up independent risk monitoring teams to monitor credit risk, and
submits management information and reports to the Bank on a regular basis.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 EERE (8) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
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Credit risk management framework (continued)

The Board of Directors is the ultimate source of credit authority. The Board of Directors
delegates credit approval authority to the Chief Executive. Based on magagement needs,
the Chief Executive can further delegate to the credit-related subordinates within the limit
authorised by the Board of Directors. The Group sets the limits of credit approval authority
according to the credit business nature, rating, the level of transaction risk, and the extent of
the credit exposure.

Credit risk measurement and control

In view of the rapidly changing market conditions, the Group has been continuously revising
its credit strategies and conducting rigorous reviews on the concerned portfolios.

Advances

Different credit approval and control procedures are adopted according to the level of risk
associated with the customer, counterparty or transaction. All credit applications are subject
to thorough risk assessment and proper approval. In general, most of the credit applications
will be reviewed and assessed by independent officer(s) of risk management unit(s) before
approval, with exceptions given to certain designated advances which satisfy certain
conditions. After funding being drawn, these designated advances will be (randomly)
reviewed by designated unit(s) which is(are) independent from the front line business units.
Obligor ratings (in terms of probability of default) and facility ratings (in terms of loss given
default) are assigned to credit applications for non-retail exposures to support credit
approval. Retail internal rating systems are deployed in the risk assessment of retail credit
transactions, including small business retail exposures, residential mortgage loans,
personal loans, etc. Loan grades, obligor and facility ratings as well as loss estimates (if
applicable) are used to support credit approval.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 EERE (8) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
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Credit risk measurement and control (continued)

Advances (continued)

The Group also uses loan grades, obligor ratings and loss estimates (if applicable) to
support monitoring, reporting and analysis of credit risk. For non-retail exposures, more
frequent rating review and closer monitoring are required for higher-risk customers. For
retail exposures, monthly updated internal ratings and loss estimates are used for credit
monitoring on a portfolio basis. More comprehensive review is required for obligors being
identified under high-risk pools.

The Group employs an internal master rating scale that can be mapped to Standard &
Poor’s external credit ratings. The structure of internal master rating scale is in compliance
with the requirement of the Banking (Capital) Rules under the Hong Kong Banking
Ordinance.

Regular or ad hoc credit risk management information reports are provided to the
Management, Risk Management Committee and the Board of Directors to facilitate their
continuous monitoring of credit risk.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 EEERE (8) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
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Credit risk measurement and control (continued)

Advances (continued)

In addition, the Group identifies credit concentration risk by industry, geography, customer
and counterparty. The Group monitors changes in counterparty credit risk, quality of the
credit portfolio and credit risk concentrations, and reports regularly to the Group’s
Management.

The Group adopts loan grading criteria which divides credit assets into five categories
with reference to the HKMA's guidelines, as below:

“Pass” represents loans where the borrower is current in meeting its repayment
obligations and full repayment of interest and principal is not in doubt.

“Special Mention” represents loans where the borrower is experiencing difficulties which
may threaten the Group’s position. Ultimate loss is not expected at this stage but could
occur if adverse conditions persist.

“Substandard” represents loans where the borrower displays a definable weakness that is
likely to jeopardise repayment.

“Doubtful” represents loans where collection in full is improbable and the Group expects
to sustain a loss of principal and/or interest, taking into account the net realisable value of
the collateral.

“Loss” represents loans which are considered uncollectible after all collection options
(such as the realisation of collateral or the institution of legal proceedings) have been
exhausted.
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WBERENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4, sREEEE (8) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 EERRE (8) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
EEREHE R e (&) Credit risk measurement and control (continued)
TS R T A Debt securities and derivatives

B NMETS 55 5 M EE b For investments in debt securities and securitisation assets, the obligor ratings or external
BENNE  REEGRE credit ratings, assessment of the underlying assets and credit limits setting on
A& NSRRI (S customer/security issuer basis are used for managing credit risk associated with the
FHEVAR ~ sl s 54 investment. For derivatives, the Group sets customer limits to manage the credit risk
PEENERENKESR involved and follows the same approval and control processes as applied for advances.
P REHFEITAEER On-going monitoring and stop-loss procedures are established.
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GEHERFERERS Settlement risk arises mainly from foreign exchange transactions with counterparties and
HFERRSNER S - IR also from derivatives transactions in any situation where a payment in cash, securities or
RETEALAIRSE ~ 58555 equities is made in the expectation of a corresponding receipt in cash, securities or
i 2L 57 57 4B R BE a0 HAAE equities. Daily settlement limits are established for each counterparty or customer to
JEWL 51 5% %2 5 ¥ Y B cover all settlement risk arising from the Group’s market transactions on any single day.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 E5RkE (8) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
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Collateral held as security and other credit enhancements

The valuation and management of collateral have been documented in the credit risk
management policies and procedures which cover acceptance criteria, validity of
collateral, loan-to-value ratio, haircut ratio, valuation and insurance, etc. The collateral is
revalued on a regular basis, though the frequency and the method used varies with the
type of collateral involved and the nature and the risk of the underlying credit. The Group
has established a mechanism to update the value of its main type of collateral, real estate
properties, with the use of public indices on a portfolio basis. Collateral is insured with the
Group as the beneficiary.

For loans guaranteed by a third party, the Group will assess the guarantor’s financial
condition, credit history and ability to meet obligations.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group did not hold any collateral that it was permitted to
sell or re-pledge in the absence of default by the borrower (2014: Nil).
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MRS () Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRERERE (8)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 E5RkE (8) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)

(A) EERRRRRE (A) Credit exposures
AREHY HKEEER The maximum credit exposure is the worst case scenario of exposure to the Group
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without taking into account any collateral held or other credit enhancements. For
on-balance sheet assets, the maximum exposure to credit risk equals their carrying
amount. For letters of guarantee issued, the maximum exposure to credit risk is the
maximum amount that the Group could be required to pay if the guarantees are
called upon. For loan commitment and other credit related liabilities, the maximum
exposure to credit risk is the full amount of the committed facilities.

The nature of the collateral held and other credit enhancements and their financial
effect to the different classes of the Group’s financial assets are as follows.

Balances and placements with banks and other financial institutions

These exposures are generally considered to be low risk due to the nature of the
counterparties. Collateral is generally not sought on these assets.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and financial investments

Collateral is generally not sought on debt securities.
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4. SRERERE (8)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 EERER (&)
(A) EEEBRRE (&)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

(A) Credit exposures (continued)
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Derivative financial instruments

The Master Agreement published by the International Swaps and Derivatives
Association, Inc. (“ISDA Master Agreement”) is the preferred agreement for
documenting derivatives activities of the Group. It provides the contractual
framework under which dealing activities of over-the-counter (“OTC") transactions
are conducted, and sets out close-out netting provisions upon termination following
the occurrence of an event of default or a termination event. In addition, if deemed
necessary, Credit Support Annex ("CSA") will be included to form part of the
Schedule to the ISDA Master Agreement. Under a CSA, collateral is passed from
one counterparty to another, as appropriate, to mitigate the exposures.

Advances and other accounts, contingent liabilities and commitments

The general types of collateral are disclosed on page 77. Advances and other
accounts, contingent liabilities and commitments are collateralised to the extent
considered appropriate by the Group taking account of the risk assessment of
individual exposures. The collateral coverage of advances to customers is analysed
on pages 91 to 92. The components and nature of contingent liabilities and
commitments are disclosed in Note 35. Regarding the commitments that are
unconditionally cancellable without prior notice, the Group would assess the
necessity to withdraw the credit line in case where the credit quality of a borrower
deteriorates. For contingent liabilities and commitments, 15.74% (2014: 12.62%)
was covered by collateral as at 31 December 2015.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Gross advances and other accounts before impairment allowances are summarised

by product type as follows:

Advances to customers
Personal
- Mortgages
- Credit cards
- Others
Corporate
- Commercial loans
- Trade finance

Trade bills

2015 2014
BETT BETIT
HK$'000 HK$'000

23,956,056 21,137,660
732,148 1,058,032
9,827,384 9,260,192
115,579,409 110,404,053
6,141,777 7,642,319
156,236,774 149,502,256
14,072,143 16,371,563
170,308,917 165,873,819

Advances with a specific repayment date are classified as overdue when the
principal or interest is past due and remains unpaid. Advances repayable by regular
instalments are classified as overdue when an instalment payment is past due and
remains unpaid. Advances repayable on demand are classified as overdue either
when a demand for repayment has been served on the borrower but repayment has
not been made in accordance with the instruction or when the advances have
continuously exceeded the approved limit that was advised to the borrower.

Advances are impaired and impairment losses are incurred if, and only if, there is

objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred and

that loss event(s) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the advances

that can be reliably estimated.
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WBERENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4, sREEEE (8) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 E&EE (8) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
(B) $EE= R HAERIE (B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)
€:-))
WA & B % If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on advances has been
HRCHBUREE incurred, the amount of loss is measured as the difference between the carrying
5% HREIEZE amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows generated by the
SRR T B R 2K 3R advances. Objective evidence that advances are impaired includes observable data
SRR E W E that comes to the attention of the Group about the loss events.
ZEREE S 8T
B E R AN E
B BaELT
HHHEE S A%
BIRIZR AR S -
AEERBUTHE The criteria that the Group uses to determine that there is objective evidence of an
BB RAERSR impairment loss include:
ELHERRE IR
- fBERANHEEKX - Significant financial difficulty incurred by the borrower;
HYFA 5 PRI
- HHEAEE - A breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in principal or interest
BIANA @175 payment;
BB AR e ]
B
- BB - For economic or legal reasons related to the borrower’s financial difficulty, the
IR - KEE Group has granted to the borrower a concession that it would not otherwise
TR B B A consider;
RZFZ R Al
ETERANER
TEefr B
- EHBEURER - Probable that the borrower will become bankrupt or undergo other financial
N e B reorganisation; or

1T B s © B

- HBASEHRER - Other observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
WA B &R R estimated future cash flows from such advances.
BB e

HRHAEE NI
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4.1 Credit risk (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

(a) Advances neither overdue nor impaired

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Advances that were neither overdue nor impaired are analysed by internal credit

grade as follows:

Advances to customers
Personal
- Mortgages
- Credit cards
- Others
Corporate

- Commercial loans 113,588,886

- Trade finance

Trade bills
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2015

TEE  REEAT
o Special Substandard fEst
Pass mention or below Total
BT BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
23,676,398 23,002 1,265 23,700,665
653,134 87 - 653,221
9,740,662 17,864 72 9,758,598
1,407,580 285 114,996,751
5,959,307 99,892 - 6,059,199
153,618,387 1,548,425 1,622 155,168,434
14,072,143 - - 14,072,143
167,690,530 1,548,425 1,622 169,240,577
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

(a) Advances neither overdue nor impaired (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2014
TERFE  WERELLT
&g Special  Substandard 4t
Pass mention or below Total
AT T BT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Advances to customers
Personal
- Mortgages 20,837,952 19,811 1,729 20,859,492
- Credit cards 988,572 - 99 988,671
- Others 9,187,486 3,660 1,363 9,192,509
Corporate
- Commercial loans 107,368,945 1,492,590 29,394 108,890,929
- Trade finance 7,368,171 163,793 - 7,531,964
145,751,126 1,679,854 32,585 147,463,565
Trade bills 16,371,563 - - 16,371,563
162,122,689 1,679,854 32,585 163,835,128

The occurrence of loss event(s) may not necessarily result in impairment loss
where the advances are fully collateralised. While such advances are of
“substandard” or lower grades, they are regarded as not being impaired and

have been included in the above tables.
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BPERK Advances to customers
EA Personal
- 1448 - Mortgages
- EAF - Credit cards
- HA - Others
A H] Corporate
- BEERK - Commercial loans
- BoRE - Trade finance

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

(b) Advances overdue but not impaired

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

The gross amount of advances overdue but not impaired is analysed as follows:

2015
AHHEE
3{E A
(RN AHGEE
6 {E A 6 {E A
wEA 3 @A Overdue BREHE
N for 14
Overdue six months Overdue i)
for or less for one 148
three but over year or less Overdue for
months three but over over one W=t
or less months six months year Total
BT T BT T BT T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
191,087 20 1,635 292 193,034
51,944 - - - 51,944
56,076 3,983 - 2,892 62,951
77,734 - - 17,384 95,118
18,863 6,201 - 1,207 26,271
395,704 10,204 1,635 21,775 429,318
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(B) SRS HAMNRE

(&
(b) HEHREEERK
(&
BPERK Advances to customers
EA Personal
- 1448 - Mortgages
- EAF - Credit cards
- HA - Others
A Corporate
- BEERK - Commercial loans
- BoRE - Trade finance

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

(b) Advances overdue but not impaired (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2014
AR
3{EH
(EEN=hic] A
6 {HH 6 {EH
A 3 {E A Overdue (ERN RG]
7Y for 14
Overdue six months Overdue EIHA
for or less for one i 14
three but over year or less Overdue for
months three but over over one 4EET
or less months six months year Total
AT AT AT AT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
246,890 4,993 - 7,087 258,970
31,892 - - - 31,892
47,856 2,441 - 6,014 56,311
523,957 18,936 1,160 1,090 545,143
7,488 24 - - 7,512
858,083 26,394 1,160 14,191 899,828
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4.1 Credit risk (continued)

(c) Impaired advances

4. Financial risk management (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

Advances individually identified to be impaired are analysed by product type as

follows:

Advances to customers
Personal
- Mortgages
- Credit cards
- Others
Corporate
- Commercial loans
- Trade finance

Impairment allowances
made in respect of
such advances

Current market value of collateral held
against the covered portion of such

advances to customers

Covered portion of such advances to

customers

Uncovered portion of such advances to

customers
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2015 2014

B AR

A e

R Market UEETER Market
Gross value of Gross value of
advances collateral advances collateral
BT BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
62,357 77,392 19,198 12,425
26,983 - 37,469 -
5,835 1,147 11,372 10,027
487,540 231,164 967,981 883,162
56,307 1,071 102,843 45,703
639,022 310,774 1,138,863 951,317

434,377 732,356

2015 2014

BT AT

HK$'000 HK$'000

310,774 951,317

230,073 637,382

408,949 501,481
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WBERENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4, sREEEE (8) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 E&EE (8) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
(B) #AES R EAIEE (B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)
(&
(c) BEEx (8) (c) Impaired advances (continued)
B EFHCERE The impairment allowances were made after taking into account the value of
-/ okivi collateral in respect of such advances.
1
fE{E -
N 20154E 12 H As at 31 December 2015, there were no impaired trade bills (2014: Nil).
31 H  ZERE
ZH 5 % B
( 2014 # :
fiE) o
¥ 7E 53 38 BORE Classified or impaired advances to customers are analysed as follows:
2B P ER
wE:
2015 2014
BT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHE T HEURE Gross classified or impaired advances to
B ER A customers 684,698 1,254,636
FHE T HEURE Gross classified or impaired advances to
& e AE RS customers as a percentage of gross
BB advances to customers
b 0.44% 0.84%
byl i = e € (|l Individually assessed impairment
S 7 R allowances made in respect of such
advances 433,567 731,598
i E oy B EORE Classified or impaired advances to customers represent advances which are either
ZERPENRRERE classified as “substandard”, “doubtful” or “loss” under the Group’s classification of
EAEHSERE loan quality, or individually assessed to be impaired.

20BN TR
oy~ TR K
FiEstR ) ERKEk(E
= fiti R B AR Y
&k e
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(B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

(d) Advances overdue for more than three months

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

The gross amount of advances overdue for more than three months is analysed as

follows:

2015 2014
5% PSR EEER % P R
Btk Bkt
% of gross % of gross
&%R advances to £%5E advances to
Amount customers Amount customers
AT T AT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
Gross advances to
customers which
have been
overdue for:
- six months or
less but over
three months 102,053 0.06% 261,805 0.17%
- one year or less
but over six
months 320,702 0.21% 153,074 0.10%
- over one year 203,026 0.13% 173,289 0.12%
Advances overdue
for over three
months 625,781 0.40% 588,168 0.39%
Individually
assessed
impairment
allowances
made in respect
of such
advances 412,534 505,549
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WBERENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4, sREEEE (8) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 E&EE (8) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
(B) #AES R EAIEE (B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)
(&
(d) wHABE 3 @A (d) Advances overdue for more than three months (continued)
ZER (&)
2015 2014
BT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000
Ao R Current market value of collateral held
ENEFERZ against the covered portion of such
AT E advances to customers 313,983 430,468
EatERIT L EE Covered portion of such advances to
R EE customers 228,914 284,182
ag IS Uncovered portion of such advances to
BEIERFEHR customers 396,867 303,986
i 3 & R B E Collateral held against overdue or impaired loans is principally represented by
BRI charges over business assets such as commercial and residential premises for
EEENE RS corporate loans and mortgages over residential properties for personal loans.
FHETHEHAE
ENREERFETE
F -~ EARER
H T {EEEE
YISk
A 2015 £ 12 H As at 31 December 2015, there were no trade bills overdue for more than three
31 H e H miAE months (2014 Nil).
WI3MAZEHHE

(2014 4 4 )
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WBERENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4, sREEEE (8) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 E&EE (8) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
(B) #AES R EAIEE (B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)
(&
(e) EEHALSK (e) Rescheduled advances
2015 2014
1528 = SRR AR 5% P EGRAEER
Btk B4yt
% of gross % of gross
£ advances to x| advances to
Amount customers Amount customers
AT HETT
HK$'000 HK$'000
KEHT FEFOFH Rescheduled
(TR aEER advances to
Mg EAER A 3 (@ H customers net
&R Eor) of amounts
included in
“Advances
overdue for
more than
three months” 1,329 0.00% 9,803 0.01%
L EHEKT TS Rescheduled advances are those advances that have been restructured or
A ONSD TN renegotiated because of deterioration in the financial position of the borrower or
PR 8 B A BE 0 40 of the inability of the borrower to meet the original repayment schedule.
HH %8 210 45 & Rescheduled advances, which have been overdue for more than three months
FEERERE under the revised repayment terms, are included in “Advances overdue for more
PGB g3 & than three months”.
HEE G Ikl
K EHE A
w3 EH
RIEFELE Tl
4 3 A Z &K
7 o
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MR EE (&)
4. SREREE (8

4.1 EERE (8)

(B) SRS HAMNRE
&
() EEEREPE

() BT 2
5 PR

LUT R & 5
B ZAT
SEOYEOT > H
(BE Vi VEE
IR R &R
BAZEER
HRAVEH S
NI

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

(f) Concentration of advances to customers

(i) Sectoral analysis of gross advances to customers

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

The following analysis of the gross advances to customers by industry sector is
based on the categories with reference to the completion instructions for the

HKMA return of loans and advances.

2015
B, ERRPLY  AARLY
HAdFEH RENHE AR AR
EEERGEE BERZESH BORME Individually ~ Collectively
Gross % covered by Classified assessed assessed
advances to  collateral or or prasiz] impairment impairment
customers other security impaired Overdue allowances allowances
AT BT T AT AT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEEHEME A Z &3 Loans for use in Hong Kong
TR4mEE Industrial, commercial and
financial
- WsgasE - Property development 5,448,761 15.36% - - - 14,435
- VI - Property investment 10,849,282 92.84% 29,794 24,466 - 110,979
- R - Financial concerns 4,497,199 9.53% - - - 9,638
- REEEAR A - Stockbrokers 480 100.00% - - - 4
- e R EER - Wholesale and retail trade 9,251,574 30.74% 87,956 103,927 65,156 69,887
- B - Manufacturing 8,523,132 23.30% 30,691 34,384 19,210 36,657
- i K - Transport and transport
equipment 4,316,243 7.66% - 360 - 13,381
- (RBES) - Recreational activities 141,637 0.76% - - - 204
- EENRHY - Information technology 741,295 2.40% 2,634 4,839 1,309 1,803
- HAth - Others 14,315,090 42.23% 19,729 25,474 16,498 71,945
PN Individuals
- BEEEHEERT - Loans for the purchase of
RN flats in Home Ownership
@E)é%f%ﬂ&*ﬂ Scheme, Private Sector
5 Participation Scheme
HEHESTEME
ﬁ%égﬁ’”@ and Tenants Purchase
T Scheme 364,199 99.88% 1,501 8,736 - 241
- BEEHM T - Loans for purchase of
E other residential
properties 12,304,337 99.86% 648 53,917 - 5,401
- HAth - Others 7,338,950 56.81% 2,461 27,195 1,410 4,712
TEEEFH 2 E34%  Total loans for use in Hong
Kong 78,092,179 50.43% 175,414 283,298 103,583 339,377
&SR Trade finance 6,141,777 33.44% 68,558 78,781 49,162 46,830
EFELIMER 2 &3 Loans for use outside Hong
Kong 72,002,818 39.30% 440,726 667,966 280,822 565,129
AR Gross advances to customers 156,236,774 44.63% 684,698 1,030,045 433,567 951,336
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MR EE (&)
4. SREREE (8

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 EERE (8)
(B) SRS HAMNRE

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

(&)
) EFEREFE
(&)

(i) TR B

(f) Concentration of advances to customers (continued)

(i) Sectoral analysis of gross advances to customers (continued)

B e
(4)
2014
A B L2 HETHEZ
HA A ST IR VAR VAR
FTEERGER wEEZE O SORE Individually ~ Collectively
Gross % covered by Classified assessed assessed
advances to collateral or or B impairment impairment
customers _other security impaired Overdue allowances allowances
BT BT BT BETT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EFAFEHZ B Loans for use in Hong Kong
TR4EE Industrial, commercial and
financial
- WsgasE - Property development 3,109,845 30.32% - - - 10,877
- VIEERE - Property investment 12,223,689 86.15% 9,397 35,519 1,322 119,117
- b - Financial concerns 2,001,248 21.71% - - - 5,040
- REEEER A - Stockbrokers 101,383 1.35% - - - 236
- MERBEE - Wholesale and retail trade 11,956,256 26.82% 92,507 308,788 26,800 84,717
- B - Manufacturing 6,307,305 23.80% 38,178 41,590 26,344 33,372
- 3y Ky R - Transport and transport
equipment 4,056,145 10.50% 30,386 6,486 12,159 14,822
- (RAES) - Recreational activities 56,908 1.97% - - - 133
- HilRHY - Information technology 1,728,779 1.80% 2,479 4,875 919 4,273
- Hith - Others 13,754,281 44.32% 9,630 15,346 6,830 81,038
PN Individuals
- BEEEHEERT - Loans for the purchase of
)~ FLA MRS flats in Home Ownership
TR SR ichgme, _Privgtr; Sector
N articipation Scheme
ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁglﬁ@ and Ter;ants Purchase
Tk Scheme 455,145 99.99% 2,006 12,250 - 226
- RS HM T - Loans for purchase of
=74 other residential
properties 10,333,678 99.51% 5,903 64,808 - 3,240
- EHFER - Credit card advances 20,012 - 609 - - 290
- HAt - Others 6,759,164 41.17% 5,411 38,361 782 5,835
TEEEFH 2 E34%  Total loans for use in Hong
Kong 72,863,838 50.36% 196,506 528,023 75,156 363,216
&R Trade finance 7,642,319 27.90% 102,867 110,355 73,200 59,473
EFELIMER 2 &3 Loans for use outside Hong
Kong 68,996,099 41.47% 955,263 1,249,484 583,242 815,833
AR Gross advances to customers 149,502,256 4511% 1,254,636 1,887,862 731,598 1,238,522
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MEERNEE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4, sREEEE (8) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 E&EE (8) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
(B) #AES R EAIEE (B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)
(&
) EEEXRERE (f) Concentration of advances to customers (continued)
(&
() #HiT¥ETE (i) Sectoral analysis of gross advances to customers (continued)
ZF R KA
()
AU 4 22 B8 1 The amounts of new impairment allowances charged to the income statement,
¥ B R E and classified or impaired loans written off during the year are shown below:
i+ BE
5 7E o3 JE Rk
EERATT :
2015 2014
WSHRE MR E
ey YRR pay-EY
R BAEERK i TRIEETK
! Classified or JKMEXERE  Classified or
- New impaired New impaired
impairment loans impairment loans
allowances written off allowances written off
BT BT BETIT AT
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEEAFH &K Loans for use in Hong Kong
TRl Industrial, commercial and financial
- Ve - Property development - - - R
- VA - Property investment 1,201 2,279 2,484 3,237
- ERE - Financial concerns 1,116 - - R
- BeEEAL - Stockbrokers - - - -
- JLEs R E e - Wholesale and retail trade 58,030 8,634 13,970 5,433
- Sl sE - Manufacturing 8,405 12,015 7,173 3,244
- i K E R - Transport and transport equipment - - 11,881 -
- IRIHES) - Recreational activities 55 - - R
- EERHY - Information technology 415 - 270 -
- HAtr - Others 36,413 25,400 3,283 470
{ELA Individuals
- EEEEEHESTE] - FL AR - Loans for the purchase of flats in
SRR B RS E LR Home Ownership Scheme,
5‘%@? R Private Sector Participation
B X Scheme and Tenants Purchase
Scheme - - - -
- WS H M YR B - Loans for purchase of other
residential properties 223 - 2 -
- [EHRER - Credit card advances - - 32 -
- HAth - Others 14,413 16,002 18,262 17,193
TG > S dEER Total loans for use in Hong Kong 120,271 64,330 57,357 29,577
oA Trade finance 85,798 91,386 55,594 4,339
FEEHRLIMER 2 &3 Loans for use outside Hong Kong 935,173 992,314 899,775 344,936
gy et Gross advances to customers 1,141,242 1,148,030 1,012,726 378,852
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WBERENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4, sREEEE (8) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 E&EE (8) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
(B) &&= R EAIEE (B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)
(&)
) EEEXRERE (f) Concentration of advances to customers (continued)
(&
(i) 2 Hb B & 4§ 4 (i) Geographical analysis of gross advances to customers

BramPaER
THIRENE F The following geographical analysis of advances to customers is based on the
B i & locations of the counterparties, after taking into account the transfer of risk. For
B i B R 1 an advance to customer guaranteed by a party situated in a country different
L5 F 2R from the customer, the risk will be transferred to the country of the guarantor.

TEH > MR R
JE BRI A 2R -

HRERPERZ
¥ Or A BT AE 3
B2 = F AE
ENERNUE st
R EERA
Z e -
- =y=¢ et Gross advances to customers
2015 2014
BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
T Hong Kong 88,083,058 73,959,116
] P Y Mainland of China 61,013,223 69,650,228
At Others 7,140,493 5,892,912
156,236,774 149,502,256
MEPEERE Collectively assessed impairment
EIEtHE Y allowances in respect of the gross
it Z A # advances to customers
#
T Hong Kong 426,019 412,140
o (57 AT Mainland of China 452,571 730,437
HAth Others 72,746 95,945
951,336 1,238,522
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WBERENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4, sREEEE (8) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 E&EE (8) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
(B) #AES R EAIEE (B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)
(&
) EEEXRERE (f) Concentration of advances to customers (continued)
(&
(i) #2233 & I 4y (ii) Geographical analysis of gross advances to customers (continued)
B BEFER

HaEd ()

BHIEEK Overdue advances
2015 2014
BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
T Hong Kong 276,118 332,232
o B Pyt Mainland of China 739,435 1,546,827
HoAh Others 14,492 8,803
1,030,045 1,887,862
MAH S E Individually assessed impairment
8 BIEEfE 2 allowances in respect of the overdue
BUE advances
T Hong Kong 51,497 52,960
R Y HE Mainland of China 368,279 546,644
HoAtl Others 436 1,448
420,212 601,052
MAH S E Collectively assessed impairment
4HEEE (L~ allowances in respect of the overdue
JRAELEAR advances
T Hong Kong 3,741 6,660
o B Pyt Mainland of China 3,183 6,844
HAh Others 56 20
6,980 13,524
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MR EE (&)
4. SREREE (8

4.1 EERE (8)

(B) SRS HAMNRE
&
) EFEREFE
&

(i) 4% 3t W 3 oy
Bz P ER

HaEe ()

2 53 JR R
EERK

A
At
HAth

B E S BB
BEERE
AR
BB RERE

A
o At
HAth

REY g s
BRAE B AE
HEFEZ
B LER

HE
At

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

Classified or impaired advances

Hong Kong
Mainland of China
Others

Individually assessed impairment
allowances in respect of the
classified or impaired advances

Hong Kong
Mainland of China
Others

Collectively assessed impairment
allowances in respect of the
classified or impaired advances

Hong Kong
Mainland of China
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(f) Concentration of advances to customers (continued)

(ii) Geographical analysis of gross advances to customers (continued)

2015 2014
AT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
131,490 151,434
552,753 1,101,806
455 1,396
684,698 1,254,636
59,480 55,235
373,651 674,915
436 1,448
433,567 731,598
1,043 3,524
1,187 1,609
2,230 5,133
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A 31 AFrEE
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122,509,000 JT
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35 NCB #1731 % 441

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

(C) Repossessed assets

During the year, the Group obtained assets by taking possession of collateral held as
security. The nature and carrying value of these assets held as at 31 December are

summarised as follows:

Commercial properties
Industrial properties
Residential properties
Other

2015 2014
BT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000

4,251 -
80,250 -
13,968 -

- 583
98,469 583

The estimated market value of repossessed assets held by the Group as at 31
December 2015 amounted to HK$122,509,000 (2014: HK$4,906,000). The
repossessed assets comprise properties in respect of which the Group has acquired
access or control (e.g. through court proceedings or voluntary actions by the
proprietors concerned) for release in full or in part of the obligations of the borrowers.

When the repossessed assets are not readily convertible into cash, the Group may

consider the following alternatives:

- adjusting the selling prices

- selling the loans together with the assets

- arranging loan restructuring
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

(D) Balances and placements with banks and other financial institutions

The following tables present an analysis of balances and placements with banks and
other financial institutions that are neither overdue nor impaired as at 31 December by
rating agency designation.

2015
A3 BIF

Aaa & A3 Lower LR, g

Aaa to A3 than A3 Unrated Total

AT AT BETIT BT

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Central banks 16,038,647 - - 16,038,647
Banks and other

financial
institutions 23,767,541 17,650,869 3,250,385 44,668,795
39,806,188 17,650,869 3,250,385 60,707,442
2014
A3 LI

Aaa F A3 Lower e HaEt

Aaa to A3 than A3 Unrated Total

AT AT AT BT

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Central banks 18,694,761 - - 18,694,761
Banks and other

financial
institutions 20,208,603 20,003,535 16,963,308 57,175,446

38,903,364 20,003,535 16,963,308 75,870,207

As at 31 December 2015, there were no overdue or impaired balances and
placements with banks and other financial institutions (2014: Nil).
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WBERENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4, sREEEE (8) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 E&EE (8) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
(E) BHREAREXE (E) Debt securities and certificates of deposit
N2 B DL TR The following tables present an analysis of the carrying values of debt securities and
2 (BB 85 Bk certificates of deposit by issue rating. In the absence of such issue ratings, the ratings
SO R - TEMEE T T5T designated for the issuers are reported.
BEIEIT - FilEr s
1T ANHIRFER R -
2015
A3 DT
Aal & Aa3 Al E A3 Lower FESTAR et
Aaa Aalto Aa3 Alto A3 than A3 Unrated Total
BT BT BT BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
o] it RS A Available-for-sale
securities 3,814,391 27,409,836 16,575,057 1,781,530 2,298,167 51,878,981
FrAEFHIHE Held-to-maturity
securities 208,732 2,257,798 - - - 2,466,530
B EER Loans and receivables - - 585,792 - - 585,792
INE{ESR(EET AJEZE  Financial assets at fair
A REE value through profit
or loss - 6,714,292 249,280 - - 6,963,572

4,023,123 36,381,926 17,410,129 1,781,530 2,298,167 61,894,875

2014
A3 DIF
Aal £ Aa3 Al = A3 Lower SEETAR 4=t
Aaa Aal to Aa3 Alto A3 than A3 Unrated Total
AT AT P DT AT AT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
o] it eSS Available-for-sale
securities 5,179,077 20,657,187 11,750,008 448,511 4,364,791 42,399,574
FrAEFHIHE Held-to-maturity
securities 243,450 1,759,590 615,350 - - 2,618,390
B EUGER Loans and receivables - - 62,421 - 2,012,173 2,074,594
N ESR(EET AJEZS  Financial assets at fair
ZERhEE value through profit
or loss 4,589,985 1,309,309 255,919 - - 6,155,213
10,012,512 23,726,086 12,683,698 448,511 6,376,964 53,247,771
2015412 H 31 H4A8 As at 31 December 2015, there were no impaired or overdue debt securities or
B B I 2 B 5 5 certificates of deposit (2014: Nil).

A (2014 4 @ fE) -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 TR 4.2 Market risk

T 55 L 2 15 A < i o 35
{EAE (BB - ISR - ESEH
&~ PR ) B
HRATSINE ~ FIIZ ~ REZERIPS
an A (E R B AR T AE
SRR ER AR « AL
9] o 2 o ) T 55 L (e
4 R b S AR Y P
fhy -

G EE A - BIRE
A 5 B Y L e 2 L
SEISHR RN - (REE5EE
JeR g " B A A AR ) B
FB AREHESEET
FTRERE AR TS - (e HE
BRI S -

5 4 e i P 2
B AVE R m R &
EELUREE T EEE
HEEd SEEHAEM
iR RE AL - & FIH
> HRHRT - mREEE
frEanmYE-EERA
RIET AR EHE B
S g A B T 5 IR L
DUR & B BUCR A FR AR AT
L S CRAE AE A 51
T35 g H 2 I T 3%
KPP - bR
H MBI B S/ RED
% AE Y L B PR AR A 1T R
2 Sl E R R R
R EEA B R
R\ e PR A > SR EIIERS ) 1=
JEEEARHRE - FE (b
) B L N R R
B - B H A TSRS R
PREFRI TSI > AE S A
FATHRACEEE R AR -

Market risk refers to the risk of loss arising from movements in the value of foreign
exchange, interest rate, equity and commodity positions held by the Group due to the
volatility of financial market price (foreign exchange rate, interest rate, equity price,
commodity price). The Group adopts a moderate market risk appetite to achieve a balance
between risk and return.

The Group’s objective in managing market risk is to secure healthy growth of the treasury
business, by effective management of potential market risk in the Group’s business,
according to the Group’s overall risk appetite and strategy of treasury business on the
basis of a well-established risk management regime and related management measures.

In accordance with the Group’s corporate governance principles in respect of risk
management, the Board and Risk Management Committee, Senior Management and
functional units perform their duties and responsibilities to manage the Group’s market
risk. The risk management units are responsible for assisting Senior Management to
perform their day-to-day duties, independently monitoring the market risk profile and
compliance of management policies and limits of the Group to ensure that the aggregate
and individual market risks are within acceptable levels. Independent units are assigned to
monitor the risk exposure against risk limits on a daily basis, together with profit and loss
reports submitted to Senior Management on a regular basis, while limit excesses should
be reported at once when they occur. NCB (China) sets up independent risk monitoring
teams to monitor daily market risk and limit compliance, and submit management
information and reports to the Bank on a regular basis.
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WBERENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4, sREEEE (8) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 iR (&) 4.2 Market risk (continued)

IR E e T 5 R S The Group sets up market risk indicators and limits to identify, measure, monitor and
TR, FRAE > FHN %A ~ =1 control market risk. Major risk indicators and limits include but are not limited to VAR,
8~ BRIz 1 T 35 R Stop Loss, Open Position, Stress Testing and Sensitivity Analysis (Basis Point Value). To
fg - FEEE SR EE meet management requirements, major risk indicators and limits are classified into four
EFEERPE B~ 1k levels, and are approved by the Risk Management Committee, Asset and Liability
FEZE - WrZEE ~ BRTHIE, Management Committee or Senior Management respectively. Treasury business units
DLR SR 5 (LB (E are required to conduct their business within approved market risk indicators and limits.

B) % - 2R
IREEREHFBEE D R
POfEEsk > o pl R E
HEEE GEAREH
ZEgNEEERAR
HEAE B FRALNTIERZ
Y T 355 R i i A AL PR A

HfE| N BREESER -

(A) ElgE (A) VAR
AEEEHREEE S The Group uses the VAR to measure and report general market risks to the Risk
R — R i RS 0 I Management Committee and Senior Management on a periodic basis. The Group
CHREREESHEES adopts a uniformed VAR calculation model, using a historical simulation approach
gHEEEHEABR and two years of historical market data, to calculate the VAR of the Group and the
& o KEERHS— Bank over one-day holding period with a 99% confidence level, and sets up the VAR
o SR (E ST SR limit of the Group and the Bank.
PR SRS - DA
BRI LTS
BRE2R - 5HH9%
EEKE TR
AN TR

AHATHYEPRE > I
SEAEENIASR T
Y JE g EL PR AH -
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WBERENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4, sREEEE (8) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 iR (&) 4.2 Market risk (continued)
(A) EE (8 (A) VAR (continued)
Nl A £ [ — The following table sets out the VAR for all general market risk exposure1 of the
FE T 35 L B B A Y Group.
JEgfE
24 24 24
47 |[R12H31H B{EEE EEEE  PeRE
At Minimum for Maximum for Average for
Year |31 December the year the year the year
BT BT T BETT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
S ER T E b B VAR for all market risk 2015 939 559 1,387 861
2014 635 635 1,901 1,181
PR i\ > b {E VAR for foreign exchange risk 2015 714 463 1,398 820
2014 544 544 1,975 1,145
RAIESE i VAR for interest rate risk 2015 225 53 301 176
2014 274 225 883 644
i Note:
1R LR N A M i 1. Structural FX positions have been excluded.
HYEFR{E -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 mEER (8D
(A EEE (8

4.2 Market risk (continued)

(A) VAR (continued)

e 2 JE e {2
i 55 JE g 7Y — IH
SRR BAHE

Although VAR is a valuable guide to risk, it should always be viewed in the context of
its limitations. For example:

PR - i

- BH TS — the use of historical market data as a proxy for estimating future events may not
b R encompass all potential events, particularly those which are extreme in nature;
REEB K ATA A

REHIRAVIEIL >
HJE — St 1F
D

- —REEHINETE — the use of a one-day holding period assumes that all positions can be liquidated or
AR A E hedged in one day. This may not fully reflect the market risk arising at times of

iy A —H
NEBBE - 2
T B s R a0 BE 52
& W5 R
b - CHAEAIER
B HR(EHF - FTAE
REAE—RFFH
BB S
FrAva

REEE - EHA
9% & {5 K F
o HIRAZEIE
It AE K S BL AR
BE B AT
Ei= VY4

JEL B (L 2 LB 3K
I ] 4 o Y B
M rEaTEAAE > [N
I 3 A — T SR
22 5 W B P Y J

b -

severe illiquidity, when a one-day holding period may be insufficient to liquidate or
hedge all positions fully;

— the use of a 99% confidence level, by definition, does not take into account losses
that might occur beyond this level of confidence; and

— VAR is calculated on the basis of exposures outstanding at the close of business
and therefore does not necessarily reflect intra-day exposures.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 HiEREE (&) 4.2 Market risk (continued)
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(A) EsE (8 (A) VAR (continued)

REEE T4y T R The Group recognises these limitations by formulating stress test indicators and limits
b 5= F R to assess and manage the market risk uncovered by VAR. The stress testing
M > RIIE - filE TR programme of the market risk includes sensitivity testing on changes in risk factors
T RS B R PR %E with various degrees of severity, as well as scenario analysis on historical events
DB A F s 5 J e including the 1997 Asian Financial Crisis and 2008 Financial Tsunami, etc.
EAEWEN TS

JE\F o TR R

R AL 4R (] J

P AL 22 50 B 1Y R U

(B) shiEmks (B) Currency risk
AREENEENE The Group’s assets and liabilities are denominated in major currencies, particularly
BEPIEATT =0T the HK dollar, the US dollar and Renminbi. To ensure the currency risk exposure of
FARBEFTRE the Group is kept to an acceptable level, risk limits (e.g. Position and VAR limit) are
We o Fufitelr s N f used to serve as a monitoring tool. Moreover, the Group seeks to minimise the gap
RIERFEET#EY between assets and liabilities in the same currency. Foreign exchange contracts (e.g.

AR ALEER R
BRPRER (BILNEEHEE K
JE\BSERRAER ) 1 R
ETH - I Ak
IR WD [E] —
BRI EEAAR
FHC > A A A
ME &4 (ISP
) BN
BT EE A RSP R
ez

FX swaps) are usually used to manage FX risk associated with foreign
currency-denominated assets and liabilities.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 mEERE (8D
(B) SMEREER (&)

4.2 Market risk (continued)

(B) Currency risk (continued)

TRITMAEHNA
HEXR S - JEHER

Z K G A

The following is a summary of the Group’s major foreign currency exposures arising
from trading, non-trading and structural positions and is prepared with reference to the
completion instructions for the HKMA return of foreign currency position.

AR 2 AR T
b - WS HEARHEE
HINEERZ 28
B RN IE#H TS~
T4 -
2015
EETTEE
Equivalent in thousand of HK$
HAdyhEg VAN R
=T Other Total
us AR foreign foreign
Dollars Renminbi currencies currencies
REEE Spot assets 62,789,261 105,966,748 14,036,470 182,792,479
IS E E Spot liabilities (56,280,126) (96,346,613) (10,103,847) (162,730,586)
HHAE A Forward purchases 23,762,419 7,770,358 2,767,918 34,300,695
B Forward sales (28,585,949) (17,344,597) (6,688,061) (52,618,607)
R Net long position 1,685,605 45,896 12,480 1,743,981
s EE T AE Net structural position 293,056 8,431,220 - 8,724,276
2014
BT ITEE
Equivalent in thousand of HK$
HAth s PANL
ESSR Other Total
us PN foreign foreign
Dollars Renminbi currencies currencies
REEE Spot assets 50,714,856 129,625,777 10,170,515 190,511,148
IS E E Spot liabilities (49,057,989)  (113,019,787) (9,087,139) (171,164,915)
HHAE A Forward purchases 23,258,343 8,581,087 2,839,602 34,679,032
EHE Forward sales (24,806,626) (25,023,970) (3,877,531) (53,708,127)
R Net long position 108,584 163,107 45,447 317,138
s E R FAE Net structural position 277,715 8,414,836 - 8,692,551
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WBERENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SREBERE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)
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4.2 FiEERE (8) 4.2 Market risk (continued)
(C) FIZRfz (C) Interest rate risk

FII o2 il e 2 5 R ) Interest rate risk means the risks to a bank’s earnings and economic value arising from
K EEEER movements in interest rate and term structures of the bank’s asset and liability positions.
PREEEZERHE The Group’s interest rate risk exposures are mainly structural. The major types of
BN 7] AE HEER interest rate risk from structural positions are:

17 B e WA s A 7%

SR EEP SN S

(B ) ) 25 o o 2

T H SR R

B dEEEREr T

SRR ) B -

- Repricing risk: mismatches in the maturity or repricing periods of assets and liabilities
that may affect net interest income;

- Basis risk: different pricing basis for different transactions resulting that the yield on
assets and cost of liabilities may change by different amounts within the same
repricing period,;

- Yield curve risk: non-parallel shifts in the yield curve that may have an adverse impact
on net interest income or economic value; and

- Option risk: exercise of the options embedded in assets, liabilities or off-balance sheet
items that can cause a change in the cash flows of assets and liabilities.
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WBERRNE: (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4, SRiEBERE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 FiEERE (8) 4.2 Market risk (continued)
©) Fi=REEE (&) (C) Interest rate risk (continued)
7 [ Ja o P 2 The Group'’s risk management framework applies also to interest rate risk management.
AL IS The Asset and Liability Management Committee exercises its oversight of interest rate

JE B B o AR
FrE R B it
HY (#RT ?F*U?m
MEHECR) » BiE
BHEEHZAEgH
RETEHEEREF
FEEHIRE - W
BB T JAR

risk in accordance with the “Banking Book Interest Rate Risk Management Policy”
approved by Risk Management Committee. Financial Management Division is
responsible for interest rate risk management. With the cooperation of the Treasury
Division, Financial Management Division assists the Asset and Liability Management
Committee to perform day-to-day interest rate risk management. Its roles include, but
are not limited to, the formulation of management policies, selection of methodologies,
setting of risk indicators and limits, assessment of target balance sheet, monitoring of
the compliance with policies and limits, and submission of interest rate risk management

JEbRE B EE 5
FREECET » M5
mfﬁr‘é B EE A
HEHZ B gHE
H %E’W’FUZAEHF?EE
TR - AEESR
PR I A2 B B IR
R EEEHY
% B R R
FOPRAE - 5Ffh H AR
BAEAMRVER
B R e B
BUR B [REHBITIH
T I’rﬂ%@i@u&
JE\ b B ZE B 4R
2 S e L

At
=F °©

reports to the Management and Risk Management Committee.
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WBERRNE: (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SREBERE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 TiEER (8) 4.2 Market risk (continued)
©) Fi=REEE (&) (C) Interest rate risk (continued)
72 [EH] 5% E ) 3R The Group sets out interest rate risk indicators and limits to identify, measure, monitor

b fE i S PREE >
FERE - BT E - B
ST 42 R R
b o FEEEIEE
PR E AR
REETEERC - F
RAERE - A
o~ KB E A
(PVBP) ~ JHFI B
BEhEE R (NI ~ 4807
B EILLZR(EV)
% o TR RIER
FIBRZE &5y = (1 =
& > oy Al R
HEAE  BEA
EEHZ G LT
B RIS - RKIE
=R R B 1 75 3 75
B MR AE IR
I 5 A O 2 i [ T
BB - &
S SRATHR T
B S BT SE T AT
B BE AL RSB T
JE B SR o A
Rl HB AR A
REE > WF R
T ) 2 o i i 2
HHIEE S5 - A
o L Y T EE L
SR BT
JE B 3 R B K
2 FAWEREE
ZEEHA -

and control interest rate risk. The indicators and limits include, but are not limited to,
repricing gap limits, basis risk, duration, price value of a basis point (“PVBP”), net
interest income sensitivity ratio (“NII”), economic value sensitivity ratio (“EV”). The
indicators and limits are classified into three levels, which are approved by the Risk
Management Committee, Asset and Liability Management Committee and Deputy
General Manager of Middle-office respectively. Risk-taking business units are required
to conduct their business within the boundary of the interest rate risk limits. Before
launching a new product or business in the banking book, the relevant departments are
required to go through a risk assessment process, which includes the assessment of
underlying interest rate risk and consideration of the adequacy of current risk monitoring
mechanism. Any material impact on interest rate risk noted during the risk assessment
process will be submitted to Risk Management Committee for approval.
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WBERRNE: (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. $REBERE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 HEEE (8) 4.2 Market risk (continued)
(C) FI=mbx (&) (C) Interest rate risk (continued)

AR # L & NIl and EV assess the impact of interest rate movement on the Group'’s net interest
(N 7R 58 75 1 (L Oz income and capital base. They are the Group’s key interest rate risk indicators. The
& L1 3R (EV) Kz Bt 1] former assesses the impact of interest rate movement on net interest income as a
R Eh S EH A percentage to the projected net interest income for the year. The latter assesses the
B A& AR impact of interest rate movement on economic value (i.e. the net present value of cash
2 EAEEE flows of assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet items discounted using market interest
PRI i 1 B rate) as a percentage to the latest capital base. Limits are set by the Risk Management
E - gl = Committee on these two indicators to monitor and control the Group’s banking book
| 32 S B LG 5 interest rate risk.

FIE M A EE &

FETEHF R A

IVELR R E A
RELBIRIT LR
HECEE ISR
ITEAVERE &k
AN EH T <82
TRHTFERE A2
G BT B A LB
b mlmEHZE A
G i W R R
SE R > FZACEHIRD
PERIAEEIRITIR
e

AKEERABES The Group uses scenario analyses and stress tests to assess the banking book interest
AT AR T3 R rate risk that the Group would face under adverse circumstances. Scenario analyses
E PHEARF IR and stress tests are also used to assess the impact on net interest income arising from
RATHR FTREZKZ 1Y the optionality of savings deposits and the prepayment of mortgage loans.

FZR b - 175 S04

TR 7 038 [ B P

RHRBEEFRE

P izt P

T2 R IR T F

IR AR 2 -
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WBERRNE: (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. $REBERE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 TiEER (8) 4.2 Market risk (continued)
(C) FI=mbx (&) (C) Interest rate risk (continued)
A EE[E S The Group is principally exposed to HK Dollar, US Dollar and Renminbi in terms of
IC EITT A EEF] interest rate risk. As at 31 December 2015, if HK Dollar, US Dollar and Renminbi market
HJEfE - BiE 2015 interest rates had a 100 basis point parallel upward shift of the yield curve in relevant
FI12H31H # currency with other variables held constant, the sensitivities on net interest income over
HBIC FEIT AR a twelve-month period and on reserves for the Group would have been as follows:
H WS g 4 AR
/% 100 {EFLES -
H MR R A G R
T HEEARK 12
{18 H 83 FE WA
J 3 (6 Y LR
Wk
12 F 31 HEARFK 12 (@A
RN E
Impact on net interest income 712 H 31 AR e
over the next twelve months Impact on reserves
at 31 December at 31 December
2015 2014 2015 2014

AT BETT AT AT T

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT HK Dollar 298,266 256,299 (79,004) (46,786)
ETT US Dollar (74,762) (32,688) (114,872) (60,416)
AN Renminbi (39,332) (13,535) (301,279) (324,817)
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WBERRNE: (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. $REBERE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)
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4.2 TiEER (8) 4.2 Market risk (continued)
(C) FI=mbx (&) (C) Interest rate risk (continued)

ol s R R B The overall positive impact on net interest income of the above currencies has
ONGOE:S A1 decreased when compared with 2014 and is mainly because of the widened short term
Rty 2014 - JF /0 F negative gaps in US Dollar and Renminbi. Reserves would have been reduced because
HHRETRAR of the expected reduction in valuation of available-for-sale securities due to a parallel
i L5 g () 4 B AE shift up of 100 basis points in the yield curve. The reduction of reserves is increased
SR RN & R ISR compared with 2014 because the size of available-for-sale securities in capital market is
g - [EIRS > AT fkH increased.

EE s RAmE

The sensitivities above are for illustration only and are based on several assumptions,
including but not limited to the change in the correlation between interest rates of
relevant currencies, parallel movement of interest rates, the absence of actions that
would be taken to mitigate the impact of interest rate risk, the effectiveness of hedge
accounting, all positions being assumed to run to maturity, behavioural assumptions of
products in which actual repricing date differs from contractual repricing date or
products without contractual maturity. The above exposures form only a part of the
Group’s overall interest rate risk exposures.
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MRS () Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRERERE (8)

4.2 TEERE (8)
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 Market risk (continued)

(C) Interest rate risk (continued)
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The tables below summarise the Group’s on-balance sheet exposure to interest rate risk
as at 31 December. Included in the tables are the assets and liabilities at carrying
amounts, categorised by the earlier of contractual repricing date and maturity date.

2015
—z =7 TER
—fEAN =@A  +=ER —2H£E  A#AENE Non-
Up to 1to3 3 to 12 1to5 Over interest- =t
1 month months months years 5 years bearing Total
AWToT  BETOT BT BT E¥TOL BETRT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Assets
Cash and balances with banks
and other financial institutions 50,565,792 - - - - 3,679,013 54,244,805
Placements with banks and
other financial institutions
maturing between one and
twelve months - 3,157,041 3,899,744 - - - 7,056,785
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 1,762,994 2,479,360 2,471,938 249,280 - - 6,963,572
Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 696,266 696,266
Advances and other accounts 107,765,185 28,446,478 27,748,294 4,792,519 171,538 -168,924,014
Financial investments
- Available-for-sale 8,601,020 10,455,974 14,442,944 18,494,300 356,810 4,613 52,355,661
- Held-to-maturity - - 298,771 2,167,759 - - 2,466,530
- Loans and receivables 182,257 48,142 355,393 - - - 585,792
Investment properties - - - - - 414,736 414,736
Properties, plant and equipment - - - - - 7,008,020 7,008,020
Other assets (including current
and deferred tax assets) 31 - - - - 4,347,852 4,347,883
Assets held for sale - - - - - 132,729 132,729
Total assets 168,877,279 44,586,995 49,217,084 25,703,858 528,348 16,283,229 305,196,793
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 Market risk (continued)

(C) Interest rate risk (continued)

2015
—=z =% TR
—fEAN =@A  +=ER —2HE  A#AENE Non-
Up to 1to 3 3 to 12 1to5 Over interest- st
1 month months months years 5 years bearing Total
BE¥ToT ABNTT BWTT B¥TT B¥TT AN BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Liabilities
Deposits and balances from
banks and other financial
institutions 19,054,571 2,501,295 6,689,467 - - 2,715,841 30,961,174
Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss 1,084,486 1,907,861 1,583,009 - - - 4,575,356
Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 302,944 302,944
Deposits from customers 135,919,721 34,269,925 30,101,149 5,512,157 - 12,459,031 218,261,983
Other accounts and provisions
(including current and
deferred tax liabilities) 1,666,422 2,713,701 6,158,633 454,913 19,427 2,961,586 13,974,682
Liabilities associated with assets
held for sale - - - - - 21,884 21,884
Total liabilities 157,725,200 41,392,782 44,532,258 5,967,070 19,427 18,461,286 268,098,023
Interest sensitivity gap 11,152,079 3,194,213 4,684,826 19,736,788 508,921 (2,178,057) 37,098,770
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WBERRNE: (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SREBERE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 TiEERE (8) 4.2 Market risk (continued)
(C) FI=mbx (&) (C) Interest rate risk (continued)
2014
—F =% FEtE
—fEAAN =fEA +=@EA —EHFE  AFMDLE Non-
Up to 1t 3 3 to 12 l1to5 Over interest- Y
1 month months months years 5 years bearing Total

BT OBNTE  OBNTIE BT BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

B Assets
EEH S RERSRTREM  Cash and balances with banks
SRbtERErsLEs and other financial institutions 54,183,243 - - - - 4,099,557 58,282,800

ESRT R SR — % Placements with banks and
+Z{E B NFE Y e R other financial institutions

e maturing between one and
twelve months - 9,477,006 8,703,756 - - - 18,180,762
INHEE BT AR 2 &Rl Financial assets at fair value
L through profit or loss 470,000 2,671,893 2,757,401 255,919 - - 6,155,213
TEsmTE Derivative financial instruments - - B B - 430,072 439,072
SRR HA AR Advances and other accounts 108,282,638 31,356,774 20,553,491 3,451,440 259,356 - 163,903,699
LRMEE Financial investments
- At E - Available-for-sale 2,375,913 10,487,111 12,504,107 16,466,480 565,963 75,766 42,475,340
- FEREIHH - Held-to-maturity - - - 1,998,756 619,634 - 2,618,390
- BRI FEUGR - Loans and receivables - 620,262 1,454,332 - - - 2,074,594
& Investment properties - - - - - 1,280,271 1,280,271
Y ~ S5t Rl Properties, plant and equipment - - - - - 7,328,497 7,328,497
HitnEE (BEEERIEE Other assets (including deferred
) tax assets) 2,208 - - - - 1,163,407 1,165,615
HEGH Total assets 165,314,002 54,613,046 45,973,087 22,172,595 1,444,953 14,386,570 303,904,253
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WBERRNE: (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4, $RiEBERE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 TiEERE (8) 4.2 Market risk (continued)
(C) FI=mbx (&) (C) Interest rate risk (continued)
2014
—& =% FEtE
—fEAAN =fEA +=@A —EHFE  AFMLE Non-
Up to 1to3 3to 12 1to5 Over interest- 4E=t
1 month months months years 5 years bearing Total

BT OBETT BT OBNTL  EWTT OBETT  BETE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

AaE Liabilities
$RAT R HA R R L Deposits and balances from
&S banks and other financial
institutions 18,391,118 9,332,830 8,050,874 - - 1,960,789 37,735,611
INHEE BT AR 2 &R Financial liabilities at fair value
H“E through profit or loss 1,978,491 873,945 2,118,257 - - - 4,970,693
M TE Derivative financial instruments - - . - - 278506 278,506
B Deposits from customers 122,791,320 36,089,981 32,061,913 9,455,287 - 9,235,434 209,633,935
HAMBEIE R A (RIFERERT Other accounts and provisions
FRIE FOEIERRIE A& () (including current and
deferred tax liabilities) 5111,293 2,685,535 4,055,058 194,043 736 4,343,999 16,390,664
A fEEE Total liabilities 148,272,222 48,982,291 46,286,102 9,649,330 736 15,818,728 269,009,409
IR BR Interest sensitivity gap 17,041,780 5,630,755  (313,015) 12,523,265 1,444,217 (1,432,158) 34,894,844
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WBERFENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. $REBERE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 WEEEERE 4.3 Liquidity risk
REE SR EEIRTT Liquidity risk is the risk that banks fail to provide sufficient funds to grow assets or pay due
R At w i E e L obligations, and need to bear an unacceptable loss. The Group maintains sound liquidity
JESIE E I e BT T8 risk appetite to provide stable, reliable and adequate sources of cash to meet liquidity
HAZETS > MR BE TR needs under normal circumstances or stressed scenarios; and to survive with net positive
IRz iaA - A cumulative cash flow in extreme scenarios, without requesting the HKMA to act as the
SEEBIETRENREE lender of last resort.
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4. $REBERE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 merseEE (&) 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
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The Group’s liquidity risk management objective is to effectively manage the liquidity of
on- and off-balance sheet items with reasonable cost based on the liquidity risk appetite
to achieve sound operation and sustainable profitability. Deposits from customers are the
Group's primary source of funds. To ensure stable and sufficient source of funds are in
place, the Group actively attracts new deposits, keeps the core deposit and obtains
supplementary funding from the interbank market. According to different term maturities
and the results of funding needs estimated from stressed scenarios, the Group adjusts its
asset structure (including loans, bonds investment, interbank placement, etc.) to maintain
sufficient liquid assets which provides adequate funds in support of normal business
needs and ensure its ability to raise funds at a reasonable cost to serve external claims in
case of emergency. The Group is committed to diversify the source of funds and the use
of funds to avoid excessive concentration of assets and liabilities and prevent triggering
liquidity risk due to the break of funding strand when problem occurred in one
concentrated funding source. The Group has established intra-group liquidity risk
management guideline to manage the liquidity funding among different entities within the
Group, and to restrict their reliance of funding on each other. The Group also pays
attention to manage liquidity risk created by off-balance sheet activities, such as loan
commitments and derivatives. The Group has an overall liquidity risk management
strategy to cover the liquidity management of foreign currency assets and liabilities,
collateral, intra-day liquidity, intra-group liquidity, the liquidity risk arising from other risks,
etc., and has formulated corresponding contingency plan.
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4. SRERERE (8)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 RErELERE (8) 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
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Risk Management Committee (RMC) is the decision-making authority of liquidity risk
management, and assumes the ultimate responsibility of liquidity risk management. As
authorised by RMC, the Asset and Liabitity Management Committee (ALCO) exercises its
oversight of liquidity risk and ensures the daily operations of the Group are in accordance
with risk appetite and policies as set by RMC. Financial Management Division is
responsible for overseeing the Group’s liquidity risk. It cooperates with Treasury Division to
assist the ALCO to perform liquidity management functions according to their specific
responsibilities.

The Group established liquidity risk management indicators and limits to identify, measure,
monitor and control liquidity risk on daily basis. These indicators and limits include, but are
not limited to liquidity coverage ratio (“LCR"), loan-to-deposit ratio, Maximum Cumulative
Cash Outflow (“MCO”) and liquidity buffer asset portfolio. The Group applies cash flow
analysis to assess the Group’s liquidity condition under normal conditions and also
performs a liquidity stress test (including institution specific, general market crisis and
combined crisis) at least on monthly basis to assess the Group’s capability to withstand
various severe liquidity crises. Also, the Assets and Liabilities Management System is
developed to provide data and the preparation for regular management reports to facilitate
liquidity risk management duties.
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MRS () Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRERERE (8)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 RErELERE (8) 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
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In accordance with the requirements of Supervisory Policy Manual LM-2 “Sound Systems
and controls for Liquidity Risk Management” issued by the HKMA in 2011, the Group has
implemented behaviour model and assumptions of cash flow analysis and stress test to
enhance the Group’s cash flow analysis under both normal and stressed conditions. In
cash flow analysis under normal circumstances, assumptions have been made relating to
on-balance sheet items (such as deposits from customers) and off-balance sheet items
(such as loan commitments). According to various characteristics of the assets, liabilities
and off-balance sheet items, the Group forecasts the future cash flow based on contractual
maturity date and the assumptions of customer behaviour and balance sheet changes.
The Group establishes MCO indicator which predicts the future 30 day maximum
cumulative net cash outflow in normal situations based on the above assumptions, to
assess if the Group has sufficient financing capacity to meet the cash flow gap in order to
achieve the objective of continuing operation. As at 31 December 2015, before taking the
cash inflow through the sale of outstanding marketable securities into consideration, the
Bank's 30 day cumulative cash flow was a net cash inflow amounting to
HK$9,723,236,000 (2014: HK$4,424,474,000) and was in compliance with the internal
limit requirements.
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MRS () Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRERERE (8)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 RErELERE (8) 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
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In the liquidity stress test, institution specific, general market crisis and combined crisis
scenario has been set up, combined crisis scenario is a combination of institution specific
and general market crisis to assess the Group’s capability to withstand a more severe
liquidity crisis, with a more stringent set of assumptions being adopted. Stress test
assumptions include the run-off rate of retail, wholesale and interbank deposits; drawdown
rate of loan commitments and trade-related contingent liabilities; delinquency ratio and
rollover rate of customer loans; and haircut of interbank placement and marketable
securities. As at 31 December 2015, the Group was able to maintain a positive cash flow
under the three stressed scenarios, indicating the Group has the ability to meet financing
needs under stressed conditions. In addition, the Group has a policy in place to maintain a
liquidity cushion which includes high quality or comparable quality marketable securities
issued or guaranteed by sovereigns, central banks, public sector entities or multilateral
development banks with 0% or 20% risk weight or marketable securities issued or
guaranteed by non-financial corporate with a corresponding external credit rating of A- or
above to ensure funding needs even under stressed scenarios. As at 31 December 2015,
the Bank’s liquidity cushion (before haircut) was HK$29,189,795,000 (2014:
HK$20,399,765,000). A contingency plan is being established which details the conditions
to trigger the plan based on stress test results and early warning indicators, the action
plans and relevant procedures and responsibility of various departments.
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MRS () Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRERERE (8)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 RErELERE (8) 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
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The LCR is calculated in accordance with the Banking (Liquidity) Rules effective from 1
January 2015, the Group, being classified as category 1 authorised institution by the
HKMA, is required to calculate LCR on consolidated basis. During the year of 2015, the
Group is required to maintain a LCR not less than 60%.

In certain derivative contracts, the counterparties have right to request from the Group
additional collateral if they have concerns about the Group’s creditworthiness.

The Group’s liquidity risk management also covers new products or business
developments. Before launching a new product or business, the relevant departments are
required to go through a risk assessment process, which includes the assessment of
underlying liquidity risk and consideration of the adequacy of the current risk management
mechanism. Any material impact on liquidity risk noted during the risk assessment process
will be reported to Risk Managemment Committee for approval.

The Group has established a set of uniform liquidity risk management policies. On the
basis of the Group’s uniform policy, the principal banking subsidiary develops its own
liquidity management policies according to its own characteristics, and assumes its own
liquidity risk management responsibility, executes its daily risk management processes
independently, and reports to the Group’s Management on a regular basis.
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WBERRNE: (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SREBERE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 mErEEREE (&) 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
(A) mEheEELER (A) Liquidity coverage ratio/liquidity ratio
REESER
2015 EEEERE
2015 quarter ended
12 H 31 H 9H 30H 65 30H 3931H
31 December 30 September 30 June 31 March
RN E LAY Average value of
B liquidity
coverage ratio 120.02% 114.10% 163.68% 123.70%
MEEEEILREN The average value of liquidity coverage ratio is calculated based on the arithmetic mean
SPEERENZE of the liquidity coverage ratio as at the end of each working day in the quarter and the
FE HY48 TE 5 4% calculation methodology and instructions set out in the HKMA return of liquidity position.
ERERREIMEEE
EeR SN RITRE S
KA R REN AR R
Z B R RS
By s E T A R R
515 -
MM EESILRE The liquidity coverage ratio is computed on the consolidated basis which comprises the
DIgFEHEETE > I positions of the Bank and the subsidiaries specified by the HKMA in accordance with
R CGRITE ORE) the Banking (Liquidity) Rules.
) FHA) AR T
e <& Ja) e E 2 It
J& N EIGHRL -
ARREIMEEE The additional information of liquidity coverage ratio disclosures is available under
R B R E R section “Regulatory Disclosures” on the Bank’s website at www.ncb.com.hk.
"R A SRITHEH

www.nch.com.hk
FECENEE R

i

122



35 NCB #1731 % 441

WBERRNE: (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SREBERE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 RErELERE (8) 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

(A) mEheEELER (A) Liquidity coverage ratio/liquidity ratio (continued)
REESER (&)

2014
SEERENE SRR Average liquidity ratio 51.99%
P REE SRR The average liquidity ratio is calculated as the arithmetical mean of each calendar
U ARIITERNE month’s average liquidity ratio of the Bank for the year.
H>$EREiE et
RHVRM I EET
MENE SR ER The liquidity ratio is computed on the solo basis (the Hong Kong offices only) and is in
B GRITZEEMGG]) accordance with the predecessor Fourth Schedule to the Banking Ordinance.
Al B BT VU DA

HaEA (HHAA
EEAMER) 5t
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WBERRNE: (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. sRVEREE (&)
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4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

(B) Maturity analysis
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Assets

Cash and balances with banks and

other financial institutions

Placements with banks and other

financial institutions maturing

between one and twelve months

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
— Held for trading
— Debt securities
— Designated at fair value
through profit or loss
— Debt securities
Derivative financial instruments
Advances and other accounts
— Advances to customers
—Trade bills
Financial investments
— Available-for-sale
— Debt securities
— Certificates of deposit
— Others
— Held-to-maturity
— Debt securities
- Loans and receivables
— Debt securities
— Equity securities
Investment properties
Properties, plant and equipment
Other assets (including current
and deferred tax assets)
Assets held for sale

Total assets

4. Financial risk management (continued)

The tables below analyse the Group’s assets and liabilities as at 31 December into
relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at balance sheet date to
the contractual maturity date.

2015
—2 =

W —MEAR  =Z@ER +-EA —Z=Ef HFNE - FHEE
On Up to 1to 3 3to 12 1to5 Over HHA KEzt
demand 1 month months months years 5 years Indefinite Total
o B i B i B i R
T T T T T T T T
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
13,738,576 31,379,966 - - 9,126,263 54,244,805
- 3,157,041 3,899,744 - 7,056,785
1,762,994 2,479,360 2,471,938 - 6,714,292
- - 2,168 247,112 - 249,280
320,134 96,765 21,483 255,610 2,274 - 696,266
5,500,045 7,436,513 14,184,098 36,000,440 61,815,074 29,138,201 777,500 154,851,871
7 3,372,536 4,090,506 6,609,094 - - 14,072,143
7,295,867 6,428,028 8,657,828 18,096,760 356,810 - 40,835,293
216,318 1,404,198 6,404,497 3,018,675 - 11,043,688
472,067 - - - - 472,067
- 1,237 299,330 2,165,963 - 2,466,530
182,257 48,142 355,393 - 585,792
R - - 4,613 4,613
- - - 414,736 414,736
- - - 7,008,020 7,008,020
164,183 3,936,533 13,518 134,702 (7,648) - 106,595 4,347,883
- 132,729 - - - - 132,729
19,722,945 56,284,545 31,827,611 65,090,744 85,338,210 29,495,011 17,437,727 305,196,793
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4. sRVEREE (&)

4.3 RErELERE (8) 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
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(B) Maturity analysis (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

2015
—2 =
B —EAR =@A +—@EA —ZEEf HEENE - FHE
On Up to 1to 3 3to 12 1to5 Over HHA =t
demand 1 month months months years 5 years Indefinite Total
il i il i il i il i
Tt Tt Tt Tt Tt Tt Tt Tt
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$O000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
Liabilities
Deposits and balances from banks
and other financial institutions 3,648,010 18,122,402 2,501,295 6,689,467 - - 30,961,174
Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss - 1,084,486 1,907,861 1,583,009 - - 4,575,356
Derivative financial instruments 103,804 76,539 29,472 73,219 19,910 - 302,944
Deposits from customers 90,852,158 55,539,932 34,371,019 31,798,000 5,700,874 - - 218,261,983
Other accounts and provisions
(including current and deferred
tax liabilities) 1,998,248 1,315,194 2,943,651 6,315,257 1,376,345 25,987 - 13,974,682
Liabilities associated with assets
held for sale - 21,884 - - 21,884
Total liabilities 96,602,220 76,160,437 41,753,298 46,458,952 7,097,129 25,987 - 268,098,023
Net liquidity gap (76,879,275) (19,875,892) (9,925,687) 18,631,792 78,241,081 29,469,024 17,437,727 37,098,770
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HERE

Assets

Cash and balances with banks and

other financial institutions
Placements with banks and other
financial institutions maturing

between one and twelve months

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
— Held for trading
— Debt securities
— Designated at fair value
through profit or loss
— Debt securities
Derivative financial instruments
Advances and other accounts
— Advances to customers
—Trade bills
Financial investments
— Available-for-sale
— Debt securities
— Certificates of deposit
— Held-to-maturity
— Debt securities
— Loans and receivables
— Debt securities
— Equity securities
Investment properties
Properties, plant and equipment
Other assets (including deferred
tax assets)

Total assets

4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

(B) Maturity analysis (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

2014
—F =%

Bl —EH A =@EF FSEA —E=EE IFME THEE
On Up to 1to3 3to0 12 1to5 Over HHA yaEet
demand 1 month months months years 5years Indefinite Total
L B L B L B L L
T Tt T Tt T Tt T T
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
25,068,696 21,881,782 - - 11,332,322 58,282,800
- 9,477,006 8,703,756 - - 18,180,762
470,000 2,671,893 2,757,401 - 5,899,294
- - 2,170 253,749 - 255,919
352,831 18,163 18,247 46,452 3,379 - 439,072
5,600,078 9,742,952 16,597,492 36,208,391 52,393,120 26,179,173 810,930 147,532,136
32,219 4,961,240 7,500,572 3,877,532 - - 16,371,563
71,704 1,121,059 5,071,150 1,633,772 - 7,897,685
1,282,624 6,181,988 8,984,351 17,486,963 565,963 - 34,501,889
- 1,415 644 1,996,697 619,634 2,618,390
- 620,262 1,454,332 - 2,074,594
- - - 75,766 75,766
- - - 1,280,271 1,280,271
- - - 7,328,497 7,328,497
185,402 779,942 3,202 47,394 139,094 46 10,535 1,165,615
31,239,226 39,208,407 44,193,136 67,153,573 73,906,774 27,364,816 20,838,321 303,904,253
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
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(B) Maturity analysis (continued)

2014
—= =%
g @AM @A FoEA ERE RENE FRE
On Up to 1to3 3to 12 1to5 Over HHA 4EEt
demand 1 month months months years 5years Indefinite Total
B B B B B B T
T Tt T Tt T Tt T Tt
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
Liabilities
Deposits and balances from banks
and other financial institutions 2,649,041 17,702,866 9,332,830 8,050,874 - - 37,735,611
Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss 1,978,491 873,945 2,118,257 - 4,970,693
Derivative financial instruments 98,057 86,204 30,223 32,269 31,753 - 278,506
Deposits from customers 75,443,820 54,407,895 35,397,115 34,231,783 10,153,322 - - 209,633,935
Other accounts and provisions
(including current and deferred
tax liabilities) 4,834,848 3,156,033 2,893,494 4333573 1,171,922 794 - 16,390,664
Total liabilities 83,025,766 77,331,489 48,527,607 48,766,756 11,356,997 794 - 269,009,409
Net liquidity gap (51,786,540) (38,123,082) (4,334,471) 18,386,817 62,549,777 27,364,022 20,838,321 34,894,844
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WBERRNE: (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4, SRiEBERE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 RErELERE (8) 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
(B) EAR AT (&) (B) Maturity analysis (continued)

ot EHA H 47587 The above maturity classifications have been prepared in accordance with relevant
7B (SRITEE (588 ) provisions under the Banking (Disclosure) Rules. The Group has reported assets such
FRAY Z MR ES as advances and debt securities which have been overdue for not more than one month
Ul o AR EHA as “On demand”. In the case of an asset that is repayable by different payments or
Rid#m 1 [HEZ2E instalments, only that portion of the asset that is actually overdue is reported as
B I EER B AT overdue. Any part of the asset that is not due is reported according to the residual
a5 TEIRE & maturity unless the repayment of the asset is in doubt in which case the amount is
JEE o HIR AR ERGEH reported as “Indefinite”. The above assets are stated after deduction of provisions, if
WoHEZEZE any.

& REZEAETE

% 2 By R

{FaH - FMREIRA

ZE T S AR AR

FlErIR 3 > IR
EHEGEEZHE
AR A%
TR B T AREE H
Wy e BHBTRZE
JE EL AT BR (L T 1 B
B (WE) -

O BREHE H B (& The analysis of debt securities by remaining period to maturity is disclosed in order to
BB e R comply with relevant provisions under the Banking (Disclosure) Rules. The disclosure
G PRI TEE (W EE) does not imply that the securities will be held to maturity.
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4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
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(a) Non-derivative cash flows

4. Financial risk management (continued)

(C) Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities

The tables below summarise the cash flows of the Group as at 31 December for

non-derivative financial liabilities by remaining contractual maturity.

2015
—F =
—@ARN =@ERF +-#A —ZA% AFEME
Up to 1to 3 3t0 12 1to5 Over st
1month  months months years  5years Total
e it e e el it
FEt R Fm FR TR TR
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
Financial liabilities
Deposits and balances from banks and
other financial institutions 21,779,006 2,508,618 6,731,882 - 31,019,506
Financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss 1,084,500 1,908,000 1,583,500 - - 4,576,000
Deposits from customers 146,416,843 34,462,462 32,206,656 6,056,730 - 219,142,691
Other financial liabilities 3,151,954 2,732,681 6,292,647 506,860 26,038 12,710,180
Total financial liabilities 172,432,303 41,611,761 46,814,685 6,563,590 26,038 267,448,377
2014
—F =%
—EHR =EH +ZEA —2AfF RFEMLE
Up to 1t03 3to12 1to5 Over dEst
1 month months months years 5 years Total
Al et Al Al et et
Tt Tt Tt Tt Tt Tt
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
Financial liabilities
Deposits and balances from banks and
other financial institutions 20,388,137 9,396,895 8,182,134 - 37,967,166
Financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss 1,978,500 874,000 2,119,000 - - 4,971,500
Deposits from customers 129,885,722 35,519,941 34,833,788 11,008,039 - 211,247,490
Other financial liabilities 7,636,441 2,688,501 4,078,030 194,912 794 14,598,678
Total financial liabilities 159,888,800 48,479,337 49,212,952 11,202,951 794 268,784,834
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WBERRNE: (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRiEBERE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 RErELERE (8) 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
©C) HELNFHE W (C) Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities (continued)
ZRITRBEAESR
(&)

(b) FTAETEZHE (b) Derivative cash flows
i
TR T A The tables below summarise the cash flows of the Group by remaining
Ep 12 A 31 H contractual maturity as at 31 December for derivative financial liabilities that will
DU 6 & &9 5 HH be settled on a net basis, together with all derivative financial instruments that
H %~ 2 /4 will be settled on a gross basis regardless of whether the contract is in an asset
i B R AL or liability position. The amounts disclosed in the tables are the contractual
BERZTES undiscounted cash flows, except for certain derivatives which are disclosed at
REE D R FTE fair value.
PR R
TSR TECK
mAMGYEE
EBEIR) < FRED
SITAET AN
HEYIRIN TR
T B2 0y HAM S 4H
) R ARG
EIEHER -
B B R AR The Group’s derivative financial instruments that will be settled on a net basis
BEBEZITEE mainly include interest rate swaps whereas derivative financial instruments that
AT E T AR will be settled on a gross basis mainly include currency forwards and currency
FlIze il 48 swaps.
MRS E 2 T
LT HEE
BE B R
WS o
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4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

(C) Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities (continued)

(b) Derivative cash flows (continued)

2015
—z ==z
—@Ar  =EA +-ER —EHEE BENE
Up to 1to 3 3to 12 1to5 Over st
1 month months months years 5years Total
il i i i il il
F5e F5i T PR TR F5e
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Derivative financial
liabilities settled on a
net basis (104,510) (2,043) (17,962) (8,160) (132,675)
Derivative financial
instruments settled on
a gross basis
Total inflow 22,039,048 7,838,682 13,446,442 75,357 43,399,529
Total outflow (22,024,752) (7,850,203) (13,357,472)  (75,249) - (43,307,676)
2014
—& =%
—EAR  =EA TR ERE GEUE
Up to 1to3 3to 12 1to5 Over 4T
1 month months months years 5 years Total
et i Al i et et
Tt Tt Tt Tt Tt Tt
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Derivative financial
liabilities settled on a
net basis (100,241) (9,011)  (25332) (15,614) (150,198)
Derivative financial
instruments settled
on a gross basis
Total inflow 20,417,338 6,924,041 11,252,454 834,845 39,428,678
Total outflow (20,719,023) (6,952,942) (11,370,225) (834,202) - (39,876,392)
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WBERRNE: (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRiEBERE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 RErELERE (8) 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
C) HELTIHIH ST (C) Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities (continued)
ZRIAHEBRAER
(&)
(c) & E & & %= 4b (c) Off-balance sheet items
HH
EFOKIE Loan commitments
H R A £ EH ) The contractual amounts of the Group’s off-balance sheet financial instruments as
2015 4 12 A 31 at 31 December 2015 that the Group commits to extend credit to customers and
H [ 2 5 K G AE other facilities totalled HK$86,380,519,000 (2014: HK$74,498,453,000). Those
REEKHEME loan commitments can be drawn within one year.
HZ R ERLT
B HE8e8E
& s

86,380,519,000
T (2014 £ %
H‘_ig
74,498,453,000
T WERHUK
ER—F R

B -

FUF 5 5 O e LAt Financial guarantees and other financial facilities

RURLTS

AREHE 2015 4 Financial guarantees and other financial facilities of the Group as at 31 December
12 H 31 H 27 2015 totalled HK$36,313,017,000 (2014: HK$38,415,882,000) are maturing no
¥ On R HAWL I 755 later than one year.

il < R A

36,313,017,000
JC (2014 £ 0
e
38,415,882,000
gL HEERED
A4
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MRS () Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRERERE (8)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.4 BREH

4.4 Capital management

REMEAEHR FH
H R R 4 Ry B SR RS
BRI LA R Y AT
JeIK» [ R B SR 2K
ROl BEAGTE
Z B E st A SR
ARG WAL TR
ﬁ;ﬁ BELUORFS e ~ Bl

AT R VR B (R T
f?i—f"

AEHCKREIL -ER
LGl Zli”ﬁfiﬁﬁlﬁﬂ].ﬁ
PERE > N0 HAETT R -
EEET&%U{%%%EEZ
R RaER - R 2
FEERAATL R RN E
Ke-HEAMEHZERY
AR EREREEREAT
Je - AR R R A B
WELSRTT BT & & IH
EERWEEERKR
T FHUT

AR ] R AR B Y T
SRR FUAST R
#8538 25 B ) L e
RIERE BRI EAE
3K 3l (5 F P B PAR R A
(FEF st R AR
ZRA LA Bl g AR HE Y (S
SR A AT - /Ny
15 B b R HE A e
T (EEER) STRUE
ECRRN ST R
Sft{EMREA THEA
AEE M EFHR Y
LT EATR -

The major objective of the Group’s capital management is to maximise total shareholders’
return while maintaining a capital adequacy position in relation to the Group’s overall risk
profile. The ALCO periodically reviews the Group’s capital structure and adjusts the capital
mix where appropriate to maintain an optimal balance among risk, return and capital
adequacy.

The Group has developed and maintained a sound framework of policies and controls on
capital management to support the development of the Group’s business and to meet the
statutory capital adequacy ratio. The ALCO monitors the Group’s capital adequacy. The
Group has complied with all the statutory capital requirements of the HKMA for the reported
periods in respect of banking operation as further elaborated below.

The Group has adopted the foundation internal ratings-based (“FIRB") approach to calculate
the credit risk capital charge for the majority of its non-securitisation exposures and the
internal ratings-based (securitisation) approach to calculate the credit risk capital charge for
its securitisation exposures. A small residual credit exposures are remained under the
standardised (credit risk) (“STC") approach. The Group has adopted the standardised credit
valuation adjustment (“CVA”) method to calculate the capital charge for the CVA risk of the
counterparty.
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MRS () Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRERERE (8)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.4 BAEHE (8D

4.4 Capital management (continued)

AEEEER AN EE
et AR FAMNE K F
RN — 5 E R EA
SOR MESE [ AR
Rt RSN IT R
(D 5IZsstE T
4NV g 1 7 2E Y T 255 L
W ATIR - AR
PR (i) &t
FUERHRE AR T 5 AR
BATK -

AEEE R R
BHEREER S RAT R
BRIEREBR A EIK -

AREEEFY 2015 SR
B & AR 7 R Rl
FFLUFa2EREER
RTI " EIEEERERF
RENEDK - F B RS
ZEHEAES D NEE
T2 RS TR Fr E 2 BL
APEESE ST RA
BT HENER
[P AR RS NEA - {iE
T 55 7 7 52 [ f (.
R fE—JE AR ~ Bl
— AR R R AR
B - [ - A
JRER A ALY 3 AR LR B
TE T HEIFIER - PUCREE
B EHmELEETA
HYERGER - AR R
WEE AR 7 R R A AR I
- EFENEAEH
AR M E R SRR
e JE B PR 5 T i S EE A
B AE R E R B AR
1 -

The Group continues to adopt the internal models (“IMM”) approach to calculate the general
market risk capital charge for foreign exchange and interest rate exposures and, with the
approval from the HKMA, exclude its structural FX positions arising from overseas branches
and NCB(China) in the calculation of the market risk capital charge. The Group continues to
adopt the standardised (market risk) (“STM”) approach to calculate the market risk capital
charge for the remaining exposures.

The Group continues to adopt standardised (operational risk) (“STO”) approach to calculate
the operational risk capital charge.

The Group has continued to adopt an internal capital adequacy assessment process
(“ICAAP") to comply with the HKMA's requirements in the Supervisory Policy Manual
“Supervisory Review Process” in 2015. Based on the HKMA's guidelines on Pillar Il, ICAAP
has been initiated to assess the extra capital needed to cover the material risks not captured
or not adequately captured under Pillar I, and therefore minimum Common Equity Tier 1
capital ratio, minimum Tier 1 capital ratio and minimum Total capital ratio are determined.
Meanwhile, operating ranges for the aforementioned capital ratios have also been
established which enable the flexibility for future business growth and efficiency of capital
utilisation. The Group considers this ICAAP as an on-going process for capital management
and periodically reviews and adjusts its capital structure where appropriate in relation to the
overall risk profile.
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WBERRNE: (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4, SRiEBERE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.4 EEEH (8B) 4.4 Capital management (continued)

N A EEEGEREE In addition, the capital plan of the Group is drawn up annually and then submitted to the
EEAHE HEEAE Board for approval after endorsement of the ALCO. The plan is built up by assessing the
EHHZEOEFRBREE implications of various factors upon capital adequacy such as the business strategies, return
e BB E on equity, risk appetite, credit rating, as well as regulatory requirements. Hence, the future
FEEEME ~ B s (ol ~ JE b capital requirement is determined and capital sources are identified also. The plan is to
TREF ~ E R, - B ensure the Group maintains adequate capital and appropriate capital structure which align
SR % U FE ST E AR with its business development needs, thereby achieving an optimal balance among risk,
T B MR EZ S » 1 T TR return and capital adequacy.

RIRERT R FEARR

J5 DRI SR RE 4T B

FHVE AR T M R OER

HEEHE BLAERE
JE& > PREFRER ~ R

AT PR A A

(A) EEELr SR (A) Basis of regulatory consolidation
B R EMN S A A The consolidation basis for regulatory purposes comprises the positions of the Bank
TR (R1T% and certain subsidiaries specified by the HKMA in accordance with the Banking

BEA) BRI A (Capital) Rules. For accounting purposes, subsidiaries are consolidated in accordance

RITRES S with HKFRSs and the list of subsidiaries is set out in “Appendix — Subsidiaries of the
JEHE E Z M 8 =] Bank”.
4HRY - ARG TR )T
] > R B 75
s A AR S I

ARSI N
T % — A ERITZ
il AN
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WBERRNE: (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4, SRiEBERE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.4 EEEH (8B) 4.4 Capital management (continued)
(A) EsELr R (8) (A) Basis of regulatory consolidation (continued)
BIET T ERIET The particulars of subsidiaries which are included within the accounting scope of
e - M consolidation but not included within the regulatory scope of consolidation are as
e B2z A
e Ei‘ﬁﬂiéﬂ:mﬁﬁ% follows:
PR Y B B 2 B 22 5
BT
2015 2014
BERAE B e EARLEE
&5 Name Total assets Total equity Total assets Total equity
BT BT T HEETT HEETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FE R TELAR Nanyang Commercial Bank
/NG| Trustee Limited 16,355 16,246 16,295 16,186
B RIS S AR A Kwong Li Nam Investment
HJ Agency Limited 4,248 4,026 4,481 4,027
FECEREESRTT (REA) Nanyang Commercial Bank
BIRAE (Nominees) Limited 1,472 1,472 1,477 1,477
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WBERRNE: (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. sRVEREE (&)

4.4 BAEHE (8D

(A) BESGOEE (8)

LI EBf g =189 £
SR IR —
ARIRAT Z WS 8~
B e

220154 12 H 31
B M A
B ARSI E S
TELFEHIE A E
G REAGRS
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220154 12 H 31
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E|[E B
2 RIHT BG B R E 4
& 6B T AR E
& & J5 ik (2014
&) e
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—ERE AR

HEALLR

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.4 Capital management (continued)

(A) Basis of regulatory consolidation (continued)

The principal activities of the above subsidiaries are set out in “Appendix — Subsidiaries

of the Bank”.

There were no subsidiaries which are included within the regulatory scope of

consolidation but not included within the accounting scope of consolidation as at 31

December 2015 (2014: Nil).

Neither were there any subsidiaries which are included within both the accounting
scope of consolidation and the regulatory scope of consolidation where the methods of

consolidation differ as at 31 December 2015 (2014: Nil).

(B) Capital ratio

CET1 capital ratio

Tier 1 capital ratio

Total capital ratio
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WBERRNE: (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. sRVEREE (&)

4.4 BAEHE (8D
(B) BEARLEER (FD

ARSI RM EEAR
BL R Z AR % Y 67
GREAREBE A
T

LR A - SR
B A
HEFERTNEERSHE

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.4 Capital management (continued)

(B) Capital ratio (continued)

The consolidated capital base after deductions used in the calculation of the above

capital ratios is analysed as follows:

e — S A S
PREG T

[Wk7a 00

BRI AT TR
—EEA

LB — AR BE
I

fl{ER%E
EATFRIE AR I S A
IRIER A

A HEESER R
PRIA B H(E b
BP9

PRl st R SR (LA
FACE MR ) HETE
HEMAMELR R
AR ELE
—RERTREB RS
il

ERIp i e e EN: Nl
IR AEE

Lt A

2015 2014
AT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000
CET1 capital: instruments and reserves
Directly issued qualifying CET1 capital
instruments 3,144,517 3,144,517
Retained earnings 25,495,966 22,764,425
Disclosed reserves 8,451,135 8,978,910
CET1 capital before regulatory deductions
37,091,618 34,887,852
CET1 capital: regulatory deductions
Valuation adjustments (8,617) (3,465)
Deferred tax assets net of deferred tax liabilities
(5,962) (152,171)
Gains and losses due to changes in own credit
risk on fair valued liabilities
(537) 877)
Cumulative fair value gains arising from the
revaluation of land and buildings (own-use and
investment properties)
(6,190,605) (6,919,824)
Regulatory reserve for general banking risks
(2,255,673) (2,173,590)
Total regulatory deductions to CET1 capital
(8,461,394) (9,249,927)
CET1 capital 28,630,224 25,637,925
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MRS () Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRERERE (8)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.4 BAEHE (8D
(B) BEARLEER (FD

4.4 Capital management (continued)

(B) Capital ratio (continued)

2015 2014
BT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000
— 4B Tier 1 capital 28,630,224 25,637,925
THCEAR B RS Tier 2 capital: instruments and provisions
BEETTAZSE AN Collective impairment allowances and regulatory
EERG Rt S — % reserve for general banking risks eligible for
SRITRBRETE inclusion in Tier 2 capital 1,109,458 1,153,326
B Z AT R EAR Tier 2 capital before regulatory deductions 1,109,458 1,153,326
THCEAR B Tier 2 capital: regulatory deductions
mElE&EEH A ZRE Add back of cumulative fair value gains arising
AR A 3 R R R from the revaluation of land and buildings
Y (BARIEERE) (own-use and investment properties) eligible for
AT E E A inclusion in Tier 2 capital
HI BB AHE B 2,785,772 3,113,921
B T ARE AR EE TR Total regulatory deductions to Tier 2 capital
HaEs 2,785,772 3,113,921
A Tier 2 capital 3,895,230 4,267,247
HEEA Total capital 32,525,454 29,905,172
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WBERRNE: (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4, SRiEBERE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.4 EEEH (8B) 4.4 Capital management (continued)
(B) BEALER (8) (B) Capital ratio (continued)
RiE (R17%E (& The capital conservation buffer ratio, higher loss absorbency ratio, countercyclical
A HHRA - Pragss capital buffer ratio (“CCyB ratio”) and the applicable JCCyB ratios for Hong Kong and
FEALLE S non-Hong Kong jurisdictions for 2015 are 0% in accordance with the Banking (Capital)
Wz U $8 AE T B Rules.

R BEEREE
AttA (TCCyB Lh
R ) RAERERIE
T EEEEER
M JCCyB LER?
2015 55 0% -

AHEAREEDN The additional information of capital disclosures is available under section “Regulatory
owE R TR Disclosures” on the Bank’s website at www.nch.com.hk.

AR T HE OH

www.ncb.com.hk

o TEEEEE, —

B -

(C) FEfRELE (C) Leverage ratio
2015
BT
HK$'000
— A Tier 1 capital 28,630,224
TERREE AR R R Leverage ratio exposure 339,678,093
FEREEER Leverage ratio 8.43%
HRAERLL R R The additional information of leverage ratio disclosures is available under section
H A 78 BB R A A “Regulatory Disclosures” on the Bank’s website at www.nch.com.hk.
w7 #®@ H

www.nch.com.hk
o B, —
HTZIEE -
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WBERRNE: (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
5. EEFMAENAYE 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities
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All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, “Fair value
measurement”. The categorisation are determined with reference to the observability and
significance of the inputs used in the valuation methods and based on the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

- Level 1: based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities. This category includes debt instruments issued by certain governments and
certain exchange-traded derivative contracts.

- Level 2: based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is observable, either directly or indirectly. This category includes
majority of the OTC derivative contracts, debt securities and certificates of deposit with quote
from pricing services vendors. It also includes precious metals and properties with
insignificant adjustments made to observable market inputs.

- Level 3: based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is unobservable. This category includes equity investment and
debt instruments with significant unobservable components. It also includes properties with
significant adjustments made to observable market inputs.
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WBERRNE: (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
5. EENAENAYE 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

(&)
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For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis,
the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value

The Group has an established governance structure and controls framework to ensure that
fair values are either determined or validated by control units independent of the front
offices. Control units have overall responsibility for independent verification of valuation
results from front line businesses and all other significant fair value measurements. Specific
controls include verification of observable pricing inputs. Significant valuation issues are
reported to the Management.
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WBERRNE: (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

5. EEMNAMENAYE 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)
(8

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

5.1 BUAPERTEBRISHT
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The Group uses valuation techniques or broker/dealer quotations to determine the fair
value of financial instruments when unable to obtain the open market quotation in active
markets.

The main parameters used in valuation techniques for financial instruments held by the
Group include bond prices, interest rates, foreign exchange rates, equity and stock prices,
volatilities, counterparty credit spreads and others, which are mostly observable and
obtainable from open market.

The technique used to calculate the fair value of the following financial instruments is as
below:

Debt instruments and certificates of deposit

The fair value of these instruments is determined by obtaining quoted market prices from
exchange, dealer or independent pricing service vendors or using discounted cash flow
technique. Discounted cash flow model is a valuation technigue that measures present
value using estimated expected future cash flows from the instruments and then discounts
these flows using a discount rate or discount margin that reflects the credit spreads
required by the market for instruments with similar risk. These inputs are observable or
can be corroborated by observable or unobservable market data.
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WM ESRENE: (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

5. BEMAMBAIAYE 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)
(&)

5.1 DA ESENSET 5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)
8 (&)
TTETE Derivatives
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OTC derivative contracts include forward, swap and option contracts on foreign exchange,
interest rate, equity or commodity. The fair values of these contracts are mainly measured
using valuation techniques such as discounted cash flow models and option pricing
models. The inputs can be observable or unobservable market data. Observable inputs
include interest rate, foreign exchange rates, equity and stock prices, commodity prices
and volatilities.

Credit valuation adjustments (“CVA”) and debit valuation adjustments (“DVA”) are applied
to the Group’s OTC derivatives. These adjustments reflect market factors movement,
expectations of counterparty creditworthiness and the Group’'s own credit spread
respectively. They are mainly determined for each counterparty and are dependent on
expected future values of exposures, default probabilities and recovery rates.
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WBERRNE: (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

5. EENAENAYE 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)
(8

5.1 BUAPERTEBRISHT
& (&)

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

(A) A HERIELR

(A) Fair value hierarchy

2015
FE—fgek ETRE FE=RE&K iET
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BT BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
SRIEE Financial assets
AN EE( LT AR Financial assets at fair value
2 eRbERE through profit or loss
(Ff5E 20) (Note 20)
B - Trading assets
—(E e 2 - Debt securities - 6,714,292 - 6,714,292
—FE Ry LA EAE S - Financial assets
(Bt A2 designated at fair value
R A through profit or loss
—(EBHE - Debt securities - 249,280 - 249,280
TR TR Derivative financial
(BifEE 21) instruments (Note 21) 320,134 376,132 - 696,266
ot E G R Available-for-sale financial
(FfsE 24) assets (Note 24)
—[EB - Debt securities and
FEag certificates of deposit 2,814,257 49,064,724 - 51,878,981
—etnas s - Equity securities - - 4,613 4,613
—HAth - Others - - 472,067 472,067
SREE Financial liabilities
AN EE(LET AER Financial liabilities at fair value
ZeRbEE through profit or loss
(BfF3E 28) (Note 28)
XA - Trading liabilities - 4,575,356 - 4,575,356
TR TR Derivative financial
(BifEE 21) instruments (Note 21) 103,804 199,140 - 302,944
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WBERRNE: (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

5. EENAENAYE 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)
(8

5.1 DA ESENSET 5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)
H (&)
(A) N RENESR (8) (A) Fair value hierarchy (continued)
2014
gk Ik FE=TER “EEt
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
AT AT AT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
SREE Financial assets
A EE BRI AR Financial assets at fair value
ZRbiEE through profit or loss
(Ff5E 20) (Note 20)
LG MEERE - Trading assets
—(EHs - Debt securities - 5,899,294 - 5,899,294
—FLIE By LA TAE S - Financial assets
{EET A2 designated at fair value
R A through profit or loss
—(EHs - Debt securities - 255,919 - 255,919
TR TR Derivative financial
(FfFeE 21) instruments (Note 21) 352,831 86,237 4 439,072
] < R Available-for-sale financial
(FFEE 24) assets (Note 24)
—[EB - Debt securities and
ke certificates of deposit - 42,399,574 - 42,399,574
—He{EE 27 - Equity securities - - 75,766 75,766
SRAR Financial liabilities
NIEE(EET AR Financial liabilities at fair value
= through profit or loss
(FfsE 28) (Note 28)
X H5MEE - Trading liabilities - 4,970,693 - 4,970,693
TR TR Derivative financial
CBfF3E 21) instruments (Note 21) 98,057 180,421 28 278,506
REEEH  SRhEE R There were no financial asset and liability transfers between level 1 and level 2 for the
AENENEEES Group during the year (2014: Nil).
—EBREE_BR
SRS (2014 4 ¢
i) -
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WBERRNE: (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

5. EENAENAYE 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)
(8

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

5.1 BIAPER EHIERET
=3¢ ))

(B) HE=RHHHEE

(B) Reconciliation of level 3 items

By
2015
SMEE
Financial assets
TTESRTHE TR ESREE
G38) Available-for-sale
Derivative financial assets

Financial e fresss
Instruments Equity HAh,
(net) securities Others
BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
20151 H1H At 1 January 2015 4 75,766 -

W Gains
- Ht s - Other comprehensive
income
- R ERE S - Change in fair value of
NEEEE available-for-sale

securities 11,679 -
=HA Purchases - 472,067
= Sales - (82,832) -
GEE Settlements (4) R R
72015412 H 31 H At 31 December 2015 4,613 472,067

A 20154E 12 A 31 H

Total unrealised gains for

FrAMNERE ENE the year included in
AET AUZERIRE income statement for
TR L AEEH financial assets held as

at 31 December 2015
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5. KEMAENAFE
(&)

5.1 DIATERHRIVRRLT
H (8D

(B) HE=RHHHEE
B (&

201441 H 1 H
e

- gk

- Hpth g

- AR
ATERL

Hi
LS = a4k

2014412 531 H

2014412 A 31 H
FrA R EN G
WET ARG RHIRE
VGt T

(B) Reconciliation of level 3 items (continued)

At 1 January 2014

Gains

- Income statement

- Other comprehensive

income
- Change in fair value of

available-for-sale
securities

Sales

Transfer out of level 3

At 31 December 2014

Total unrealised gains for
the year included in
income statement for
financial assets held as
at 31 December 2014
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

2014

EBRIERE
Financial assets

PrAemTE AL E SR
(3%E) Available-for-sale
Derivative financial assets
Financial RS a2
Instruments Certificates Equity
(net) of deposit securities
AT AT T ATT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
- 2,136,848 63,965
4 - -
- 660 11,801
- (2,057,390) -
- (80,118) -
4 - 75,766
4 - -




35 NCB #1731 % 441

WBERRNE: (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
5. EENAENAYE 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

(&)

5.1 DIATERHRIVRRLT
H (8D

(B) HE=RHHHEE

B (&

#2015 4 12 A 31
H i 2014 4F 12 A
31 BRI
FHIBRTHFEE S
HEBTH ~ RN
FE EHHAE -

FE TR R =)
TRl T
SMEER 2014 4
=k - ¥
AR B LS
TH > AR S
HTHERE - A
ERVETEFRERA T
L EELERTE
HYAR TR 20
s SRS
TREDEHE=]E
B o AEEC I
oAl P B AR B
FEEE ISR TR
(B

JE LT AT EE A
HYA P92 AT i
EEgery AR Z P
YL B
BCENH B AT D
BN E] Al
FEFEEE - A PE
BRI AR Z ATERER
BRI LR I E
FAEE R - EE
FERCA SRR
EHMR D 5%
SIS S HA < T U
FORPEAN kDA
231,000 T ( 2014
A Ak 3,788,000
JL) e

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

(B) Reconciliation of level 3 items (continued)

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, financial instruments categorised as level 3 are
mainly comprised of debt instruments, certificates of deposit and unlisted equity shares.

Certificates of deposit were transferred out of level 3 in the year of 2014 due to
improvement of valuation observability. For certain illiquid debt instruments, the Group
obtains valuation quotations from counterparties which may be based on unobservable
inputs with significant impact on the valuation. Therefore, these instruments have been
classified by the Group as level 3. The Group has established internal control
procedures to control the Group’s exposure to such financial instruments.

The fair values of unlisted available-for-sale equity shares are determined with
reference to multiples of comparable listed companies, such as average of the
price/earning ratios of comparables, or net asset value, if appropriate comparables are
not available. The fair value is positively correlated to the price/earning ratios of
appropriate comparables or net asset values. Had the net asset value of the underlying
equity investments increased/decreased by 5%, the Group’s other comprehensive
income would have increased/decreased by HK$231,000 (2014: HK$3,788,000).
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WBERRNE: (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

5. EENAENAYE 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)
(8

5.2 Financial instruments not measured at fair value

5.2 JEPUAHEST BAS Rl

IH

O PER P — R E I
B B T S B R R
6] it T B 2 Bk ST
fili o NN Z 5B R
HH R I R R AG
BEEM TR ZAPHE -

BB 18 R SRAT e HoAt

Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time based on relevant market
information and information about various financial instruments. The following methods
and assumptions have been used to estimate the fair value of each class of financial
instrument as far as practicable.

Balances with/from banks and other financial institutions and trade bills

A 1 Pl I = )
ESid
KRy 2 SR E R A
SR H iR —HEN
FH] > HARH{EBNP
EA -

FEEK
KRG 2 %5 P BRI+
R IS ERTE
IR HARHI{EEAAE
GEFS

FrE 25 H %
FAEZIWHERZA
EREE B 5. 1 B
A PEEENEE LR
FAEREERM ZTTEH
[F] »

SO EYRK

BER EWGR 2 A PE
FEE B 5.1 IDAATE
EFF EHEE TR KT
R I AR -

EEH
KHh 5y 2B PR
GEEE te—FNEIE - 5
BT B A AR -

Substantially all the financial assets and liabilities mature within one year from the balance
sheet date and their carrying value approximates fair value.

Advances to customers
Substantially all the advances to customers are on floating rate terms, bear interest at
prevailing market interest rates and their carrying value approximates fair value.

Held-to-maturity securities

The fair value of held-to-maturity securities is determined by using the same approach as
those debt instruments and certificates of deposit measured at fair value as described in
Note 5.1.

Loans and receivables
The fair value of loans and receivables is determined by using the same approach as those
debt instruments and certificates of deposit measured at fair value as described in Note 5.1.

Deposits from customers
Substantially all the deposits from customers mature within one year from the balance sheet
date and their carrying value approximates fair value.
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WM ESRENE: (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

5. BEMAMBAIAYE 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

(&)
5.2 JEBIAN SRR SR 5.2 Financial instruments not measured at fair value (continued)
IR @&
B DL b ECRE i {E B A S The following tables set out the carrying values and fair values of the financial instruments
EfEN R TESN N not measured at fair value, except for the above with their carrying values being
RRIFLLAFHETER approximation of fair values.
ST EZIREENA
SAE -
2015 2014
FREE ANHE JIEJTEIKIE AEE
Carrying value Fair value Carrying value Fair value
AT AT AT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ERIEE Financial assets
ARSI HES Held-to-maturity
(IsE 24) securities (Note 24) 2,466,530 2,557,828 2,618,390 2,668,585
R EGER Loans and receivables
(Ffrat 24) (Note 24) 585,792 586,376 2,074,594 2,072,809
THERYTEHEE N\ The following tables show the fair value hierarchy for financial instruments with fair values
EHER T E 2 APE disclosed.
2015
E—ER FoEHR BB e
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BT BT BETIT AETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
SREE Financial assets
HEZFHIHZES Held-to-maturity securities - 2,557,828 - 2,557,828
B EGR Loans and receivables - 586,376 - 586,376
2014
E—lEik IR E=ER HEEt
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
AT BT AT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
SRIEE Financial assets
FEEIHH®ES Held-to-maturity securities - 2,668,585 - 2,668,585
B FEWER Loans and receivables - 2,072,809 - 2,072,809
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WBERRNE: (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
5. EENAENAYE 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

(&
5.3 DA EE BRI ESRE 5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair value
IR

AR E A — G {E R
1l BG5BT 55 3 {2 T
TEFEE R T EAVATE -

REYIZE R R
KEE 2 Y] 5y Btk
BV E - TR A%
B2 EYE R EED
R HETTE A - (S {EH
WILRFET M RATS — K
S T A i £ L R B R B
FARAEET  HHE
B &N EASE &
FREEGAENBERGER
‘R Z NE > WAEEY)
SR T R b e N R
HEER - EfEEN T
RIBAFARHE TR AEE
B T RN R Bl S
b ETT ~ Al fE R Rt
EEER - (HEITVENERN
R -

5 BT AR
PR R R

BT RSB B2
SERVATHE - T925 ]
B 2 AT T R R
& (MigttEs%) 2%
SIS I AR (Y
ANEARE) - BE AL
UE Y& SRR e P!
HIZZ R E A SRR - It
TR BT B YRGS
BN EREATE

KB 2N T
AR I R -
ARG R BRI
T - WIEEEYE
BE - HSHEREAE
R E L E TS
LW E A RS
Ezl

The Group uses valuation techniques or quoted market prices in active market to
determine the fair value of non-financial instruments.

Investment properties and premises

The Group’s properties can be divided into investment properties and premises. All of the
Group’s investment properties and premises were revalued as at year end. The valuations
were carried out by an independent firm of chartered surveyors, Savills Valuation and
Professional Services Limited, who have among their staff Fellow and Members of The
Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors with recent experience in the locations and categories of
properties being valued. The Group’s Management had discussions with the surveyors on
the valuation methods, valuation assumptions and valuation results when the valuation is
performed at each interim and annual reporting date. There has been no change in
valuation methods during the year.

Valuation methods and inputs used in Level 2 fair value measurements

The fair value of properties classified as Level 2 is determined using either the market
comparison approach by reference to recent sales price of comparable properties or the
income capitalisation approach by reference to market rent and capitalisation rate, with
appropriate adjustments to reflect the differences between the comparable properties and
the subject properties. These adjustments are considered as insignificant to the entire
measurement.

The Group’s properties are located in Hong Kong and major cities in the PRC where the
property markets are considered active and transparent. Sales price, market rent and
capitalisation rate of comparable properties are generally observable either directly or
indirectly in these markets.
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WBERRNE: (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
5. EENAENAYE 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

Investment properties and premises (continued)

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

The fair value of all of the Group’s properties classified as Level 3 is determined using
either the market comparison approach or the income capitalisation approach, adjusted for
a premium or a discount specific to the features of the Group’s properties compared to the
comparable properties.

The valuation methods and significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value
measurement of the Group’s properties classified as Level 3 are as follows:

EI77ERERAR A%
HE -
FARERRE AT ENRR %
LGRIEWAPS BEAFIEERE il S Relationship of
Valuation Significant Weighted unobservable inputs
method unobservable inputs average to fair value
HAthpE (iR le v vor - ANEY/E S EEa EllRel e YE eaus -8% e ERGS A HEE -
Other WABARE| BELEZRE rE) (2014: -12%) The higher the premium,
properties Market Premium/(discount) the higher the fair value.
comparison on features of the
approach or property compared to PrEfE A PERE -
income comparable properties The higher the discount,
capitalisation the lower the fair value.
approach

VAR B AT LR 2E A
MWE EZmE S GrED
J92 5 B LEREAE
FRIKZE EHIZEE > B
WAt 2 T 55528 -
i ~ (2 - Hi
AR ~ M R A
[ E -

Premium/(discount) on features of a property is determined after taken into account various
factors, such as time for market movement, location, accessibility, building age/condition,
floor level, size, layout, with reference to the differences in features with comparable
properties.
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WBERRNE: (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
5. EENAENAYE 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

(&)

5.3 BIARAEE BAIEER
TH @&

f

Wl

BBz FEERE
BT E s T
FEATTISIRE R AR -

i

(A) A PHERIER

SRR
ReEzE (M 25)
VI ~ Sehh Rt
(Bf5E 26)
- BE
HitrgaE (M3 27)
- B

FEERIERE
FREYE (s 25)
VISE ~ 231 Reasetis
(BaE 26)
- B
HAtrgE (e 27)
- B

AEEZIFEMEER
FNRAEE - EBRE
“ g RIS (2014
) -

Precious metals

5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

The fair values of precious metals are determined by obtaining quoted market prices in
active market or market quote with certain adjustments.

(A) Fair value hierarchy

Non-financial assets
Investment properties (Note 25)
Properties, plant and equipment
(Note 26)
- Premises
Other assets (Note 27)
- Precious metals

Non-financial assets
Investment properties (Note 25)
Properties, plant and equipment
(Note 26)
- Premises
Other assets (Note 27)
- Precious metals

2015
FREk  FoEk F=E@k dEst
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BT BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
- - 414,736 414,736
- 310,266 6,462,986 6,773,252
- 53,393 - 53,393

2014
gk Bk E=IE) et
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
HRTT BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
- - 1,280,271 1,280,271
- 213,970 6,821,340 7,035,310
- 11,691 - 11,691

There were no non-financial asset transfers between level 1 and level 2 for the Group during

the year (2014: Nil).
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WBERRNE: (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

5. EENAENAYE 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

(&)

5.3 BIARAEE BAIEER
TH @&

(B) HE=|BRAEHE EH)

201541 H 1 H
e
-
- FCEYRATEREY
B
- EfRE R
- BT
- R
e
e
it
MR
5
I 2 224

2015412 531 H

Jf* 2015 ££ 12 [ 31 HEFARY
FERE A ET AU
RAAREH RS
- EVEE AT EARE LS

g
- EflFEZ

(B) Reconciliation of level 3 items

At 1 January 2015
Gains
- Income statement
- Net gain from fair value adjustments on
investment properties
- Net gain from revaluation of premises
- Other comprehensive income
- Revaluation of premises
Depreciation
Additions
Sales
Transfer out of level 3
Reclassification
Exchange difference

At 31 December 2015

Total unrealised gains for the year included in income
statement for non-financial assets held as at 31

December 2015

- Net gain from fair value adjustments on
investment properties

- Net gain from revaluation of premises
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5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

2015
JEERiEE

Non-financial assets
Y5~ B R
Eiai
Properties,
plant and
BEyk equipment
Investment BiE
properties Premises
BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
1,280,271 6,821,340
35,446 -
- 2,321
- 353,940
- (123,176)
2,903 26,099
(901,200) (376,178)
- (217,000)
(1,498) 1,498
(1,186) (25,858)
414,736 6,462,986
35,446 -
- 2,321
35,446 2,321
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WBERRNE: (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
5. EENAENAYE 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

(8
5.3 DA EE RIS 5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)
IR (&
(B) E=/E4kHITE HEH) (B) Reconciliation of level 3 items (continued)
(&
2014
FEBREE

Non-financial assets

Edi]
Properties,
plant and
‘&Y equipment
Investment B
properties Premises
BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
W2014FE1H1H At 1 January 2014
Wt Gains
- Wk - Income statement 1,147,938 4,677,510
- AV A EFR - Net gain from fair value adjustments on
e investment properties 126,896 -
-EEYIZE - s R - Net gain from revaluation of properties, plant
SFUES and equipment - 2,033
- HAtr gl - Other comprehensive income
- BEEL - Revaluation of premises - 336,325
e Depreciation - (65,649)
HE Additions 821 28,906
A =B Transfer into level 3 30,000 1,830,099
ECap| Reclassification (24,085) 24,085
PS8 728 Exchange difference (1,299) (11,969)
20144412 H 31 H At 31 December 2014 1,280,271 6,821,340
A 2014 4F 12 H 31 HEAH Total unrealised gains for the year included in income
JEERE E N ENRT AU statement for non-financial assets held as at 31
RIVRE W w483 December 2014
- BN ERE R - Net gain from fair value adjustments on
Wt investment properties 126,896 -
- EfliFEZF - Net gain from revaluation of premises - 2,033
126,896 2,033
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WBERRNE: (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
5. EENAENAYE 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)
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HeAt E PR A H
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EZEE (D
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TEME BZER -
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5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

(B) Reconciliation of level 3 items (continued)

The transfer of properties into and out of level 3 is due to change in the
premium/(discount) on features applied between the subject and comparable
properties during the year. Premium/(discount) on features is determined with
reference to differences in features between the subject properties and the
comparable properties recently transacted in the market. As comparable
properties that come from recent market transactions may be different in each
year, the premium/(discount) on features applied between the subject and
comparable properties would change from year to year accordingly. As a result,
the significance of adjustments made to observable market inputs may vary and
lead to the transfer of properties into and out of level 3.
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PRI EE (&)
6. FFIEUWA

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

6. Net interest income

2015 2014
BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
FIRUA Interest income
TFIA 5] B oA 4 R i Due from banks and other financial institutions
HE0E 1,956,071 2,961,173
BEEK Advances to customers 5,343,647 5,630,733
BHE R A HESE(EETA Investment in securities and financial assets at
B2 SRlEE fair value through profit or loss 1,429,710 1,410,300
HoAh Others 17,056 35,034
8,746,484 10,037,240
FIESETH Interest expense
(] 28 e FLAM <t R RS (Y Due to banks and other financial institutions
FKH (711,066) (1,027,085)
HFEER Deposits from customers (3,024,093) (3,527,257)
it Others (291,175) (292,849)
(4,026,334) (4,847,191)
FERIEBA Net interest income 4,720,150 5,190,049
# 2 2015412 H 31 H 14 Included within interest income is HK$1,150,000 (2014: HK$211,000) of interest with respect
& Z FE UL A BIE W E B to income accrued on advances classified as impaired for the year ended 31 December 2015.

TRAE B TE ST H S U A
# 1,150,000 7T (2014 4 :
Hi 211,000 7))

JELLA P EEB (B AR
SRIE ISR A AT EE
IR EBA B A B H (f
SRR Rl A
8,730,926,000 JT (2014 4E :
$#E#7 10,014,009,000 7T) K
&7 4,024,530,000 57 2014
£ W 4,842,420,000
JL)

Included within interest income and interest expense are HK$8,730,926,000 (2014:
HK$10,014,009,000) and HK$4,024,530,000 (2014: HK$4,842,420,000), before hedging
effect, for financial assets and financial liabilities that are not recognised at fair value through

profit or loss respectively.
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WBERFRNE: (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
7. BRBERESIA 7. Net fee and commission income

2015 2014
AT T AT
HK$'000 HK$'000
B & B A Fee and commission income
e & Securities brokerage 298,548 213,931
BRI Loan commissions 288,530 298,396
PREZE{H < Bills commissions 198,530 235,620
Bl Funds distribution 162,948 159,240
frbg Insurance 145,102 117,692
BEHRES Credit card business 109,915 64,026
R AR TSS Payment services 65,442 69,222
TREFE Safe deposit box 26,005 23,218
SR NEUE RS Trust and custody services 7,689 7,825
HE G Currency exchange 555 543
HoAttr Others 143,263 143,252
1,446,527 1,332,965
REE RS H Fee and commission expense
ERREE Credit card business (11,336) (3,743)
e CEW Securities brokerage (40,636) (30,154)
R R TSS Payment services (22) (236)
Trbe Insurance (144) (892)
HoAth Others (37,439) (43,214)
(89,577) (78,239)
FIREERASA Net fee and commission income 1,356,950 1,254,726
HrEE Of which arise from
- JEDIAEEE EET ATERS - financial assets or financial liabilities not at fair value
ZeRE SR AR through profit or loss
- g R A - Fee and commission income 268,307 261,207
- IRIBE ST - Fee and commission expense (3,800) (7,317)
264,507 253,890
- (SRt EAM T EE) - trust and other fiduciary activities
- IRBE R EESUTA - Fee and commission income 19,897 19,593
- IRBE R e H - Fee and commission expense (1,208) (1,207)
18,689 18,386
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MRS () Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8. BB MR 8. Net trading gain
Hlas S (8D JRE Net gain/(loss) from
- INESZ 5 KA MR B i - foreign exchange and foreign exchange
products
- FIFETE - interest rate instruments
- PEHibh - commodities
- et - equity

9. Hii&REEFUWES 9. Net gain on other financial assets

af it HHERE S IR RS Net gain on available-for-sale securities
B ESGE R Net gain on loans and receivables
At Others
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2015 2014
BT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000

37,696 (32,236)
17,171 44,835
(666) (3,783)
(42) 42
54,159 8,858

2015 2014
BT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000

256,051 93,642
839

79,531 28,888

336,421 122,530
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10. EAGEUA

SIFTAR A

- JEETESFRE
FEYFE 2 S RIA
W ARIRE YR
HiAth

TARREYE Z S
BRI R
ZHBEKE T ER
212,000 7T (2014 4 :
% 34,000 7T.) -

P By HE IR
Ao BRI S
& 446,000 7T (2014 4 :
Heilr 454,000 7T) ©

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

10. Other operating income

2015 2014
BT T ATT
HK$'000 HK$°000

Dividend income from investment in securities
- Unlisted investments 7,236 9,345
Gross rental income from investment properties 31,843 49,846
Less: Outgoings in respect of investment properties (3,208) (3,063)
Others 6,537 14,680
42,408 70,808

Included in the “Outgoings in respect of investment properties” is HK$212,000 (2014:
HK$34,000) of direct operating expenses related to investment properties that were not let

during the year.

Contingent rent included in the “Gross rental income from investment properties” amounted

to HK$446,000 (2014: HK$454,000).
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11. BRI

BEFEK
R IR
- B
- HlE
- URIE E MR AR

T8 BRFE EFRE
HEFIFHER
HEETh
- B
- HE
- URIE E SRR

HrdH AR B RO ELE
L (D

BB EAE TR
HAtt

BB B

11. Net charge of impairment allowances

Advances to customers
Individually assessed
- New allowances
- Releases
- Recoveries

Net charge of individually assessed loan
impairment allowances

Collectively assessed
- New allowances
- Releases

- Recoveries

Net reversal/(charge) of collectively assessed loan
impairment allowances

Net charge of loan impairment allowances

Others

Net charge of impairment allowances
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2015 2014
BT HRTT
HK$'000 HK$'000

(1,050,285) (848,826)

256,042 23,909
19,453 5,084
(774,790) (818,933)
(90,957) (163,900)
231,987 78,348
785 191
141,815 (85,361)
(632,975) (904,294)
(349) -
(633,324) (904,294)
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MBS (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
12. BT H 12. Operating expenses

AFEA (BEESHE)
- T R A e
- BIREA

PR Rt St (EdE
)
- FREf S

HARHL

- Htl

e
R GRS

- et

- JEAET IR
HAACE S H

Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments)
- Salaries and other costs
- Pension cost

Premises and equipment expenses (excluding
depreciation)
- Rental of premises
- Information technology
- Others

Depreciation

Auditor’s remuneration
- Audit services
- Non-audit services

Other operating expenses
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2015 2014
BT BETIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
1,151,425 1,092,159
255,149 143,334
1,406,574 1,235,493
256,906 253,337
169,431 172,342
57,699 53,176
484,036 478,855
222,817 224,768
6,195 6,044
219 294
512,321 552,135

2,632,162 2,497,589
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13.

14.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

NEYELYE,ANF 13. Net gain from disposal of/fair value adjustments on investment

(EEEE-Paedlie

HEREYSE s
B AR
pEIE

HE EEYSE - S8 14,
%ﬁ)ﬁﬁZﬁéqﬁé/ (B

VR g

VB ~ [ E RS b e
ZEHE51R

Efli R E P

properties
2015 2014
T AT IT
HK$'000 HK$°000
Net gain from disposal of investment properties 85,600
Net gain from fair value adjustments on investment
properties 35,446 129,896
121,046 129,896

Net gain/(loss) from disposal/revaluation of properties, plant and

equipment
2015 2014
T AT IT
HK$'000 HK$°000
Net gain from disposal of premises 17,468
Net loss from disposal of equipment, fixtures and
fittings (543) (2,380)
Net gain from revaluation of premises 2,321 2,033
19,246 (347)
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HEEHIAR

15. Taxation

Taxation in the income statement represents:

Current tax
Hong Kong profits tax
- Current year taxation
- Over-provision in prior years

Overseas taxation
- Current year taxation
- (Over)/under-provision in prior years

Deferred tax
Origination and reversal of temporary differences
and unused tax credits

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2015 2014
BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
446,508 435,114
(5,168) (5,293)
441,340 429,821
59,758 230,721
(5,193) 3,747
495,905 664,289
(14,170) (49,109)
481,735 615,180

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2014: 16.5%) on the
estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the year. Taxation on overseas
profits has been calculated on the estimated assessable profits for the year at the rates of
taxation prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

The taxation on the Group’s profit before taxation that differs from the theoretical amount
that would arise using the taxation rate of Hong Kong is as follows:

Profit before taxation

Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5% (2014: 16.5%)

Effect of different taxation rates in other countries
Income not subject to taxation

Expenses not deductible for taxation purposes
Tax losses not recognised

Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses
Over-provision in prior years

Foreign withholding tax

Taxation charge

Effective tax rate
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2015 2014
BT T BETIT
HK$'000 HK$'000

3,378,512 3,366,679

557,454 555,502
28,680 23,610
(88,297) (55,470)
48,460 52,662
1 1

9 (14)
(10,361) (1,546)
(54,193) 40,435
481,735 615,180
14.26% 18.27%
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MR () Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
16. f&E 16. Dividends

2015 2014
ESH aag ESES k]
pe:sli BT A AT
Per share Total Per share Total
HK$ HK$'000 HK$ HK$'000
ARG Interim dividends 77.5 542,500 100 700,000
201546 H 11 H » #% On 11 June 2015, the Board declared an interim dividend of HK$77.5 per ordinary share
B E R AR B R R amounting to HK$542,500,000, which was paid on 30 June 2015.

W 775 JT > KEEA RS
542,500,000 J¢ - i B
2015 4 6 B 30 H¥f -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

17. Retirement benefit costs

(a) FEftkatal

REBGTAREBETH
FLEMLGTE E 2 (R
TREARG] ) E o 2 BRSEIR R
ST 8 R Hh S Orak i 5 AR
EEt#E - RIBRCERIRE
E> (B BA SR RE T
2R EREAN S
2 5% Mife X A
REEEAAH 2 5%ZE
15% A E(HTES 2 i
FH) - (BB ARERRIK -
FERTRRSE A4k L B
AR5 AR 10 FEbL 55
155 FUgE 100% 2 g+
R - PTG 3 4EE 9 4F
HYE T REAM R A& L
e FHHA (0 BB A 1 B
A1) > FULEL 30%ZE 90%
Z R F K- (B B U8
FHERK - HZ (Rl TR
SRt ERGT) FRIR -

W (SRR p)E 2000
F12 7 1 HEH > A5
TR B rh SR ORI 2 3R
EEtE] LTI ZEEAR
R B S E fRaR (B A
FRAE] - B EH AR TR
B RaR B R B A
PRAE] R R A T B A
T AR AL -

HZE 201512 A 31 H>
TEIER&AEN 887,000 T
(2014 4 @ 4y &
699,000 JT) ZIZULHERK
% MR IRETE 2 ke
HEL By i 39,917,000 T
(2014 4 @ 4y &
38,204,000 7T ) » MiAEEH
I 58 i < 8 LR A
R4 By s 8,184,000 7T
(2014 4 @ 4y & #
6,950,000 7T) °

(a) Defined contribution schemes

Defined contribution schemes for the Group’s employees are ORSO schemes exempted
under the MPF Schemes Ordinance and the BOC-Prudential Easy Choice MPF Scheme.
Under the ORSO schemes, employees make monthly contributions to the ORSO schemes
equal to 5% of their basic salaries, while the employer makes monthly contributions equal
to 5% to 15% of the employees’ monthly basic salaries, depending on years of service. The
employees are entitled to receive 100% of the employer’s contributions upon retirement,
early retirement or termination of employment after completing 10 years of service.
Employees with 3 to 9 years of service are entitled to receive the employer’s contributions
at a scale ranging from 30% to 90% upon termination of employment for other reasons
other than summary dismissal. All employer’s contributions received by employee are
subject to MPF Schemes Ordinance.

With the implementation of the MPF Schemes Ordinance on 1 December 2000, the Group
also participates in the BOC-Prudential Easy Choice MPF Scheme, of which the trustee is
BOCI-Prudential Trustee and the investment manager is BOCI-Prudential Manager, which
are related parties of the Bank.

The Group’s total contributions made to the ORSO schemes for the year ended 31
December 2015 amounting to approximately HK$39,917,000 (2014: approximately
HK$38,204,000), after a deduction of forfeited contributions of approximately HK$887,000
(2014: approximately HK$699,000). For the MPF Scheme, the Group contributed
approximately HK$8,184,000 (2014: approximately HK$6,950,000) for the year ended 31
December 2015.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

17. Retirement benefit costs (continued)

(b) Defined benefit schemes

The Group operates an unfunded defined benefit plan for all its retired employees. Under
the plan, the employees are entitled to retirement benefits which included fully redeemed
medical care, housing allowance and other retirement benefits.

The plan is exposed to interest rate risk and the risk of changes in the life expectancy for

pensioners.

The most recent actuarial valuations of the present value of the defined benefit obligations
were carried out at 31 December 2015 by using the projected unit credit actuarial valuation
method.

The principal actuarial assumptions used as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

2015

Discount rate (%) 2

Expected rate of medical insurance cost increases (%) 6

Expected rate of social entertainment cost increases (%) 0
Expected rate of retirement souvenir cost increases (%)

0

Expected rate of rental increases (%) 3

Expected rate of withdrawal (%) 3-18

Expected death rate ERAOLEmR

Hong Kong

Life Tables 2012

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions as at the end of the reporting
period is shown below:

SLER A TRt tE A
Zci-wa il RS 3/
CRD) CRAD)

Increase/ Increase/

(decrease) (decrease)

EEs= in defined EbxiE/ D in defined

Increase benefit Decrease benefit

in rate obligations in rate obligations

AT AT

% HK$'000 % HK$'000

Discount rate 0.1 (2,010) 0.1 2,070
Expected rate of medical

insurance cost 0.5 10,540 0.5 (9,140)

168



35 NCB #1731 % 441

rgssRRiE: (&)
17. BIREFIERA (&)

(b) FEMZETE] (&)
LR TRAREIIR
FE R A SR
FRERTE RIS 2 58 -

FESF AW R RN TERE 4G T H]
HOFEBRESZATT -

FIABIREA
TEFIELE

AFEE N TR AT B R
ZTAMIRESCAT

Ak 12 & 5 AR
2HEE S5
54% 10 4

10 L0k

FRIILERE L

FRIE Az A AR AL R ]
RZIFEIAHA R 20 4

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

17. Retirement benefit costs (continued)

(b) Defined benefit schemes (continued)

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined based on a method that extrapolates
the impact on defined benefit obligations as a result of reasonable changes in key

assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period.

The total expenses recognised in the consolidated income statement in respect of the plan

is as follows:

Recognised in pension cost

Benefit liability

Expected payment to the defined benefit plan in future years are as follows:

Within the next 12 months
Between 2 and 5 years
Between 5 and 10 years
Over 10 years

Total expected payments

2015

O EwTT

HK$'000

102,330

102,330

2015

O EwTT

HK$'000

2,550
10,620
15,230

216,660

245,060

The average duration of the defined benefit obligations at the end of the reporting period is

20 years.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

18. EE -~ 585 A B K 18. Directors’, senior management’s and key personnel’s emoluments

EEASHE
() EEHiE

REEEAEE AR
TEERFRTRE
It~ = ieft 2k
B EfT R HEFERCR
Wz R T

s
HoAt

(a) Directors’ emoluments

Details of the emoluments paid to or receivable by the directors of the Bank in respect
of their services rendered for the Bank and managing the subsidiaries within the Group

during the year are as follows:

Fees
Other emoluments

170

2015 2014
BT e
HK$'000 HK$'000

1,184 2,674

9,119 8,516

10,303 11,190
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WBEERNE: (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
18. EE ~ 585 A B K 18. Directors’, senior management’s and key personnel’s emoluments

EEAEME (&) (continued)

(b) CG-5 TEH&EEEA (b) Remuneration for Senior Management and Key Personnel under CG-5

B R EFEN BRI

eEE%EY > CG-5 Pursuant to CG-5 Guideline on a Sound Remuneration System issued by the HKMA,
SR fa B 30 T 1 P 45 details of the remuneration for Senior Management and Key Personnel of the Group
50) REEAREH during the year are as follows:

EAREH A B KT

A BRSO T -

() RERBT RIS (i) Remuneration awarded during the year
2015
BHREEAR FHEAR
Senior Management Key Personnel
E 5741 E 5741 R
Non- BT &t Non- BT 45t
deferred Deferred Total deferred Deferred Total
BETIT BETot BET BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
[ 72 7 Fixed remuneration
B Cash 10,688 - 10,688 6,107 - 6,107
FLEETE Variable remuneration
s Cash 4,391 838 5,229 2,171 - 2,171
15,079 838 15,917 8,278 - 8,278
2014
ERETAE TEANE
Senior Management Key Personnel
JEIRIE JEIRIE
Non- JEIE 4Gt Non- IEHE 4T
deferred Deferred Total deferred Deferred Total
BT AR AT T BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
[ 72 57 Fixed remuneration
ko Cash 10,336 - 10,336 6,766 - 6,766
pEAJE Variable remuneration
W Cash 4,147 542 4,689 2,142 - 2,142
14,483 542 15,025 8,908 - 8,908
DEHMELE 4 & The remuneration above includes 4 (2014: 4) members of Senior Management and
(2014 4 44) 54k 5 (2014: 5) members of Key Personnel.
B AER 54(2014

H154) FHAR -
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18. EE ~ 585 A B K 18. Directors’, senior management’s and key personnel’s emoluments
FEAESME (&) (continued)

(b) CG-5 TEH&EEEA (b) Remuneration for Senior Management and Key Personnel under CG-5

B R EZEN BB (continued)
(8
(i) MREEFHN (ii) Deferred remuneration
2015 2014
EREEAR EAEEEAR
Senior FEAR Senior FEAE
Management Key Personnel Management Key Personnel
ARTT ARTT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
PRI Deferred remuneration

CEE Vested 521 - 430 -
KERB Unvested 1,377 - 1,060 -
1,898 - 1,490 -
B1H1IH At 1 January 1,060 - 948 -
ERT Awarded 838 - 542 -
(2975 Paid out (521) - (430) -

R IE A Reduced through

[iinEiAbG %z as performance

adjustments - - - -
w12 A 31 H At 31 December 1,377 - 1,060 -

B EE AR o AR For the purpose of disclosure, Senior Management and Key Personnel mentioned in this

KNS EE A& T section are defined according to the HKMA's Guideline on a Sound Remuneration

BEANEIREBEESER System.

R e Ay 387 B o R 9

50) EE e

- EAEE B EEE - Senior Management: The senior executives designated by the Board who are
BENSREE AN responsible for oversight of the firm-wide strategy or material business lines, including
B AR Eng B Chief Executive and Deputy General Managers.

SRS BFEITIEEH,
K EIAEERH -

- FEAE EAERE - Key Personnel: The employees whose individual business activities involve the
@i 75 ke B oK JE oK assumption of material risk which may have significant impact on risk exposure, or
I HEERFEFER whose individual responsibilities are directly and materially linked to the risk
A ol AR management, or those who have direct influence to the profit, including heads of
EHEER AR material business lines, Head of Treasury, as well as Head of Risk Management

B B EFEEREY Department.
BOANR WEEHA

FFRAE R R BAL E

B AR R

EHE A
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19. EEHRESRERSTT 19. Cash and balances with banks and other financial institutions

[

R UL RITHISEER

7 I SRAT B L M < R S
HIGSER

FESRAT e HoAth e A — (8
FREIHZ ERIEL

20. A PEE{EET AR 20.
ZEREE

AN ESIRE At fair value

JEE 75 Treasury bills
HM{E%57  Other debt
securities

2015 2014
BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
Cash 594,148 593,355
Balances with central banks 16,038,647 18,694,761
Balances with banks and other financial institutions
6,232,044 17,112,902
Placements with banks and other financial institutions
maturing within one month 31,379,966 21,881,782
54,244,805 58,282,800
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
FERUATEEEL
FTABREZ SREE
Financial assets
R EEE designated at fair value Lt
Trading assets through profit or loss Total
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
BT AT BT AT BT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
6,714,292 5,899,294 - 6,714,292 5,899,294
249,280 255,919 249,280 255,919
6,714,292 5,899,294 249,280 255,919 6,963,572 6,155,213
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MBSRFENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
20. N PEE{EETAIEE  20. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

ZeRiEE (&)
SO SRR i 2 o)A Total securities are analysed by place of listing as follows:
e
FERIAPEEE
FrAERS . SRR E
Financial assets
REHMEE designated at fair value
Trading assets through profit or loss
2015 2014 2015 2014
BT T AT AT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B Debt securities
- REBLEW - Listed in Hong Kong - - 249,280 255,919
- JE L - Unlisted 6,714,292 5,899,294 - B
SE R UEEE Total securities 6,714,292 5,899,294 249,280 255,919
B SRR S TR > Total securities are analysed by type of issuer as follows:
W :
S B DL EEML
FrAER . SREE
Financial assets
REMEE designated at fair value
Trading assets through profit or loss
2015 2014 2015 2014
AT T AT AT T AT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ETER Sovereigns 6,714,292 5,899,294 - -
INEIEHE Corporate entities - - 249,280 255,919
SO AAEEE Total securities 6,714,292 5,899,294 249,280 255,919
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

21. Derivative financial instruments

The Group enters into the following exchange rate, interest rate, commodity and equity
related derivative financial instrument contracts for trading and risk management purposes:

Currency forwards represent commitments to purchase and sell foreign currency on a
future date.

Currency, interest rate and precious metal swaps are commitments to exchange one set of
cash flows or commodity for another. Swaps result in an exchange of currencies, interest
rates (for example, fixed rate for floating rate), or precious metals (for example, silver
swaps) or a combination of all these (for example, cross-currency interest rate swaps).
Except for certain currency swap contracts, no exchange of principal takes place.

Foreign currency, interest rate, precious metal and equity options are contractual
agreements under which the seller (writer) grants the purchaser (holder) the right, but not
the obligation, either to buy (a call option) or sell (a put option) at or by a set date or during a
set period, a specific amount of the financial instrument at a predetermined price. In
consideration for the assumption of foreign exchange and interest rate risk, the seller
receives a premium from the purchaser. Options are negotiated over-the-counter between
the Group and its counterparty or traded through the stock exchange (for example,
exchange-traded stock option).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

21. Derivative financial instruments (continued)

The contract/notional amounts and fair values of derivative financial instruments held by
the Group are set out in the following tables. The contract/notional amounts of these
instruments indicate the volume of transactions outstanding at the balance sheet dates and
certain of them provide a basis for comparison with fair value instruments recognised on
the balance sheet. However, they do not necessarily indicate the amounts of future cash
flows involved or the current fair values of the instruments and, therefore, do not indicate
the Group’s exposure to credit or market risks. The derivative financial instruments become
favourable (assets) or unfavourable (liabilities) as a result of fluctuations in foreign
exchange rates, market interest rates, metal prices or equity prices relative to their terms.
The aggregate fair values of derivative financial instruments can fluctuate significantly from
time to time.

The Group trades OTC derivative products mainly for customer business. The Group
strictly follows risk management policies and requirement in providing derivative products
to our customers and in trading of derivative products in the interbank market.

Derivatives are also used to manage the interest rate risk of the banking book. A derivative
instrument must be included in the approved product list before any transactions for that
instrument can be made. There are limits to control the notional amount of exposure arising
from derivative transactions, and the maximum tenor of the deal is set. Every derivative
transaction must be input into the relevant system for settlement, mark-to-market
revaluation, reporting and control.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

21. Derivative financial instruments (continued)

The following tables summarise the contract/notional amounts of each class of derivative

financial instrument as at 31 December:

Exchange rate contracts
Spot and forwards
Swaps
Foreign currency options

- Options purchased
- Options written

Interest rate contracts
Swaps

Commodity contracts

177

2015

FrRr&EtRA

HyErEhA

Not qualified
HE for hedge st
Trading accounting Total
BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
8,420,500 - 8,420,500
37,601,988 - 37,601,988
9,135 - 9,135
9,135 - 9,135
46,040,758 - 46,040,758
33,758,773 231,725 33,990,498
26,438 - 26,438
79,825,969 231,725 80,057,694
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

21. Derivative financial instruments (continued)

2014
TG
Eapel v 7
Not qualified
== for hedge 4=t
Trading accounting Total
BETT AT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Exchange rate contracts
Spot and forwards 13,828,777 - 13,828,777
Swaps 28,700,798 - 28,700,798
Foreign currency options
- Options purchased 5,994 - 5,994
- Options written 5,994 - 5,994
42,541,563 - 42,541,563
Interest rate contracts
Swaps 24,589,557 231,885 24,821,442
Commodity contracts 684,545 - 684,545
Equity contracts 260,297 - 260,297
68,075,962 231,885 68,307,847

Not qualified for hedge accounting: derivative contracts which do not qualify as hedges for
accounting purposes but are managed in conjunction with the financial instruments
designated at fair value through profit or loss are separately disclosed in compliance with

the requirements set out in the Banking (Disclosure) Rules.
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21. Derivative financial instruments (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

The following tables summarise the fair values of each class of derivative financial
instrument as at 31 December:

2015
DIEERE DHEARE
Fair value assets Fair value liabilities

FRERA FRERA

HPEEhA HPEEhA

Not Not

qualified qualified
H¥®  for hedge $ET H¥®  for hedge $ET
Trading accounting Total Trading accounting Total
BT BT BT BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
373,801 - 373,801 (207,309) - (207,309)
311,226 - 311,226 (65,690) - (65,690)
15 - 15 - - -
- - - (15) - (15)
685,042 - 685,042 (273,014) - (273,014)
11,135 - 11,135 (12,296) (17,516) (29,812)
89 - 89 (118) - (118)
696,266 - 696,266 (285,428) (17,516) (302,944)
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Exchange rate contracts
Spot and forwards
Swaps
Foreign currency

options
- Options purchased
- Options written

Interest rate contracts
Swaps

Commodity contracts

Equity contracts

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

21. Derivative financial instruments (continued)

2014
ATAARE PEA
Fair value assets Fair value liabilities

ATFLRA R

$hgatik gtk

Not Not

[ qualified . [ qualified .

RE for hedge “t RE for hedge dst
Trading  accounting Total Trading accounting Total
BT AT AT BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
359,880 - 359,880 (115,016) - (115,016)
44,500 - 44,500 (102,497) - (102,497)
79 - 79 - - -
- - - (79) - (79)
404,459 - 404,459 (217,592) - (217,592)
17,412 - 17,412 (26,445) (25,222) (51,667)
17,064 - 17,064 (9,152) - (9,152)
137 - 137 (95) - (95)
439,072 - 439,072 (253,284) (25,222) (278,506)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

21. Derivative financial instruments (continued)

(a) Derivative financial instruments (continued)

The table below gives the credit risk-weighted amounts of the derivative financial
instruments and is prepared with reference to the completion instructions for the HKMA
return of capital adequacy ratio.

2015 2014
BT ABETIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
Exchange rate contracts
Forwards 60,422 118,792
Swaps 190,122 74,363
Foreign currency options
- Options purchased 23 61
250,567 193,216
Interest rate contracts
Swaps 10,111 19,156
Equity contracts - 8,273
260,678 220,645

The credit risk-weighted amounts are calculated in accordance with the Banking
(Capital) Rules. The amounts are dependent upon the status of the counterparty and the
maturity characteristics of each type of contract.

The total fair values of derivatives subject to valid bilateral netting agreements for the
Group amounted to HK$190,872,000 (2014: HK$48,045,000) and the effect of valid
bilateral netting agreements amounted to HK$19,879,000 (2014: HK$16,832,000).
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22. S HAEREE 22. Advances and other accounts
2015 2014
BT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000
EPNEE Personal loans and advances 34,515,588 31,455,884
INEEER Corporate loans and advances 121,721,186 118,046,372
HEER Advances to customers 156,236,774 149,502,256
ERCBAEESE (ffsE 23) Loan impairment allowances (Note 23)
- P BIEEE - Individually assessed (433,567) (731,598)
- AR EEES - Collectively assessed (951,336) (1,238,522)
154,851,871 147,532,136
j ke Trade bills 14,072,143 16,371,563
168,924,014 163,903,699
H20154F 12 H 31 H & As at 31 December 2015, advances to customers included accrued interest of
P E RS ER R B R HK$396,489,000 (2014: HK$367,805,000).
396,489,000 jr (2014 4F :
ki 367,805,000 7T) ©
720154 12 H 31 H & As at 31 December 2015, no impairment allowance was made in respect of trade bills (2014:

HHEHE G B AE AR Nil).
EAERE (2014 4 ¢ f) -
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23. Loan impairment allowances

At 1 January 2015

Charged to income statement

Loans written off during the year
as uncollectible

Recoveries

Unwind of discount on impairment

allowances
Exchange difference

At 31 December 2015

At 1 January 2015

Charged/(credited) to income
statement

Loans written off during the year
as uncollectible

Recoveries

Exchange difference

At 31 December 2015
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2015
B RIREA
Individually assessed
fBA AF il
Personal Corporate Total
BT T AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
17,298 714,300 731,598
16,063 758,727 774,790
(14,983) (1,015,305) (1,030,288)
1,762 17,691 19,453
- (1,150) (1,150)
(1,973) (58,863) (60,836)
18,167 415,400 433,567
2015
BHATHE
Collectively assessed
A AF il
Personal Corporate Total
BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
98,864 1,139,658 1,238,522
90,172 (231,987) (141,815)
(117,742) (117,742)
785 785
(8,114) (20,300) (28,414)
63,965 887,371 951,336
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23. ERE®ER (%) 23. Loan impairment allowances (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2014
P A
Individually assessed

N 7] st

Personal Corporate Total

AT BT BT

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

2014 1H1H At 1 January 2014 13,199 267,714 280,913

N R T e Charged to income statement 7,520 811,413 818,933
AR PIEE = AR ET SR Loans written off during the year

as uncollectible (4,234) (357,425) (361,659)

YT EES IR Recoveries 1,883 4,101 5,984

PrERLRE 2 Sl Unwind of discount on impairment

allowances - (211) (211)

PEE 57 724K Exchange difference (1,070) (11,292) (12,362)

H2014F 12 H 31 H At 31 December 2014 17,298 714,300 731,598

2014
FeH Rt
Collectively assessed

fEA AT st

Personal Corporate Total

AT T AT AT

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

201441 H1H At 1 January 2014 77,845 1,109,170 1,187,015

AU T T Charged to income statement 37,933 47,428 85,361
IS 2 R R Loans written off during the year

as uncollectible (17,193) - (17,193)

U Bl ESEHHRTE Recoveries 191 - 191

P 52 724 Exchange difference 88 (16,940) (16,852)

#2014 12 H 31 H At 31 December 2014 98,864 1,139,658 1,238,522
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

24. Financial investments

2015
BANPHES IR PR ATIR
At fair value At amortised cost
THHE
SMEE BEZR
Available-  ZF[HIH#ESH SRRIEREK
for-sale Held-to- Loans
financial maturity and W=t
assets securities receivables Total
AT AT AT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Treasury bills 18,118,392 2,257,798 - 20,376,190
Other debt securities 22,716,901 208,732 585,792 23,511,425
40,835,293 2,466,530 585,792 43,887,615
Certificates of deposit 11,043,688 - - 11,043,688
Total debt securities and
certificates of deposit 51,878,981 2,466,530 585,792 54,931,303
Equity securities 4,613 - - 4,613
Others 472,067 - - 472,067
52,355,661 2,466,530 585,792 55,407,983
2014
¥ EE R Y SH AT iR
At fair value At amortised cost
Ak
EBRIERE Az
Available-  FHIHEEZ  ERURERGK
for-sale Held-to- Loans
financial maturity and 4=t
assets securities receivables Total
AT AT AT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Treasury bills 12,699,355 2,374,940 - 15,074,295
Other debt securities 21,802,534 243,450 2,074,594 24,120,578
34,501,889 2,618,390 2,074,594 39,194,873
Certificates of deposit 7,897,685 - - 7,897,685
Total debt securities and
certificates of deposit 42,399,574 2,618,390 2,074,594 47,092,558
Equity securities 75,766 - - 75,766
42,475,340 2,618,390 2,074,594 47,168,324
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24. &EE (8) 24. Financial investments (continued)
SRS ERE i o758 Financial investments is analysed by place of listing as follows:
Wr e
2015
TR
SRIEE HFEE
Available-  ZIHAHZES: SRERIERGK
for-sale Held-to- Loans
financial maturity and
assets securities receivables
BT BT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BR85S Debt securities and certificates of deposit
- REALT - Listed in Hong Kong 3,219,469 - .
- AEBLSN BT - Listed outside Hong Kong 6,265,404 42,543 -
9,484,873 42,543 -
- JE b - Unlisted 42,394,108 2,423,987 585,792
51,878,981 2,466,530 585,792
it Equity securities
- JEEH - Unlisted 4,613 _ B
HoAth Others
- ek - Unlisted 472,067 - -
52,355,661 2,466,530 585,792
HAZFMHHZ EhEs Market value of listed held-to-maturity
A securities 43,286
2014
T
BRERE ez
Available-  FIHIFH%  EEURELEK
for-sale Held-to- Loans
financial maturity and
assets securities receivables
BT AT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ERSEE 57 ATS Debt securities and certificates of deposit
- WEELET - Listed in Hong Kong 2,118,557 - -
- READSN - Listed outside Hong Kong 3,818,449 49,148 -
5,937,006 49,148 -
- JEET - Unlisted 36,462,568 2,569,242 2,074,594

42,399,574 2,618,390 2,074,594

it dhrtee Equity securities
- JEEH - Unlisted 75,766 _ B
42,475,340 2,618,390 2,074,594
HAZFMHHZ EhESs Market value of listed held-to-maturity
e securities 48,095
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

24. Financial investments (continued)

Financial investments is analysed by type of issuer as follows:

2015
THRHE

SRIEE HEE
Available-  F[HIH#ESH SRMEREK
for-sale Held-to- Loans
financial maturity and
assets securities receivables
BT AT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Sovereigns 17,267,770 1,690,727 -
Public sector entities* 1,397,813 111,195 -
Banks and other financial institutions 27,633,868 567,071 355,393
Corporate entities 6,056,210 97,537 230,399
52,355,661 2,466,530 585,792

2014
T

BRERE FEz
Available-  FHIHEZ:  SRUREIGK
for-sale Held-to- Loans
financial maturity and
assets securities receivables
BT BT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Sovereigns 11,981,667 1,778,199 -
Public sector entities* 233,982 130,399 -
Banks and other financial institutions 21,682,684 596,741 -
Corporate entities 8,577,007 113,051 2,074,594
42,475,340 2,618,390 2,074,594

* Included available-for-sale financial assets of HK$1,397,813,000 (2014: HK$233,982,000) and
held-to-maturity securities of HK$111,195,000 (2014: HK$130,399,000) which are eligible to be
classified as public sector entities under the Banking (Capital) Rules.
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24. Financial investments (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

The movements in financial investments are summarised as follows:

At 1 January 2015

Additions

Disposals, redemptions and maturity
Amortisation

Change in fair value

Exchange difference

At 31 December 2015

At 1 January 2014

Additions

Disposals, redemptions and maturity
Amortisation

Change in fair value

Reclassification

Exchange difference

At 31 December 2014

2015
THRHE

SRIEE HEE
Available-  ZFIHAHEZS SRERGK
for-sale Held-to- Loans
financial maturity and
assets securities receivables
BT BT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
42,475,340 2,618,390 2,074,594
64,175,644 - 1,800,033
(52,574,718) - (3,193,198)
(80,925) 6,900 (46,354)
280,066 - -
(1,919,746) (158,760) (49,283)
52,355,661 2,466,530 585,792

2014
Tk

BREE FiEx
Available-  FIHAHEESG  SRERGK
for-sale Held-to- Loans
financial maturity and
assets securities receivables
BT AT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
40,002,637 585,442 1,684,064
53,708,654 2,317,602 2,664,630
(50,504,041) (561,214) (2,301,827)
1,053 47,288 42,432
557,098 - -
(263,152) 263,152 -
(1,026,909) (33,880) (14,705)
42,475,340 2,618,390 2,074,594

There was no debt securities reclassified out of available-for-sale category into
held-to-maturity category for the Group during the year (2014: HK$263,152,000).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

25. Investment properties

R1H1H

WE

e

I PEWEE

R BEEY)E - S5
et (et 26)

bE ST 72 AR

fr12 431 H

REYFE 2 IRIEEHTHAY
FUERIRR AU -

TEEHRA
RIITHLY (848 50 4F)
T4y (10 £ 50 4F)

EEBINTE
THIFHEY (10 422 50 47)

2015 2014

AT T AT T

HK$'000 HK$'000

At 1 January 1,280,271 1,174,938

Additions 2,903 821
Disposals (901,200)

Fair value gains 35,446 129,896

Reclassification to properties, plant and

equipment (Note 26) (1,498) (24,085)

Exchange difference (1,186) (1,299)

At 31 December 414,736 1,280,271

The carrying value of investment properties is analysed based on the remaining terms of the

leases as follows:

2015 2014
AT ATT
HK$'000 HK$’000
Held in Hong Kong

On long-term lease (over 50 years) 248,590 1,126,031
On medium-term lease (10 to 50 years) 145,820 132,090

Held outside Hong Kong
On medium-term lease (10 to 50 years) 20,326 22,150
414,736 1,280,271
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

25. Investment properties (continued)

As at 31 December 2015, investment properties were included in the balance sheet at
valuation carried out at 31 December 2015 on the basis of their fair value by an independent
firm of chartered surveyors, Savills Valuation and Professional Services Limited. The fair
value represents the price that would be received to sell each investment property in an
orderly transaction with market participants at the measurement date.

26. Properties, plant and equipment

R~ EERE

Rt
Equipment,
BE fixtures and =t
Premises fittings Total
BT T BT T AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Net book value at
1 January 2015 7,035,310 293,187 7,328,497
Additions 27,237 47,003 74,240
Disposals (381,098) (650) (381,748)
Revaluation 377,219 - 377,219
Depreciation for the year (127,328) (95,489) (222,817)
Reclassification from
investment properties
(Note 25) 1,498 - 1,498
Exchange difference (26,857) (9,283) (36,140)
Classified as assets held
for sale (132,729) - (132,729)
Net book value at
31 December 2015 6,773,252 234,768 7,008,020
At 31 December 2015
Cost or valuation 6,773,252 820,038 7,593,290
Accumulated depreciation - (585,270) (585,270)
Net book value at
31 December 2015 6,773,252 234,768 7,008,020
The analysis of cost or valuation of the above assets is as follows:
At 31 December 2015
At cost - 820,038 820,038
At valuation 6,773,252 - 6,773,252
6,773,252 820,038 7,593,290
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

26. Properties, plant and equipment (continued)

(&)
B~ [ E RS
P&
FEE  Equipment, fixtures 4EET
Premises and fittings Total
HRTT HERTT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
W2014F1H1HZ Net book value at
HETEDFE 1 January 2014 6,609,378 359,859 6,969,237
e Additions 29,233 55,763 84,996
W Disposals - (2,628) (2,628)
ik Revaluation 497,338 - 497,338
FREHTEE Depreciation for the year (111,813) (112,955) (224,768)
EH IR E A Reclassification from
CBfE 25) investment properties
(Note 25) 24,085 - 24,085
PR Exchange difference (12,911) (6,852) (19,763)
72014412 H 31 H> Net book value at
EEDEIE 31 December 2014 7,035,310 293,187 7,328,497
2014412 H 31 H At 31 December 2014
FRAE B E Cost or valuation 7,035,310 836,325 7,871,635
BEtireE Accumulated depreciation - (543,138) (543,138)
2014412 H 31 H> Net book value at
DR IE 31 December 2014 7,035,310 293,187 7,328,497
it A A E S E The analysis of cost or valuation of the above assets is as follows:
SHTAT -
H20144F 12 H 31 H At 31 December 2014
AN At cost - 836,325 836,325
A At valuation 7,035,310 - 7,035,310
7,035,310 836,325 7,871,635
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26. W% ~ B EERE 26. Properties, plant and equipment (continued)

(&)
B 2 BREME A THAF6R The carrying value of premises is analysed based on the remaining terms of the leases as
AR AR follows:
2015 2014
AT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000
TEERE Held in Hong Kong
EHATHEY (#E3H 50 47 ) On long-term lease (over 50 years) 4,602,693 4,928,200
i HAFHEY (10 424 50 &%) On medium-term lease (10 to 50 years) 1,666,127 1,589,216
FEEREDINEE Held outside Hong Kong
JiHAFEZY (10 2 50 4F) On medium-term lease (10 to 50 years) 485,875 499,608
SHATHLY (/DY 10 52) On short-term lease (less than 10 years) 18,557 18,286
6,773,252 7,035,310
#2015 4 12 H 31 H - % As at 31 December 2015, premises were included in the balance sheet at valuation carried
NEERBEENZFBE T out at 31 December 2015 on the basis of their fair value by an independent firm of chartered
AR IR R AR SR — surveyors, Savills Valuation and Professional Services Limited. The fair value represents
KA 4 BT (5 (E N B SRR the price that would be received to sell each premises in an orderly transaction with market
MAPRAEFY 2015 &£ 12 participants at the measurement date.
H 31 HBAASHE Ry B e
T BN - A ETE
et &% HEEA R
ZHIIFE ST [ T35 2 B
HET B E RS
EHE -
R¥g Lt > EEhAE R FE As a result of the above-mentioned revaluations, changes in value of the premises were
(HESE N EEE LG recognised in the premises revaluation reserve and the income statement as follows:
1 RS PR
2015 2014
AT T AT
HK$'000 HK$'000
S EEEGEE 2 B Increase in valuation credited to premises
a{E revaluation reserve 374,898 495,305
Bt E s B Increase in valuation credited to income
statement 2,321 2,033
377,219 497,338

2015412 A 31 H » & As at 31 December 2015, the net book value of premises that would have been included in
=B EER A EIR B the Group's balance sheet had the premises been carried at cost less accumulated
HEVIE  NEFEEEA depreciation was HK$607,766,000 (2014: HK$625,329,000).
BERAZ B EREFEE

kA& k2 607,766,000 JT

( 2014 4 @ ¥ %

625,329,000 JT ) ©

192



35 NCB #1731 % 441

WMBHRENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

27.

28.

Hin&E 27. Other assets
2015 2014
BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
W lol & e Repossessed assets 98,469 4,664
HE&E Precious metals 53,393 11,691
JREUS R R PN Accounts receivable and prepayments 4,143,369 997,089
4,295,231 1,013,444
ANEEEEET ABZS  28. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
=
2015 2014
BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
L= Trading liabilities
- SNPERLEIERE R AE SR - Short positions in Exchange Fund Bills and
L5 Notes 4,575,356 4,970,693
2015412 H 31 H)8H/ At 31 December 2015, there was no financial liabilities designated at fair value through
FUE By LA SHEE(LEF A profit or loss (2014: Nil).

B BRARE (2014 4
12H31H :f8) -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

29. Deposits from customers and hedge accounting

(a) Deposits from customers

2015 2014
AT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000
Demand deposits and current accounts
- Corporate 26,763,884 17,677,460
- Personal 2,767,262 2,519,367
29,531,146 20,196,827
Savings deposits
- Corporate 19,930,314 16,662,177
- Personal 39,071,432 34,635,346
59,001,746 51,297,523
Time, call and notice deposits
- Corporate 81,285,911 74,389,992
- Personal 48,443,180 63,749,593
129,729,091 138,139,585
218,261,983 209,633,935

(b) Hedge accounting

Hedges of net investments in foreign operations
As at 31 December 2015, there was no RMB-denominated deposits from customers

designated as a hedging instrument to hedge against the net investments in foreign
operations (2014: HK$1,393,565,000).

There were no gains or losses on ineffective portion recognised in the income statement
during the year (2014: Nil).
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30. HABEIE &M 30. Other accounts and provisions

2015 2014

BT T AEETT

HK$'000 HK$'000

HAth (N TREIE Other accounts payable 12,901,186 15,101,242
HEff Provisions 73,614 80,724
12,974,800 15,181,966
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

31. Deferred taxation

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of the temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements and
unused tax credits in accordance with HKAS 12 “Income Taxes”.

The major components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recorded in the balance sheet,

&) SAaETFEHE and the movements during the year are as follows:
DUR HAT AR REN 2 S 8
T
2015
DTS
Bt
Accelerated YIS EfL BEZEH
tax Property EiE  Impairment Hith &=t
depreciation  revaluation Losses  allowances Others Total
BRI BT BRI BRI BRI AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
A 2015 At 1 January
1H1H 2015 30,906 1,090,064 - (258,170) (28,498) 834,302
(&%) g (Credited)/charged
ERES to income
statement (12,750) (11) (34,976) 116,781 (83,214) (14,170)
(&50) /e H (Credited)/charged
A T 2 to other
comprehensive
income - (10,657) - - 15,548 4,891
[ T2 2E%E Exchange difference - (3,128) 1,367 4,748 264 3,251
SR BEFGHESR Classified as
EEZ AR liabilities
associated with
assets held for
sale - (21,884) - - - (21,884)
A 2015 & At 31 December
12H31H 2015 18,156 1,054,384 (33,609) (136,641) (95,900) 806,390
2014
hnzTes
RAEH
Accelerated YZEEMG B
tax Property k548 Impairment HAth =t
depreciation revaluation Losses allowances Others Total
P DT AT i o DT i DT P DT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
#2014 4 At 1 January
181H 2014 26,417 1,020,816 (412) (218,279) (115,828) 712,714
f&5c, (&5e) Charged/(credited)
Premes to income
statement 4,489 325 412 (43,489) (10,846) (49,109)
e ECEA AT Charged to other
Uz comprehensive
income - 70,286 - - 95,845 166,131
PE 2 72 4E Exchange difference - (1,363) - 3,598 2,331 4,566
A 2014 4 At 31 December
12H31H 2014 30,906 1,090,064 - (258,170) (28,498) 834,302

196



35 NCB #1731 % 441

MR ()  Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

31. PEMRIE (F) 31. Deferred taxation (continued)
&AL EREF A EIRAER Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset on an individual entity basis when there is a
JHEENEARIEAER legal right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred
B8 T R AERR T B R[5 — R taxation relates to the same authority. The following amounts, determined after appropriate
EUHERE - RITETRHERDE AR offsetting, are shown in the balance sheet:

A FIE RO T 5 B AR ARG T
SIS - TYIE&RE
BRI Z &4 et

N E R
2015 2014
BT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BIERIE S Deferred tax assets (5,962) (152,171)
IEAEFITEE (& Deferred tax liabilities 812,352 986,473
806,390 834,302
2015 2014
BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
IRIEFRIEEE (848 12 {F Deferred tax assets to be recovered after more than
ERELVAED) twelve months - (120,745)
IEAERIEEE G 12 Deferred tax liabilities to be settled after more than
H&Sf) twelve months 914,145 977,010
914,145 856,265
A 20154E 12 H 31 H A& As at 31 December 2015, the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of tax
R R BT IR AR TH & losses amounting to HK$2,503,000 (2014: HK$2,552,000). These tax losses do not expire
2B R B under the current tax legislation.

2,503,000 7T (2014 4 :
% 2,552,000 5T) - %08
BT ARR B RS
AIFREHARR -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

32. Assets held for sale

33.

35 NCB #1731 % 441

According to the Board'’s written resolution dated 11 November 2015, the Bank agreed to

sell certain premises to BOCHK.

The major classes of assets held for sale and liabilities associated with assets held for sale

are as follows:

ASSETS
Properties, plant and equipment

LIABILITIES
Deferred tax liabilities

Share capital

Issued and fully paid:
7,000,000 ordinary shares
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2015 2014
BRTT T T
HK$'000 HK$'000
132,729 -
21,884 -
110,845 -
2015 2014
ARTT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000

3,144,517 3,144,517
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34. GFEHERESMHE: 34, Notes to consolidated cash flow statement

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(a) ERFIEERIRAT

(a) Reconciliation of operating profit to operating cash inflow before

LEBS Y A taxation
R
2015 2014
BT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000
e pinvil Operating profit 3,238,220 3,237,130
Pree Depreciation 222,817 224,768
BB B R RS Net charge of impairment allowances 633,324 904,294
PTERAE (e g Unwind of discount on impairment allowances (1,150) (211)
s 2 &3k (fk Advances written off net of recoveries
SEIE €D (1,127,792) (372,677)
JEEIHA H i 3 {EH Change in balances with banks and other
ZAETRERAT B HAM financial institutions with original maturity
SRS ER over three months
) 2,430,211 1,769,870
[EEIHAH## 3 {EH Change in placements with banks and other
ZAESRAT R Ho < financial institutions with original maturity
RS~ EHHTEI over three months
pd ) 8,865,231 1,698,994
NAEE T AR Change in financial assets at fair value through
RIS 2 ) profit or loss 163,628 (1,902,773)
sk =N 1] Change in derivative financial instruments (232,756) 4,731
B EAMRETE S5 Change in advances and other accounts (4,435,098) (9,089,140)
ERIEE ) Change in financial investments (3,798,709) (5,076,011)
HAi & 28) Change in other assets (3,282,136) 2,728,151
SRAT R HoAth Rl > Change in deposits and balances from banks
7R R 4 S5 and other financial institutions (6,774,437) 8,889,582
INPEE BT ATERS Change in financial liabilities at fair value
2 eRbEET ) through profit or loss (395,337) 536,957
BT ) Change in deposits from customers 8,628,048 11,473,518
HoAthHRTE R e ) Change in other accounts and provisions (2,207,166) (47,535)
[ 2R i > B Effect of changes in exchange rates 1,152,459 695,114
SRR EH S Operating cash inflow before taxation
A 3,079,357 15,674,762
BT ISR E Cash flows from operating activities included:
PR
- CUFIE - Interest received 9,337,866 9,741,510
- EAFIE - Interest paid (4,468,941) (4,664,043)
- CUEEE - Dividend received 7,236 9,345

199




35 NCB #1731 % 441

MBsERRIEE (&)

34.

35.

SaR BRI
(&)

(b) HERFRBRESH
H&EM

JEAFFR 2 e R EH E
1t 3 {8 H N ZFFIL
FRAT S HLA S A
DK

JREIHIEAE 3 B H A
ZAESRAT e HeAth <R
RS EHIEI

JREIHIEAE 3 17 A
LS

BRE R R R

AR RAI IS I
WEATRLHZ SER
SRR
R A2 &4
A SRR I I
AT -

HIFEEEAHA
B SRR SRR IR
B DV AR SR RIR
HERENAENE
BN i RETE U
B KEH
HAthRHE - FEIH R
- LEEERDIT
-14EDLE

(AN fe

B S MR IIREBEEIR

(ERAT3E (A HAD
TR HWEEHUAN S
HF 2B RSHENZ
HAPRAFE: -

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

34. Notes to consolidated cash flow statement (continued)

(b) Analysis of the balances of cash and cash equivalents

2015 2014
BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
Cash and balances with banks and other
financial institutions with original maturity
within three months
44,060,170 45,667,954
Placements with banks and other financial
institutions with original maturity within three
months 1,205,984 3,464,730
Treasury bills with original maturity within three
months 8,556,255 3,168,387
53,822,409 52,301,071

35. Contingent liabilities and commitments

The following is a summary of the contractual amounts of each significant class of

contingent liability and commitment and the aggregate credit risk-weighted amount and is
prepared with reference to the completion instructions for the HKMA return of capital

adequacy ratio.

Direct credit substitutes

Transaction-related contingencies

Trade-related contingencies

Asset sales with recourse

Commitments that are unconditionally cancellable without
prior notice

Other commitments with an original maturity of
- up to one year
- over one year

Credit risk-weighted amount

2015 2014
BETT BETIT
HK$'000 HK$'000

21,262,146 23,145,228
1,830,203 2,571,980
7,801,271 7,957,417
5,419,397 4,741,257

75,313,331 68,666,899
1,983,255 1,158,435
9,083,933 4,673,119

122,693,536 112,914,335
21,148,878 16,759,631

The credit risk-weighted amount is calculated in accordance with the Banking (Capital)
Rules. The amount is dependent upon the status of the counterparty and the maturity

characteristics of each type of contract.
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MR (8) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

36. EAKIE 36. Capital commitments
REEARP A B The Group has the following outstanding capital commitments not provided for in the financial
HZ EARRESHT statements:
2015 2014
BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT R Z 4E AR Authorised and contracted for but not provided for 8,571 20,086
Et A E RS Authorised but not contracted for 232 60
8,803 20,146
PA BB RIS R E 57 R The above capital commitments mainly relate to commitments to purchase computer
i A 2 BB R R - equipment and software, and to renovate the Group’s premises.
DARAEEZ FHEE T
TR AEHE -
37. KBSHEXIE 37. Operating lease commitments
(a) fER=EFHAN (a) As lessee
FRIBEA vl s <~ &8 The Group has commitments to make the following future minimum lease payments under
HEGL  THIRA non-cancellable operating leases:
EERARA R E R
YEFTH ST 2 iR A
4
2015 2014
BT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000
Tt RS Land and buildings
- RigiE 14 - Not later than one year 244,631 248,005
15D EE 5 R - Later than one year but not later than five years 604,033 698,705
-5 % - Later than five years 92,977 225,768
941,641 1,172,478
FoAthr R i Other commitments
- i 14 - Not later than one year 877 915
-1EMEE S FR - Later than one year but not later than five years 96 250

942,614 1,173,643
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

37. Operating lease commitments (continued)

(b) As lessor

The Group has contracted with tenants for the following future minimum lease receivables
under non-cancellable operating leases:
2015 2014
AT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000
Land and buildings
- Not later than one year 14,911 46,783
- Later than one year but not later than five years 17,315 25,986
32,226 72,769

The Group leases its investment properties under operating lease arrangements, with
leases typically for a period from one to three years. The terms of the leases generally
require the tenants to pay security deposits.

38. Litigation

The Group has been served a number of claims and counterclaims by various independent
parties. These claims and counterclaims are in relation to the normal commercial activities of
the Group.

No material provision was made against these claims and counterclaims because the
directors believe that the Group has meritorious defences against the claimants or the
amounts involved in these claims are not expected to be material.

202



AERFEH o R U £
SR o o3 Bl By (AR
17~ dRSEIRAT ~ MR
Fet%# -

B A SRAT A SE SRTT 5T
G et 2 AR TR
% (A ASRITHEBGREMR
BEAZE > dsERIT
EBRERBIEE AR
F o B EEBG > BR
THEEEN  Han®
HARENEA - A8HE
> FIERFISMERLCT < F
BB TR A SR Y
EEEIRIEA > Ry HAh
SEBGRIEHE S > AR
T B SRAT A SEER T
TSR RGBT P
HUGHIE S - BRI
ZENT AR 5 LT E
155 P 5 R (R A e 1
BEE - AN 2SR
BEEBRGAN  CaE
AR AR TGS
o (HHEEEFERIL
RIS S L TR B
(MEZ > FHLIEME
SEBHIIRR ER B B A
HAEERELED -

R IR A E Y 5 it
I 52 % B2 Pt (6 P A9 st
i - HME AR
5 o HAMSERBSARE T Y
VIR ATIS E R
BEEBGIANEM - A
FEM A E - (F
Bl) ZEAEFRELERE
P H R IR TR A B M R
R DHEENIEES
SYHEN o

FHAL Ry SR LA
B ER SR AR
B (0L B 6 U8 S 75 4 ik
BARYIHHE -

—{E SRS SR AT R Z
- EEEFEEERER
FOEBRIVIEE - BENVE
HEH - i aTAE
oy -

35 NCB #1731 % 441

MRS SR ITEE (8D
3. AEHE

() BEEIE

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
39. Segmental reporting

(a) By operating segment

The Group divides its business into four major segments, Personal Banking, Corporate
Banking, Treasury and Investment.

Both Personal Banking and Corporate Banking provide general banking services.
Personal Banking serves individual customers while Corporate Banking deals with
non-individual customers. The Treasury segment is responsible for managing the capital,
liquidity, and the interest rate and foreign exchange positions of the Group in addition to
proprietary trades. It provides funds to other business segments and receives funds from
deposit taking activities of Personal Banking and Corporate Banking. These
inter-segment funding is charged according to the internal funds transfer pricing
mechanism of the Group. The assets and liabilities of Treasury have not been adjusted
to reflect the effect of inter-segment borrowing and lending (i.e. the profit and loss
information in relation to Treasury is not comparable to the assets and liabilities
information about Treasury).

Investment includes bank premises and equipment used by supporting units. Charges
are paid to this segment from other business segments based on market rates per
square foot for their occupation of the Group’'s premises. The exchange difference
arising from capital of our subsidiary, NCB (China), which is recognised in its income
statement, is also included in this class.

“Others” refers to other group operations and mainly comprises of items related to the
Group as a whole and totally independent of the other four business segments.

Revenues and expenses of any business segment mainly include items directly
attributable to the segment. For management overheads, allocations are made on
reasonable bases.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
39. Segmental reporting (continued)

(a) By operating segment (continued)

TELASRAT EEERT
Personal Corporate SEET il FHth i b &a
Banking Banking Treasury Investment Others Subtotal Eliminations Consolidated
SBEATT SBEATT SBEATT SBEATT BETT SBEATT SEEATT SBEATT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
#;ZE 2015412 §31 H Year ended 31 December
2015
AFIEWA (SZH)  Netinterest
income/(expense)
- iR - External (66,016) 2,397,178 2,388,988 4,720,150 4,720,150
- BT - Inter-segment 980,296 235717  (1,216,013)
914,280 2,632,895 1,172,975 4,720,150 4,720,150
RS E RS A Net fee and commission
income 695,053 596,096 67,101 65 (1,365) 1,356,950 1,356,950
FR MG (B518)  Nettrading gain/(loss) 43272 (31,466) 3,345 39,025 ) 54,159 54,159
FUE BN ESEESE Netloss on financial
A2 T H instruments designated
b il at fair value through profit
or loss (6,382) (6,382) (6,382)
Hitr&mERE > FUZs  Net gain on other financial
assets 79,531 184,998 71,892 336,421 336,421
HAnLEUTA Other operating income 185 149,052 6,278 155,515 (113,107) 42,408
EEUREEHATTZBE  Net operating income
BIA before impairment
allowances 1,652,790 3,277,056 1,422,037 188,142 76,788 6,616,813 (113,107) 6,503,706
TRAE R R Net charge of impairment
allowances (106,584) (526,740) (633,324) (633,324)
TR A Net operating income 1,546,206 2,750,316 1,422,037 188,142 76,788 5,983,489 (113,107) 5,870,382
S dan) Operating expenses (953,955)  (1,121,281) (275,988) (205,721) (188,324)  (2,745,269) 113,107  (2,632,162)
&ERF (BE) Operating profit/(loss) 592,251 1,629,035 1,146,049 (17,579) (111,536) 3,238,220 3,238,220
KBS E AFE Netgain from disposal
PR LS of/fair value
adjustments on
investment properties 121,046 121,046 121,046
HEE CEEY)Z - 288 Netgain from disposal/
&di - paslvea revaluation of properties,
plant and equipment 19,246 19,246 19,246
BIRAT2FI, (B5HB)  Profit/(loss) before
taxation 592,251 1,629,035 1,146,049 122,713 (111,536) 3,378,512 3,378,512
A 2015412 531 H At 31 December 2015
T ASSETS
SrEVERE Segment assets 39,504,331 134,505,455 123,466,694 7,458,268 129,316 305,064,064 305,064,064
R EEE Assets held for sale 132,729 132,729 132,729
EEEAAEE Total assets 39,504,331 134,505,455 123,466,694 7,590,997 129,316 305,196,793 305,196,793
=10 LIABILITIES
SEEE Segment liabilities 91,688,294 138,648,224 36,023,296 4,335 1,711,990 268,076,139 268,076,139
HHEEE A& Liabilities associated with
assets held for sale 21,884 21,884 21,884
B R Total liabilities 91,688,294 138,648,224 36,023,296 4,335 1,733,874 268,098,023 268,098,023
#ZF 20154F 12 H 31 H Year ended 31 December
2015
Hinge Other information
BEAMSZ S Capital expenditure 77,143 77,143 77,143
#res Depreciation 16,616 8,849 671 205,711 (9,030) 222,817 222,817
S5y Amortisation of securities (120,379) (120,379) (120,379)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

39. Segmental reporting (continued)

(a) By operating segment (continued)

{8 AT T
Personal Corporate B & At et BT e
Banking Banking Treasury Investment Others Subtotal ~ Eliminations  Consolidated
EETT BT BT BT BT BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
#;ZE 20144 12§31 H Year ended 31 December
2014
FFIEWA (ZH) Net interest
income/(expense)
- sk - External (418,490) 2,750,511 2,858,028 5,190,049 5,190,049
- BT - Inter-segment 1,307,961 (114,871)  (1,193,090)
889,471 2,635,640 1,664,938 5,190,049 5,190,049
TR R HE LA Net fee and commission
(324 income/(expenses) 538,300 623,126 94,697 95 (1,492) 1,254,726 1,254,726
R GEEE(B518)  Net trading gain/(loss) 50,406 105,572 (125,113) (22,424) 217 8,858 8,858
FUE BN ESEESE Netloss on financial
A2 &R T E instruments designated
b il at fair value through profit
or loss (7,958) (7,958) (7,958)
Hitr&mERE > FUgZs  Net gain on other financial
assets 28,888 93,642 122,530 122,530
HAnLEUTA Other operating income 140 174 174,357 13,780 188,451 (117,643) 70,808
EEUREEFATTZBE  Net operating income
BIA before impairment
allowances 1,478,317 3,393,400 1,720,206 152,028 12,705 6,756,656 (117,643) 6,639,013
TR E R Net charge of impairment
allowances (45,453) (858,841) (904,294) (904,294)
TR A Net operating income 1,432,864 2,534,559 1,720,206 152,028 12,705 5,852,362 (117,643) 5,734,719
S ) Operating expenses (763,907)  (1,257,493) (301,253) (204,538) (88,041)  (2,615,232) 117,643 (2,497,589)
REBRF (FR) Operating profit/(loss) 668,957 1,277,066 1,418,953 (52,510) (75,336) 3,237,130 3,237,130
WEYEE N HESFE > Net gain from fair value
EREm adjustments on
investment properties 129,896 129,896 129,896
HEE SEEY)Z - 236 Netloss from disposal/
V&l P i revaluation of properties,
plant and equipment (347) (347) (347)
ERfERTEF, (58D Profit/(loss) before
taxation 668,957 1,277,066 1,418,953 77,039 (75,336) 3,366,679 3,366,679
¥} 20144212 H31 H At 31 December 2014
T ASSETS
SrEEE Segment assets 33,101,750 132,582,987 129,285,776 8,717,158 216,582 303,904,253 303,904,253
=T LIABILITIES
SEEE Segment liabilities 103,437,642 120,438,397 43,259,903 7,582 1,865,885 269,009,409 269,009,409
#;ZE 20144 12§31 H Year ended 31 December
2014
Hinge Other information
BEAMSZ S Capital expenditure 85,817 85,817 85,817
e Depreciation 10,350 5,705 982 204,528 3,203 224,768 224,768
ARy Amortisation of securities 90,773 90,773 90,773
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(b) BErEEREIT

DU &R RAR S T 6 2 =]
By S B W8S
AT Z R Alfiig &
B ST E L

STTRTERN 3
EHHE Hong Kong
o [5] A HE, Mainland of China
HA Others
= Total
S Hong Kong
R Mainland of China
HAh Others
=t Total
e Hong Kong
o 5] A HE, Mainland of China
HA Others
=y Total

(b) By geographical area

39. Segmental reporting (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

The following information is presented based on the principal places of operations of the
subsidiaries, or in the case of the Bank, on the locations of the branches responsible for
reporting the results or booking the assets:

2015 2014
RAUREEAER  TOREERA
ZHRZBWA BREEAT ZIPEEWA ERTEET]
Net operating gl Net operating A
income before Profit income before Profit
impairment before impairment before
allowances taxation allowances taxation
BT BT AT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
4,054,030 2,823,205 4,059,329 3,149,295
2,381,416 509,623 2,535,739 207,655
68,260 45,684 43,945 9,729
6,503,706 3,378,512 6,639,013 3,366,679
2015
WAREERRE
Contingent
EkE =N JERBIEE liabilities
Total Total Non-current and
assets liabilities assets commitments
BT BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
188,707,746 165,544,765 6,733,035 39,662,023
114,108,360 102,324,412 786,367 82,596,097
2,380,687 228,846 2,034 435,416
305,196,793 268,098,023 7,521,436 122,693,536
2014
EORE AR
Contingent
HEE 5y =Ui JEREEE liabilities
Total Total Non-current and
assets liabilities assets commitments
BT BT BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
184,505,742 162,047,271 7,835,833 33,849,154
116,624,065 104,331,044 775,587 78,941,179
2,774,446 2,631,094 2,349 124,002
303,904,253 269,009,409 8,613,769 112,914,335
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

40. Assets pledged as security

As at 31 December 2015, the liabilities of the Group amounting to HK$4,581,856,000
(2014: HK$6,532,608,000) were secured by assets deposited with central depositories to
facilitate settlement operations. In addition, the liabilities of the Group amounting to
HK$478,835,000 (2014: HK$2,090,606,000) were secured by debt securities and bills
related to sale and repurchase arrangements. The amount of assets pledged by the Group
to secure these liabilites was HK$5,084,230,000 (2014: HK$8,677,155,000) mainly
included in “Trading assets”, “Financial investments” and “Trade bills”.
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Derivative financial
instruments
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Liabilities

Derivative financial
instruments

Other liabilities

41. Offsetting financial instruments

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

The following tables present details of the Group’s financial instruments subject to offsetting,
enforceable master netting arrangements and similar agreements.

2015
FEPREABERTHEHY
NEEGERT NEEAEE T A5
mgEwRe Pyiraem  Related amounts
e SR BB AR Aol not set off in the balance
BEE4EZE Gross amounts  Net amounts sheet
Gross of recognised of financial [=ld: )l
amounts of financial assets BHEH
recognised liabilities set off presented in SREITH Cash
financial inthe balance the balance Financial collateral p:
assets sheet sheet instruments received Net amount
BT BT BT BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
338,260 - 338,260 (59,230) - 279,030
1,352,506 (986,109) 366,397 - - 366,397
1,690,766 (986,109) 704,657 (59,230) - 645,427
2015
FEREEERERPEHZ
RREAEE el
REESERY $y7agm  Related amounts
CREZSE B CRTES afEsg not set off in the balance
B RUZEGREE  Net amounts sheet
Gross Gross amounts of financial [t i
amounts of  of recognised liabilities &M
recognised financial assets presented in SRITH Cash
financial set offin the  the balance Financial collateral p:
liabilities balance sheet sheet instruments pledged Net amount
BT BT BT BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
154,121 - 154,121 (59,230) - 94,891
994,352 (986,109) 8,243 - - 8,243
1,148,473 (986,109) 162,364 (59,230) - 103,134

208



35 NCB #1731 % 441

MBERNEE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
41. $FTEESY (&) 41. Offsetting financial instruments (continued)

2014
%ﬁﬁ@ﬁ@%\%ﬁtﬁﬁﬁﬁz
WEEAEET NWAEARE sl
{3 D 17 A S v N i elated amounts
TS Rl R0 Zize g ot setoff in the balance
EEEYE%E  Gross amounts Net amounts of sheet
Gross of recognised financial [Stlreirbd
amounts of financial assets R
recognised liabilities set off  presented in SRITHE Cash
financial in the balance the balance Financial collateral TRER
assets sheet sheet instruments received  Net amount
AHTIT AHTIT AHTIT AT BT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B Assets
TTHESMTE Derivative financial
instruments 59,439 - 59,439 (26,746) - 32,693
Hi&zE Other assets 1,389,548 (1,094,061) 295,487 - - 295,487
1,448,987 (1,094,061) 354,926 (26,746) - 328,180
2014
KENEEEBEE PR
NEE AR FERASEEE
NEEAMERT DY Related amounts
CHEREH M Citle Gff#sg  notsetoff in the balance
AR P& E4E%E Net amounts of sheet
Gross Gross amounts financial [SEiviivd
amounts of of recognised liabilities P L
recognised financial assets presented in SR TH Cash
financial set off in the the balance Financial collateral TRER
liabilities  balance sheet sheet instruments pledged  Net amount
AHTIT AHTIT AHTIT AHTIT AHTIT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
b=Ti—{ Liabilities
TTHESMTE Derivative financial
instruments 174,708 - 174,708 (26,746) - 147,962
HAith & (& Other liabilities 1,128,061 (1,094,061) 34,000 - - 34,000
1,302,769 (1,094,061) 208,708 (26,746) - 181,962
AR EESES ARG IMTE TR For master netting agreements of OTC derivative and sale and repurchase transactions
FIER L B G E 48 entered into by the Group, related amounts with the same counterparty can be offset if an
ARl = Ay = R =8 event of default or other predetermined events occur.

TERVEME - RIFE— S E T2
Iof] < B T R AP RRAE S
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MR () Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

42, SRIEEES 42. Transfers of financial assets
A 2015 £ K, 2014 £ 12 H As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, there were no transferred financial assets of the Group
31 H REEGHEAFFaL that do not qualify for derecognition.
IEFERRR G 2 B SR
EE o
43, EEE 43. Loans to directors
RIBEEE (AERE) 5 Particulars of loans made to directors of the Bank pursuant to section 383 of the Hong Kong
383 &K (NE (PBEESE Companies Ordinance and Part 3 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits
Flz&kl) #Fl) FE=5 of Directors) Regulation are as follows:
HIHLE » AR TE SR
B2 EEEEHAT ¢
2015 2014
BT T AETT
HK$'000 HK$'000
PERERERZ AR Aggregate amount of relevant transactions outstanding
R HEER at year end 707 -
PNEARMEBEARZ S Maximum aggregate amount of relevant transactions
= AEEH outstanding during the year 739 -
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MgsHFEH e () Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
44, FEEREALRSE 44. Significant related party transactions

EE N RILAIRR S e i i
TR EAREEATC
&)~ He N = g
ESREAREEATCE
&) EEATEER
PEURTT R EREHE - $A
ST -

(@ BERAFERBAH
EHZ H A E &
TTHIR 5

BARIEAER

PR 2 R N E]
& PERER > R
AT TR PR T o
VE B2 P B SR T 2 AR
ACIRPIV L EE e
FrEE e o P RERE
BINEE A B
BHIBABENE -

D By 0 P S E A
AL -

ASEIAEE R SR 51
BB TR TS
55 EEETH -
R RT3 5 -

KRG B B PRI T ST
1AL )R B GRS E
Bho 2015 4F 12 §
31 H > A EEREL
S ERT TR SRATRE 4R
Moy oAl Ry B
9,358,822,000 I
(2014 4F : B
4,756,693,000 7T ) K
H# ke 12,219,755,000
gt (2014 4F : B
13,986,923,000 IT) o
BZE 20154 12 H 31
HIEFRE - B ESRAT
R AR
AU A RS AR 5
A By dE e 90,422,000
JC (2014 fF : B
295,494,000 7T) Rk
W 141,518,000 T
(2014 4F : B
191,080,000 7T ) Bl
BRI TR = EoAth A 5]
W E RIS ©

The Group is subject to the control of the State Council of the PRC Government through
China Investment Corporation (“CIC”"), its wholly-owned subsidiary Central Huijin
Investment Ltd. (“Central Huijin"), BOC and BOCHK in which Central Huijin has controlling
equity interests.

(@) Transactions with the parent companies and the other companies
controlled by the parent companies

General information of the parent companies:

The Group’s immediate holding company is BOCHK, which is in turn controlled by
BOC. Central Huijin is the controlling entity of BOC, and it is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of CIC which is a wholly state-owned company engaging in foreign
currency investment management.

Central Huijin has controlling equity interests in certain other entities in the PRC.

The Group enters into banking transactions with these entities in the normal course of
business which include loans, investment securities and money market transactions.

The majority of transactions with BOC arise from money market activities. As at 31
December 2015, the related aggregate amounts due from and to BOC of the Group
were HK$9,358,822,000 (2014: HK$4,756,693,000) and HK$12,219,755,000 (2014:
HK$13,986,923,000) respectively. The aggregate amounts of income and expenses
of the Group arising from these transactions with BOC for the year ended 31
December 2015 were HK$90,422,000 (2014: HK$295,494,000) and HK$141,518,000
(2014: HK$191,080,000) respectively. Transactions with other companies controlled
by BOC are not considered material.
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MgsHFEH e () Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

44, FEEREALIE 44. Significant related party transactions (continued)
(&)

() BEAEREAE

(a) Transactions with the parent companies and the other companies

EH 2 H M E
TR 5 (&)

RECSy B SR A R HES T
1AL )R B GRS E
Bl - A 2015 4E 12 A
31 H > AEEIHREIR
T JEST SR T AR A
- E I G [
1,106,735,000 7T
(2014 4F : B
1,840,662,000 7T) K
S e 12,628,797,000
gt (2014 4F : B
17,173,914,000 7T) °
BZE 2015 4£ 12 H 31
HIFAERE > B ERE S
et AR T
A U A R S HA 4B Sy
Tl Ky A& 3,037,000 T
(2014 4F : B
2,560,000 j©) Kk
331,591,000 7t (2014
4 1 kM 729,578,000
JC)

REN  AEEHES
FHREYERFET
HEE > HEEDHE
JE# 986,800,000 JT K
M 392,600,000 T

TR BB 7
JBE Z RS 53 K Ry s
e 85,600,000 T Kt
% 16,422,000 77 X 5
T — AR SR
T °

RECGY IR AR 2
HEMAENRRSHEEE
AR - 1A 2015 4R 12
A 31 H > KEEHRH
KOTH BB R B
15,630,974,000 ¢
( 2014 4E : Gk w
12,914,910,000 77 ) -
BZE 20154 12 H 31
H IR - BLREAE$
il Hof A SIRE LS
SRR TP EANTIH
om ok B W
149,213,000 7¢ (2014
o # W 83,057,000
JC) e

controlled by the parent companies (continued)

The majority of transactions with BOCHK arises from money market activities. As at 31
December 2015, the related aggregate amounts due from and to BOCHK of the Group
were HK$1,106,735,000 (2014: HK$1,840,662,000) and HK$12,628,797,000 (2014:
HK$17,173,914,000) respectively. The aggregate amounts of income and expenses of
the Group arising from these transactions with BOCHK for the year ended 31
December 2015 were HK$3,037,000 (2014: HK$2,560,000) and HK$331,591,000
(2014: HK$729,578,000) respectively.

During the year, the Group sold certain investment properties and premises to BOCHK
with selling price amounting to HK$986,800,000 and HK$392,600,000 respectively.
The gain from disposal of investment properties and premises were approximately
HK$85,600,000 and HK$16,422,000 respectively. The transactions were entered on
normal commercial terms.

The majority of transactions with other companies controlled by the parent companies
arises from deposits from customers. As at 31 December 2015, the related aggregate
amount of the Group was HK$15,630,974,000 (31 December 2014:
HK$12,914,910,000). The aggregate amount of expenses of the Group arising from
these transactions with other companies controlled by the parent companies for the
year ended 31 December 2015 was HK$149,213,000 (2014: HK$83,057,000).
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WBERFRNE: (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

44, FEERRE AT S 44. Significant related party transactions (continued)
(&)

() ERANE KA E (@) Transactions with the parent companies and the other companies
s Hith N\ 5% controlled by the parent companies (continued)

TR 5 (&)

B LAtz EE s - BLEA Save as disclosed above, transactions with other parent companies and the other
BEANE] B BN B companies controlled by the parent companies are not considered material.
Hr A EETRY S S50
TERX -

(b) BB RFIRAE - FRRE (b) Transactions with government authorities, agencies, affiliates and other
B ~ BB RS R state controlled entities
AR BRI S
HrEE A B e T [ R 75 e The Group is subject to the control of the State Council of the PRC Government
i Ry K PE AR through CIC and Central Huijin, which also directly or indirectly controls a significant
B A% - TR EEA number of entities through its government authorities, agencies, affiliates and other
B R BR] [ 755 e /T i state controlled entities. The Group enters into banking transactions with government
EURTRS ~ (CHEf%RE - authorities, agencies, affiliates and other state controlled entities in the normal course
i s A G o LA RS 22 of business at commercial terms.

1Hl B % L 3 B T e
REHMMER - AEH
R R AR BUT
A - (CHUERYS - IS
AR e LAt 42 A1
BRHETT H BISRTTSEB AL

5.

BT SR EAR EIR These transactions include, but are not limited to, the following:

RTRFIEIE -

- fEE - RERE A - lending, provision of credits and guarantees, and deposit taking;
PRAIFEZ AR

- RITEIZE A R 45 - inter-bank balance taking and placing;
2

- HEEE - R - sales, purchases, underwriting and redemption of bonds issued by other state
R ]l LA B A 2 controlled entities;
ERFTE T2 ES

- FEHLSNE - PR R AERE - rendering of foreign exchange, remittance and investment related services;
RS

- PRALEERES & - provision of fiduciary activities; and

- EEAHEE S E - purchase of utilities, transport, telecommunications and postage services.
TH - &E KBk
% o
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MR (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

44, FEEREBEALZSE 44. Significant related party transactions (continued)
(&)

(c) FEEREAE (c) Key management personnel

FTHEEEAEZEL Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for
e H e EE planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Group, directly or indirectly,
WEJT R B AT RET 8~ F including Directors and Senior Management. The Group accepts deposits from and
B EEEER grants loans and credit facilities to key management personnel in the ordinary course
At BiEEENEE of business. During both the current and prior years, no material transaction was
EHA S AEEFEIE conducted with key management personnel of the Bank and its holding companies, as
HEBTHEZTE well as parties related to them.

=g A BT B )

RAEGER K EER

& MAREREE R
SIS A LA SRAT

R HZERAE 2 25
=g AN B H AR
ANTHETERLS) -
FHESEBAEEZE 12 The compensation of key management personnel for the year ended 31 December is
A 31 HIEFRE 5 detailed as follows:
Wr
2015 2014
BT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000
H & HAE I E T Salaries and other short-term employee
1&EF] benefits 24,623 26,740
BREF Post-employment benefits 1,642 1,694
26,265 28,434
(d) B SINGSER (d) Balances with subsidiaries
#2015 £ 12 A 31 As at 31 December 2015, the aggregate sums of amounts due from subsidiaries and
H o REMTHEHEE amounts due to subsidiaries of the Bank arising from transactions entered into during
B f2 v i — % g the normal course of business at commercial terms are HK$1,440,338,000 (2014:
EGTOET LG E HK$1,963,019,00) and HK$226,650,000 (2014: HK$316,242,000) respectively.
AE Y T R B FE A BT
JB& N E IR AR 5y
Al R K

1,440,338,000 T
(2014 4F @ J&#
1,963,019,000 7T.)
F g 226,650,000
T (2014 4 : JE¥
316,242,000 5T -
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MR (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

45. IR {ERE 45. International claims

DUN 375 2 087E R The below analysis is prepared with reference to the completion instructions for the HKMA
SRITES T 2 BERRE return of international banking statistics. International claims are exposures to
HYSE R R 4R e o BRE counterparties on which the ultimate risk lies based on the locations of the counterparties
ERETZ B 5 B BT e+, after taking into account the transfer of risk, and represent the sum of cross-border claims
s AR RS 1% DLSE 5 in all currencies and local claims in foreign currencies. For a claim guaranteed by a party
F AR R P situated in a country different from the counterparty, the risk will be transferred to the
S HAEMBERERTE & country of the guarantor. For a claim on an overseas branch of a bank whose head office
e WS ERE R A A is located in another country, the risk will be transferred to the country where its head
HERME - R IERA office is located.

Pt B 3 - P et
AE > RS 2= i
PRANZ P - 5 S
RITZINT - HmE
SR B RT 2 AT

FIfEHD, -
AREEAIE B ZR SEI5% Claims on individual countries or areas, after risk transfer, amounting to 10% or more of
HE st by R S 1% 5 the aggregate international claims of the Group are shown as follows:
P REGEEE 1096802 1
ZAEFEATT ¢
2015
JESRITRANEES
Non-bank private sector
FESRAT _
SR FE<BRl
WL Non-bank FANHE
BT Official financial Non-financial st
Banks sector institutions private sector Total
AT AT AT AT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
o B Pyt Mainland of China 34,617,405 859,966 286,850 25,347,925 61,112,146
T Hong Kong 1,581,719 25,114 2,392,489 32,771,230 36,770,552
(&7
(Restated)
2014
FEERITRA AR
Non-bank private sector
FRIRTT B
R FE<ERil
BTt Non-bank LIV
$RIT Official financial  Non-financial 4=t
Banks sector institutions  private sector Total
AT AT AT AT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R Y HE Mainland of China 36,252,631 942,469 660,677 34,282,844 72,138,621
T Hong Kong 253,134 2,305,880 588,883 24,251,030 27,398,927
EEEEFCEYIR - DIFF The comparative amounts have been restated to conform with the current year’s presentation.

EFREZIIRIPA -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

46. Non-bank Mainland exposures

HIERIT RS H FHIAM
1 B B AR AE Z o A7 T 2
REMAMERZSER
R AV R T 22 %
T A1) b L B 8
3 o PhEeRERT AR T I
HAERRITR B Z B

The analysis of non-bank Mainland exposures is based on the categories of non-bank
counterparties and the types of direct exposures with reference to the completion
instructions for the HKMA return of Mainland activities, which includes the Mainland
exposures extended by the Bank and its banking subsidiaries.

H|Z AR A -
2015
BEER BEAHR
SEE FHAH =N
HWEIEE e el rreid
ltems in On-balance Off-balance  &EJEE=IE
the HKMA sheet sheet Total
return exposure exposure exposure
AT T AT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ROREUR - ROREEAY Central government, central
g~ HItB AT REE government-owned entities and their
3 subsidiaries and joint ventures 1 23,932,429 2,995217 26,927,646
HOFEUR ~ #O5EURRFARY  Local governments, local
g~ HtB AT REE government-owned entities and their
3% subsidiaries and joint ventures 2 13,890,604 2,709,320 16,599,924
FEF N E R EAMFEE  PRC nationals residing in Mainland
NEEMHIIERS ~ ETRE A or other entities incorporated in
HREERE Mainland and their subsidiaries and
joint ventures 3 47,421,978 27,853,433 75,275,411
FEFELE FitsE—IE gL Other entities of central government
TF S HY Eo At h g not reported in item 1 above 4 2,623,361 - 2,623,361
REFEAE _FiltsE 15 5 Other entities of local governments not
JEF Y At e reported in item 2 above 5 15,330 - 15,330
FEREEEINEREEESNE  PRC nationals residing outside
RS - HAREANN Mainland or entities incorporated
B8 outside Mainland where the credit is
granted for use in Mainland 6 7,511,143 1,037,765 8,548,908
HAthzz ¥ FmEEfG&IE  Other counterparties where the
HAR B ESRIT AP Mt exposures are considered to be
HKIE non-bank Mainland exposures 7 5,245,489 - 5,245,489
st Total 8 100,640,334 34,595,735 135,236,069
HIRCEH eI & ELE Total assets after provision 9 313,731,968
LEABENTNER &Y On-balance sheet exposures as
(&SRR E St percentage of total assets 10 32.08%
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MR ()  Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
46. JESRITHYANIMEESEZA  46. Non-bank Mainland exposures (continued)

® (&
2014

HEAMR HEAMR

SR FAH AN

WEIEH JE R R AR
ltems in On-balance  Off-balance 08 Je i
the HKMA sheet sheet Total
return exposure exposure exposure
T BRTT HRTT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

R~ ROREUREEARY  Central government, central

g~ HItB AT REE government-owned entities and their

b= subsidiaries and joint ventures 1 29,451,874 1,151,441 30,603,315
HOFEUR ~ #O5EURRFARY  Local governments, local

g~ HIitB AT REE government-owned entities and their

13 subsidiaries and joint ventures 2 11,599,566 1,810,301 13,409,867
FRFEEEAEREEM TR PRC nationals residing in Mainland

NEE A RERS ~ EITE A or other entities incorporated in

H R EEMRE Mainland and their subsidiaries and
joint ventures 3 50,180,366 29,896,773 80,077,139
FEFELE FitE—IE gL Other entities of central government
TR ELAt R not reported in item 1 above 4 318,005 - 318,005
FraFEE Fallss —IEH 5 Other entities of local governments not
JF P A AR reported in item 2 above 5 . B B

R EEEINEREFEEINE  PRC nationals residing outside
RS - HAREAN Mainland or entities incorporated
B8 outside Mainland where the credit is
granted for use in Mainland 6 6,980,121 1,183,797 8,163,918
HAthzz ¥ FmEEfG&IE  Other counterparties where the
HAR B ESRAT AP Mt exposures are considered to be

HEIE non-bank Mainland exposures 7 5,177,267 - 5,177,267
4T Total 8 103,707,199 34,042,312 137,749,511
HUBCE 1% & E AR Total assets after provision 9 310,553,707

LEABENTNERK &Y On-balance sheet exposures as
= percentage of total assets 10 33.39%
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

47. Balance sheet and statement of changes in equity

218

BR
() BEERR (a) Balance sheet
#12 H 31 H As at 31 December 2015 2014
AT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000

HE ASSETS
[EE{FIR & R AT URIT R Cash and balances with banks and other

R ASeR financial institutions 15,843,529 30,391,541
ESRAT B HAM 4 R i iy — Placements with banks and other financial

2+ _{HANFEIZ E institutions maturing between one and

BT twelve months 145,331 145,422
NP EE B AR Z Financial assets at fair value through profit or

R E loss 6,963,572 6,155,213
s T E Derivative financial instruments 512,683 402,764
B E A EETE Advances and other accounts 112,246,377 106,365,558
LRE Financial investments 45,967,421 37,162,481
b\ B s Interests in subsidiaries 8,171,067 8,171,067
HEYE Investment properties 394,410 1,258,121
WsE ~ BeME B Properties, plant and equipment 6,329,838 6,579,145
Fpth & Other assets 3,990,025 782,548
FHEEE Assets held for sale 132,729 -
BN Total assets 200,696,982 197,413,860
=0 LIABILITIES
SRTT R oAt S RbieE >~ 7 Deposits and balances from banks and other

R GEER financial institutions 5,588,738 10,369,369
NEESE( T A R S Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or

=ty loss 4,575,356 4,970,693
s T E Derivative financial instruments 205,753 167,394
HEER Deposits from customers 152,979,068 145,870,627
LAl BRIE Fe e {f Other accounts and provisions 1,619,871 2,425,678
TENTRTEE E Current tax liabilities 187,530 182,031
IRAEFRIA A Deferred tax liabilities 803,862 977,874
FHEEEHEAE Liabilities associated with assets held for sale 21,884 -
B HRAEE Total liabilities 165,982,062 164,963,666
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47. BEABERKLEIS® 47. Balance sheet and statement of changes in equity (continued)
gx (&)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(a) Balance sheet (continued)

() WEAMAR (&)

#12 H 31 H As at 31 December 2015 2014
BT BRTT
HK$'000 HK$'000
A EQUITY
R A Share capital 3,144,517 3,144,517
BEH Reserves 31,570,403 29,305,677
BN Total equity 34,714,920 32,450,194
B AR Total liabilities and equity 200,696,982 197,413,860
KEEFE G 2016 /£ 3 H Approved by the Board of Directors on 18 March 2016 and signed on behalf of the Board
18 HBEMEZ AW DT by:
ANLRFREE
s Yue Yi DAE IR Fang Hongguang
HH Director HE Director

219



35 NCB #1731 % 441

MR (&)
47. HEANERFIENS

;R (&)

(b) fEzEEEBR

H2014E1H1H

R
HoAth g mas

R
AT

BRI

Exiifienstt s

HEAREA
[essiaezanl
L8

2014412 31 H

#H2015E1H1H

EERERER
ol TS

R
AT ikt RS

B R

YA

PRI Y 2
A s A
4=

72015412 H 31 H

* PRGNS 30 St EOTIRHURK
(B S B SR R T B A

(b) Statement of changes in equity

At 1 January 2014

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive
income:
Premises
Available-for-sale
securities
Currency translation
difference

Total comprehensive
income

Transfer to share
capital

Transfer from retained
earnings

Dividends

At 31 December 2014

At 1 January 2015

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive
income:
Premises
Available-for-sale
securities
Currency translation
difference

Total comprehensive
income

Release upon disposal
of premises

Transfer from retained
earnings

Dividends

At 31 December 2015

FIEBEE G IR T — AR 2 s
RAGRK AR TSR ) -

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

47. Balance sheet and statement of changes in equity (continued)

i
Reserves

ATk

HHARE

Y

Reserve for

B fair value

Elif#f#  changes of
[iEZN A 8 Premises available- B LA AR HARLGT

Share Share  revaluation for-sale  Regulatory  Translation Retained Total

capital premium reserve securities reserve* reserve earnings equity
AT AT AT AT AT AT AT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
700,000 2,444,517 5,326,283 (58,705) 590,889 (5,127) 20,936,348 29,934,205
- - - - - - 2,609,558 2,609,558
- - 399,460 - - - - 399,460
- - - 207,506 - - - 207,506
- - - 276 - (811) - (535)
- - 399,460 207,782 - (811) 2,609,558 3,215,989
2,444,517 (2,444,517) - - - - - -
- - - - 172,276 - (172,276) -
- - - - - - (700,000)  (700,000)
3,144,517 - 5,725,743 149,077 763,165 (5,938) 22,673,630 32,450,194
3,144,517 - 5,725,743 149,077 763,165 (5,938) 22,673,630 32,450,194
- - - - - - 2,473,698 2,473,698
- - 350,149 - - - - 350,149
- - - (17,028) - - - (17,028)
- - - 424 - (17) - 407
- - 350,149 (16,604) - (A7) 2,473,698 2,807,226
- - (454,824) - - - 454,824 -
- - - - 80,054 - (80,054) -
- - - - - - (542,500)  (542,500)
3,144,517 - 5,621,068 132,473 843,219 (5,955) 24,979,598 34,714,920
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* In accordance with the requirements of the HKMA, the amounts are set aside for general banking risks, including future

losses or other unforeseeable risks, in addition to the loan impairment allowances recognised under HKAS 39.
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48.

49,

50.

HREIH

#2016 17 15H &
EEHEETFET IR
HE HEHERBER
133,320,000 ¢ - FHREHHIE
P E 2 R AR Ty o
591,000 7T, » 38 Bi% 5 —
FR B SEPORIHEST

o HE N RN B 75 e il
BPEREFREELS
F] > Ha B = e
EREARELELT (TE
&) KA
ZHEIRTT R IRE A - B
AR TR -

M BRI

AR H Y 2016 4 3 H
18 H&KEE Hay il Az A

S -

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

49.

50.

48. Events after balance sheet date

On 15 January 2016, the Group sold certain premises to BOCHK with selling price
amounting to HK$133,320,000. The gain from disposal of premises were approximately
HK$591,000. The transactions were entered on normal commercial terms.

Ultimate holding company

The Group is subject to the control of the State Council of the PRC Government through
China Investment Corporation, its wholly-owned subsidiary Central Huijin Investment Ltd.
(“Central Huijin”), BOC and BOCHK in which Central Huijin has controlling equity interests.

Approval of financial statements

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors
on 18 March 2016.
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REEZ Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

i B &R

1. 8 - HEkE/EREM 1. Regulatory capital for credit, market and operational risks
NEEEEA

FEEEE - 5 EE R ERE The bases of regulatory capital calculation for credit risk, market risk and operational risk are
EEst BB S E AR described in Note 4.4 to the Financial Statements.
WA=, 4.4 drfigak -

KT B ERNELIE ISy Sections 1 to 9 of the supplementary financial information have been prepared on a

DIBSE I EHISH AR RS - consolidated basis for regulatory purposes. The basis of regulatory consolidation is set out in
B 4 S AL A P 3R Note 4.4(A) to the Financial Statements.
KHIEE4.4(A) -

NEWI A4S ERE FEFE The table below summarises the regulatory capital computed on the same consolidation basis
ZEE - MG RIEEREEESE  for credit, market, and operational risks.

2015 2014

BT HRTT

HK$’'000 HK$'000

EEEk Credit risk 13,388,317 13,843,877
s Market risk 48,993 45,648
R E e Operational risk 980,405 900,408
14,417,715 14,789,933

BREAEE > ERAEMEEAR  For details of capital management and capital ratios of the Group, please refer to Note 4.4 to

PE%EEE > s AM B HERMNTEE  the Financial Statements.
44
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information (continued)

2. Capital requirements for credit risk

The tables below show the capital requirements for each class and subclass of credit risk

exposures as specified in the Banking (Capital) Rules.

Capital required for exposures under the IRB approach

Corporate
Specialised lending under supervisory slotting criteria
approach
- Project finance
Small-and-medium sized corporates
Other corporates
Bank
Banks
Securities firms
Retail
Residential mortgages
- Individuals
- Property-holding shell companies
Qualifying revolving retail
Other retail to individuals
Small business retail
Others
Cash items
Other items

Credit valuation adjustment

Total capital requirements for exposures under the IRB
approach

Capital required for exposures under the standardised
(credit risk) approach

On-balance sheet exposures
Sovereigns
Public sector entities
Banks
Corporates
Regulatory retail
Residential mortgage loans
Other exposures which are not past due
Past due exposures

Off-balance sheet exposures
Off-balance sheet exposures other than securities
financing transactions and derivative contracts

Securities financing transactions and derivative
contracts

Total capital requirements for exposures under the
standardised (credit risk) approach

Total capital requirements for credit risk exposures
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2015 2014
AT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000

62,440 119,626
1,103,646 1,328,166
6,642,704 6,082,154
3,164,542 3,763,767

- 920
141,256 80,229
8,526 5,836
269,898 271,595
12,840 17,195
669,864 745,981
8,412 6,549
12,084,128 12,422,018
45,740 10,915
11,001 2,238
2,630 103,306
574,545 638,865
122,207 140,094
486,548 447,824

22,992 44,895

8,729 7,548

28,727 25,557

1,070 617

1,304,189 1,421,859
13,388,317 13,843,877
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REEZ Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information (continued)
i BER (8

3. NERRPREEESTEIAT 3. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach
HIE SRR

3.1 NEERh 24 R EBE4HRE 3.1 The internal rating systems and risk components

oy

BETEEEBEARTK - K The Group adopts the FIRB approach to calculate the regulatory capital requirements for
R ARE ST S SEMSRTT most of the corporate and bank exposures, and adopts the supervisory slotting criteria
i JoE i 7 {5 i T A 415 approach to project finance exposures under specialised lending. The Group adopts
SRR TELE > BIEPY retail IRB approach for retail exposures to individuals and small business. The following
MEEErTE HRE (F A is the table showing the Group’s different capital calculation approaches to each asset
B BERIETEDE - HHE class and sub-classes of exposures (other than securitisation exposures).

AU INEE A B fa R
ERERZENERIREESE
FTEUE - TRVIMAER
BRETR TR
WoRdE (PRagr bR
WRIESN ) FrER IRV A
SFEJTA -
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3. NERPEREZESTEIAT 3. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach (continued)
HESER (8)

3.1 NS R EMREERK  3.1 The internal rating systems and risk components (continued)

oy (8D
BEIE TR R E BASIRITE
Asset class Exposure sub-class Capital calculation approach
ke JENE Tyl BB BHEAGTEE TAVEPIMEE CHERE )| BB BEAETEE
Corporate exposures Specialised lending under supervisory slotting  [Supervisory Slotting Criteria Approach
criteria approach (project finance)
s S FOEA B EAET EA
Small-and-medium sized corporates FIRB Approach
Fptr 2
Other corporates
At ETER e (FERERE) StEE
Sovereign exposures Sovereigns Standardised (credit risk) Approach
J&E T ERES A A B AL
Sovereign foreign public sector entities
ZE IR T
Multilateral development banks
SRAT A AT FOEAN AP EA
Bank exposures Banks FIRB Approach
Foez/AG]
Securities firms
NEEN CNEFERE TERIEA VSO  |BRE (B8R sH5E
Public sector entities (excluding sovereign Standardised (credit risk) Approach
foreign public sector entities)
TERREE BN EEHEEER TENEGISIEET A
Retail exposures Residential mortgages to individuals Retail IRB Approach
ZERR N B E RS AR
Residential mortgages to property-holding shell
companies
EEREREE
Qualifying revolving retail
HAE AN E
Other retail to individuals
ZE b
Small business retail
P J B o - FEE (5 5H50E
Equity exposures Standardised (credit risk) Approach
A R A HEIHHE e Rt T EDE
Other exposures Cash items Specific Risk-weight Approach
HAEHE
Other items
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3. NERPEREZESTEIAT 3. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach (continued)

MiEERE (8)

3.1 NEERh 28 kB4R 3.1 The internal rating systems and risk components (continued)

o (&)

(A) NEEEAR GG R (A) The structure of internal rating systems and the relationship between internal
PR LM RR R ratings and external ratings
HER %

AR {E A B LT
(N (L
WEGE > sy Rlie i
RN B SRR RE
fiti - PRARSERERITAE
e FE AR
JE WL AE R R 2 LY
JEBg > 12 (ERPARAETE
K fE#s N — ELELY
I53: 7 SIEPN &R
HIRFER ZINZ

AR St A
DLETTERE RS - 3R
TRIZEEE AR E
QA= (PD) » DR fE
HZE BB R LR
STEAE T EEREERK
EHEGE KRR
(LGD) 1 2 &7 Ji b K
f&(EAD) -

A LR A PN BT SR
FRT AL A PR ET
PR AT ERK
ANHJELIATREME -
IR AL EAR A —
FHANHYEL R -
EEONEIE SIS
TEAFE B BB RT AR
TR (E EAE

LERIPN:OK RPN
B R Y
RSB DAE B
BRI E -

FEETE (275 AN R
BET > GHEEE
IEEN ik p T ]
S EHEEE
ESANGE Il
FEEEEN: &R
R BEITRIE  JE
PR LR FoBRSE N ZR DL
FAMAEA [B] S (o 1
THETHAERERN
RE TR -

The Group’s internal rating system is a two dimensional rating system that provides
separate assessment of borrower and transaction characteristics. For corporate and
bank portfolios, the obligor rating dimension reflects exclusively the risk of borrower
default and the facility rating dimension reflects transaction specific factors that affect
the loss severity in the case of borrower default.

The Group uses statistical models to provide own estimated probability of default
(“PD") for its corporate, bank and retail borrowers, and loss given default (“‘LGD”) and
exposure at default (‘EAD”) for retail exposures under retail IRB approach.

The Group uses internal rating system to assess the borrower’s likelihood of default
for all IRB portfolios. PD estimates the risk of borrower default over a one-year period.
A borrower credit grade means a grouping of similar credit-worthiness to which
borrowers are assigned on the basis of specified and distinct set of rating criteria, from
which the average PD are derived for risk-weighted assets calculation.

In the process of obligor rating assignment, variables of latest financial performance,
management quality, industry risks, group connection and negative warning signals of
each obligor are assessed as critical factors to predict borrower's ability and
willingness to meet with the contractual obligations under different economic
conditions.
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3. NERPEREZESTEIAT 3. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach (continued)
HESER (8)

Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information (continued)

3.1 NEERh 28 kB4R 3.1 The internal rating systems and risk components (continued)
&y (8

(A) ABMFRAGEER

(A) The structure of internal rating systems and the relationship between internal

PR P &R S MR R 4R
HERR ()

A SEMISRAT S AR
TEEONRER T
FoBIEFTEAGTAR B
FET{EIFELI A
S 4oy 2 26(E (5
B G0 L8 2 498k
Al - Mt E R
SIBUE - (EHEEES

JEAERIET AR IR E
Rl A > 70 Fod
8 FF 28 4 48 1 R 1AL
BLIERS - HINEE
N ESE AR R T BLA
HERDAEMNR > %
B AME ~ 258
B~ FEA e A
HIRIL ST Ry TR
R~ B RRHE
FRLHERRE ] -

Iy AHIBRE Rl A\
HHE RN ZE R A E
EEHBEER - A&
& 15 B 6 L B R
9 ~ HLAE A B
PR IERI Z &/ b3k
JeEL Bz K HE HY B 4R
R BLHRRERNE
S HE AR B —
BAIE B E Tk
B - RiEERRES|
HUE > FrA TR
THIERR G E

IU(EEHE (FZIE
R - 2
YRR R BUE LR
IR T BT IR 2R
(EL) - FIIBHEEE
WA TR ERE Al o

ratings and external ratings (continued)

The obligors for corporate and bank, and retail PD pools are assigned into eight
broad obligor ratings including seven grades for non-defaulted obligors with
sub-divisions into 26 minor credit grades and one for defaulted obligors. In the
supervisory slotting criteria approach for the project finance exposures, there are four
grades for non-defaulted borrowers and one for defaulted borrowers in accordance
with the HKMA guidance. The estimates for retail IRB portfolios are pooled by nature
of obligors, facility types, collateral types and delinquency status into different PD,
EAD and LGD pools. This pooling process provides the basis of accurate and
consistent estimation for PD, LGD and EAD at the pool level for exposures arising
from residential mortgages to both individuals and property-holding shell companies,
qualifying revolving retail exposures and other retail exposures to individuals and
small business retail exposures. All credit transactions for corporates and banks are
assigned facility ratings (in terms of LGD) in accordance with the HKMA guidance.
LGD estimates multiplied by the PD estimates produce the expected loss (“EL")
estimates, which are used to assess credit risk quantitatively.
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3. NERPEREZESTEIAT 3. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach (continued)

MEREE (8)
3.1 SRR A R BRI

o (8D

(A) ABMFRAGEER
P ERRP4R S5 MR &R

B (8

FE A R RS

3.1 The internal rating systems and risk components (continued)

(A) The structure of internal rating systems and the relationship between internal
ratings and external ratings (continued)

For each internal rating, the equivalent external rating in terms of default risk is as

JE\Be 2 P RO AP ER AR below:
HIEWT
RER (=S4 HEREPAR E R BRI B ETAR
Internal Credit Standard & Poor’s
Grades Definition of Internal Ratings Equivalent
1 (EIB AL 112"t {KAY &4 E, | The obligors in grades “1” and “2” have AAA
2 W o extremely low default risk. AA+
e IN a0 5 CaR o eI A The obligor’s capacity to meet its financial AA
commitment on the obligation is extremely
strong. AA-
3 BB AH R 3" T EELEFE - {HfE— |The obligors in grade “3” have low default A+
EFLRE A AR AR T EREfngC s |risk but are somewhat susceptible to the
A2 BTSSR T - adverse effects of changes in circumstances A
and economic conditions.
However, the obligor’s capacity to meet its
financial commitment on the obligation is A-
very strong.
4 {E18 NG 4" H B KA 4T E g | The obligors in grade “4” have relatively low BBB+
HIRAETE E 4R » [HEafge 2 F)4% |default risk and are currently under adequate
ST P { T 1 S5 L 7 |Protection. . . BBB
TR THIRE S - However, adverse economic conditions or
changing circumstances are likely to lead to
a weakened capacity of the obligor to meet BBB-
its financial commitment on the obligation.
5 (BB NG Fonh 4% - #H%F | The obligors in grade “5” have medium BB+
H AR B E S A\ b EERR e |default risk which are less vulnerable to
. nonpayment than other speculative obligors.
N b [ However, they face major ongoing BB
%ﬁ%ﬁ?@gﬁ;ggﬁjgggg uncgrtaintigs or exposure to aqverse 3
i s e I I e ks g i bu;mess, financial, or economic _condltlons
(05 NECERESTA e LUBETTRIES 5L © | which could lead to the obligor's inadequate BB-
capacity to meet its financial commitment on
the obligation.
6 {E1B AL 6"Fon i 218 = E4E % | The obligors in grade “6” have significant to B+
A5 IR R very high default risk and are vulnerable to
RESA BRI HAS AR TR 'rllﬂgpc?glzggpst.currently and in the near term
BE - ERFIRYER ~ IS EER : L ; B
;fﬁ%&ggégiﬁﬁgﬁg@%gg have the capacity to meet its financial
= = TN > ~*71commitment on the obligation but adverse
HiT - business, financial, or economic conditions
will very likely impair the obligor’s capacity or B-
willingness to meet its financial commitment
on the obligation.
7 BB PR TForn b= &4 E ks H B i | The obligors in grade “7” have very high CCC
FHE RS IR RS ; (SR A AES)E |default risk and are currently quite
FHEGEE AN R A AR val?erable to ncanpafyment. 'Il'he obligors’
br B et R £ - epeqe |@bility to meet their financial commitment
ZjiﬁZ%ﬁf;’Eﬂ*gE?S% ﬁtﬁi%}%}: and obligation are dependent upon favorable cc
= = S TIRE 7 |business, financial, and economic
BEAL - conditions.
In the event of adverse business, financial, c
or economic conditions, these obligors are
not likely to have the capacity to meet its
financial commitment on the obligation.
8 (&R NGRS TR » Obligors rated “8” are in payment default. D
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3. NERPEREZESTEIAT 3. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach (continued)
HESER (8)

3.1 NEFEk L2 EBESHE 3.1 The internal rating systems and risk components (continued)
oy (8)

Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information (continued)

(B) MEMERERTAR

(B) Use of internal estimates

B BRI
RGFENRE R
Fe$RAT bR AR B
BEAS > RnsaH
HATAEEEBE
H o EERAEIM
BRI RE
SRR PR S
o EHR(EEE
it~ EEEE - 8
Joe\ e R 5 B S T o

©) FEEBRSETAZ

B R

HNEREEIE TR
AR AEEE
TEFEAR TR PG FE EE
L ERIEHRENIBCR
TR - e (3R
138 (J/A) HAD
HHEE R g R A
FEFFERA R IEEDR -

PR R BT
PHEAEA R TR
AR EE R AdE
HLER A PR AT H
Wt B S T
HYSRTT ~ 3R LLReaE
73 0% F] FT 2 B HYHE
AR A S
SRR HI% - TEEH
S E R AERIARL
HYBELHEARR -

Besides using PD estimates for regulatory capital calculation in corporate and bank
exposures, the Group uses the PD together with the LGD and EAD estimates in the
credit approval, credit monitoring, reporting and analysis of credit risk information,
etc., for the purpose of strengthening the daily management on all credit related
matters.

(C) Process of managing and recognising credit risk mitigation

For collateral recognised under capital management, the Group has well-defined
policies and procedures for collateral valuation and management which are compliant
with the operational requirements for recognised collateral of credit risk mitigation as
stated in the Banking (Capital) Rules.

For the credit exposures adopting FIRB approach for capital calculation purpose, the
recognised eligible guarantees include the guarantees provided by banks, corporates
and securities firms with a lower risk weights than the counterparty. The Group takes
into account the credit risk mitigation effect of recognised collateral through its
determination of the net credit exposures and the effective LGD.
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3. NERPEREZESTEIAT 3. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach (continued)
HESER (8)

3.1 NEFEk L2 EBESHEE 3.1 The internal rating systems and risk components (continued)

oy (8)

©C) EEEBEETE Y (C) Process of managing and recognising credit risk mitigation (continued)
B KRR ()
B T N SRl R For retail IRB approach, the effect of the credit risk mitigation is incorporated into the
B EAETENEE internal risk parameters of PD or LGD depending on the nature of the guarantees and
EgRE - (ESERE collateral for calculating the risk exposures.
EREOVIE FHf i R
B R EEE
KGR EGRLIRA R
Y P R B 2
o
REE T EE R The credit and market risk concentrations within the credit risk mitigation (recognised
wETH (HIEEER collateral and guarantees for capital calculation) used by the Group are under a low
TRV AT A level.

SRHECR) HIEERE
Bz 5 o PR T 85 e
FEPPREREAT

HEREH > FiE Up to the date of report, for capital calculation, except derivatives subject to valid
BEARRY - BT EAER bilateral netting agreements, the Group has not used any other on-balance sheet or
RS E R A off-balance sheet recognised netting for credit risk mitigation. The Group also has not
AT BN - K used any recognised credit derivative contracts for credit risk mitigation.

BB (T R mT

& 7E B RN EE

ERERINE AR

SHEE Ry (S B 4%

BTE - REEIRE

E FR{EREE A (E & LT

ETRENEREE

iR T A -
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3. NERPEREZESTEIAT 3. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach (continued)
HESER (8)

3.1 AiEeEsk 2 R EEEEHEE 3.1 The internal rating systems and risk components (continued)
&y (8

(D) NEPRR L sl (D) The control mechanisms used for internal rating systems
i 3l

AREBECEILT — The Group has established a comprehensive control mechanism to ensure the

E 5 =Y ¥ % integrity, accuracy and consistency of the rating systems including the processes for

#l > DUECRETAR 247 using the risk components in the day-to-day business to assess credit risk.
(BEEHEED

JRAR (6 B 2H

B oy LRY A (5 65 8

b ) HysEsEts: - 2EfE

PERI— B

EEEHLZETR All of IRB risk models are approved by the Credit and Loans Management Committee
HEGE N EE and Risk Management Committee of the Board.

BEHZAGHEMFT

BN R E AT

BV bR a2 A5

o
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3. NERPEREZESTEIAT 3. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach (continued)
HESER (8)

3.1 AEeEsk G R EE4HER 3.1 The internal rating systems and risk components (continued)

Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information (continued)

oy (8D
(D) N EPER A Grizs (D) The control mechanisms used for internal rating systems (continued)
B (8
(e B B A A R In order to achieve reasonably accurate risk ratings assignment, the Group has

R GHL - AR
[ - ASEEENT T
I8 B R T 5
i BRI A P 47 it
TEFF - HIR A ERETAR
EERARNVER
HNE > e EEEE
A% T DL £ 57 SR Y
SEREME ~ AEREMERT—
Bt - B
(RERIRIT) BE
HE - NERRFRES R
0 R TR 8
T S e R Ay (5 5
ERANERRAR
b - EHIC S 288
ANFIE B LB (Y
LT > SR
Hh B B A0 S HE SR
HA AR E
et Ae o AR bR
HERA E W HETT B
‘IR -

TELHE IR
TE R b B AL AR
EEEEL - (FRE
[GACE G EF R D]
SRSy > BEIEEK
Fr 75 A B
e P A o2 M el g
ILHY SR P R T RE
IOEAS A

REAEEHGEER
PRBCR - % ARTER
EVEBFETE
o FEEE AR
BEFELT > R
BAEEE SRR
BOR » L ETEATRE
UEE

established a rating approval process which is independent from the sales and
marketing units. Since internal rating is one of the key inputs to credit decision
making, a control mechanism is put in place to ensure the integrity, accuracy and
consistency of the rating assignment. For the wholesale (corporate and bank) credit
portfolio, internal ratings are normally approved by credit officers who are functionally
separated from the sales and marketing units. In some cases where the transactions
are in small amount and of low credit risk, the credit ratings can be assigned and
approved by the sales and marketing units, subject to the periodic post-approval
review of ratings by Risk Management units.

The rating assignment and risk quantification process of retail portfolio are highly
automated. As an integral part of the daily credit assessment process, the accuracy
and completeness of data input for automatic rating assignment are verified by units
independent from business development function.

The obligor rating is reviewed at least annually as required by the Group’s credit risk
policy. When credit events occur to the obligor, rating review is triggered promptly in
accordance with the Group’s credit risk policy.
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3. NERPEREZESTEIAT 3. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach (continued)
HESER (8)

3.1 NERHE AL REBE AR 3.1 The internal rating systems and risk components (continued)
oy (80D

Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information (continued)

(D) WESEPER AR

(D) The control mechanisms used for internal rating systems (continued)

b (8D

AEERCE T 5Tk
HIRER? - eErEEsy
r 8% B RF 4R 15 2
R AE B R A HAL
HHEEEE - B4
PraT R 1E R I
% HAEETARERIE
Fr d ({5 15 N aF ek
YRR FIR - {2
T ST 4 By i R
ARG BT
287Gt > HaETH
B AMRSIEE
SOEHEEH R
BZA - AT
e e EH R v gy
EEFEMRENE
a0 o PBREFARIB R
TE T 45HHE B Al B G
B g E D
10% o iR A RET
A% FE B A (o P A
B R N o 17 1F By
T 2 PN AT AR A A
TR -

AREEEH N EEFR 2
R R I T IR
TEHEEE - BHEE
HIE A B RT AR &
ey F2 3 R TR BE
73 o NESEHR ARSI
12 Fr YA R i 18
BRI AT - 5
Tl e 58 B (i 3 A T
S AR Z B0 1 3% 1 E
77 ~ SEREME AR E
HEATRFS - MRS
At B 07 S P R Ak
ENSR (B R
B =T BT RT 8k
LB (EE
JRE Bz 7 2 o P R
PEE THaRT - fnEds
REHEESEGN
B -

Rating override is designed to allow credit analyst to include any other relevant credit
information that has not yet been captured by rating models. For reasons of
conservatism and prudential considerations, overrides are unlimited in terms of
downgrades but more restricted for upgrades. All upgrades will be limited to a
maximum of two sub-grades supported by a very narrowly pre-defined list of
appropriate reasons. All overrides need to be signed off by a higher level of credit
approval authority. The internal rating policy sets a trigger point of 10% overrides on
rating cases. The use of overrides and override reasons are analysed by BOCHK as
part of performance review on IRB rating models.

The performance of internal rating system is put under ongoing periodic monitoring.
The Management periodically reviews the performance and predictive ability of the
internal rating system. The effectiveness of the internal rating system and processes
are reviewed by independent control functions. The model maintenance unit conducts
assessment on the discriminatory power, accuracy and stability of the rating systems
while the validation unit performs comprehensive review of the internal rating system.
Internal audit reviews the internal rating system and the operations of the related
credit risk control units. The results of the review are reported to the Board and the
Management regularly.
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3. NERPEREZESTEIAT 3. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach (continued)
HESER (8)

3.1 AEER & R ERAHEE 3.1 The internal rating systems and risk components (continued)

oy (8)

(D) NERLER S Hl (D) The control mechanisms used for internal rating systems (continued)
B (8
R A AR A e (] A model validation team of BOCHK which is independent from the model
B g V7 s 1 T e 5% development unit and rating assignment units, conducts periodic model validations
BEATFISPAR BN B using both qualitative and quantitative analysis. Model acceptance standards are
HiF HE W E = established by BOCHK to ensure the discriminatory power, accuracy and stability of
Sy fr #E 1T R A B the rating systems meet regulatory and management requirements. Review of a
G TEREBEIE T rating model will be triggered if the performance of the model deteriorates materially
5 TR B U A2 AR D) g against pre-determined tolerance limit.
(AR SN OE: %]
HEJT ~ dEMEMERIERE
HREEE R EE
FOR o AR
HE JJ KR TR 2

TR AR RE > Al
GRLE)ET R I

fi o

(E) BEEETE (E) Approach for determining provisions
BAERER T RS E The approach in determining provisions is in line with the Group’s accounting policies.
BlEETECR—80 5 For details, please refer to Note 2.15 “Impairment of financial assets” to the Financial
15 R B R M EE Statements.
215 T & @b & E R
(=N
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3. NERPEREZESTEIAT 3. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach (continued)
HESER (8)

Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information (continued)

3.2 NERRFRERETRIAT
MU AR

3.2 Exposures by IRB calculation approach

The tables below show the Group’s exposures other than securitisation exposures
(including the EAD of on-balance sheet exposures and off-balance sheet exposures) by

NRIURAEERE S
YA L B AR B S R

Tl A B b A B AR T A

SFREEEAIE (BEE
EAERANREEAM
RNV R ANE ) -

each IRB calculation approach.

2015
BESE EEARE
HREES ZEHEEE FPAREAE FrERR
FHREREE  Supervisory HEE EEER
EEE Slotting Retail Specific P pmlryrreid
FIRB Criteria IRB  Risk-weight Total
Approach Approach Approach Approach exposures
AT AT AT T AT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i Corporate 140,842,881 971,346 - 141,814,227
$RIT Bank 98,528,118 - - 98,528,118
EE Retail
RN &E0: 7 Residential
EEERE mortgages to
&K individuals
and property-
holding shell
companies - - 13,506,028 - 13,506,028
FHEIER Qualifying
EE revolving retail - - - -
HAtr {8 AN EE Other retail to
individuals - - 8,892,267 - 8,892,267
T/ [\ Small business
retail - - 1,890,509 - 1,890,509
Kl Others - - 12,405,053 12,405,053
239,370,999 971,346 24,288,804 12,405,053 277,036,202

235



35 NCB #1731 % 441

REFZLZ
R BEN (8

Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information (continued)

3.

AN ERREah B EETFEIET 3. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach (continued)

MiEERE (8)

3.2 AR ERGTRAT

3.2 Exposures by IRB calculation approach (continued)

Rl (8D
2014
EEE ZENE
FERERED BHGTRE SRR ERE e b
SPEAAE  Supervisory STREE MEEETRVE
SHEE Slotting Retail Specific WA AR
FIRB Criteria IRB Risk-weight Total
Approach Approach Approach Approach exposures
AT AT AT AT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
3 Corporate 137,973,751 1,543,915 - - 139,517,666
$RAT Bank 103,072,641 - - - 103,072,641
TBE Retail
EPN-€5 7N Residential
EilEE=tieis mortgages to
HK individuals
and property-
holding shell
companies - - 11,742,017 - 11,742,017
EERIEER Qualifying
25g: revolving retail - - - - -
HAEAEE Other retail to
individuals - - 8,032,884 - 8,032,884
EE/ NP Small business
retail - - 2,160,707 - 2,160,707
HAth Others - - - 10,188,547 10,188,547
241,046,392 1,543,915 21,935,608 10,188,547 274,714,462
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3. NERPEREZESTEIAT 3. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach (continued)
HESER (8)

3.3 NERREAR AT BIE T EE 3.3 Exposures subject to supervisory estimates under the IRB approach

EFUE SRR R

NRFRAT A B BB N ER The table below shows the total EAD of the Group’s exposures subject to supervisory
PP RS EDA TN 2B estimates under the use of IRB approach (including the specialised lending subject to
FUE LRI E L R b K the supervisory slotting criteria approach).

& (EEEE B
RETHHEFIEES) -

2015 2014
BT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
i3 Corporate 141,814,227 139,517,666
$RTT Bank 98,528,118 103,072,641
HAth Others 12,405,053 10,188,547
252,747,398 252,778,854
34 ZEERBEETERE 3.4 Exposures covered by credit risk mitigation used
BB R I
(A) ZR e AR (A) Exposures covered by recognised collateral
bryzeiy
NEYTALEHEEH The table below shows the Group’s exposures under the use of FIRB approach
N s AL 5 T (after the effect of any on-balance sheet or off-balance sheet recognised netting)
BOET > AR (R which are covered by recognised collateral after the application of haircuts required
172 (&AR) AL under the Banking (Capital) Rules. These exposures exclude securities financing
HHRE IE LR R 2 transactions and derivative contracts.
PO A OR B A JE B
ERIE (EFtREME
ERERANNEER
BRI AT E
TEHTRCER) o IS b
AIEW A EFERE IRl
BXGRTETES
S
2015 2014
BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
P Corporate 26,051,399 29,599,424
$RTT Bank 6,931 3,254
26,058,330 29,602,678
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i BER (8

3. NERPEREZESTEIAT 3. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach (continued)
HESER (8)

34 SEERBERTHEER 3.4 Exposures covered by credit risk mitigation used (continued)

HI R R (&)

(B) SZEETIHERIRENIE (B) Exposures covered by recognised guarantees
Ly
TRIIRAEE IR The table below shows the Group's exposures (after the effect of any on-balance
(ER1T2E (AR # sheet or off-balance sheet recognised netting) which are covered by recognised
RIT) AR E 1F R guarantees after the application of haircuts required under the Banking (Capital)
1% 2 A B R PRI Y Rules. These exposures exclude securities financing transactions and derivative
AR E (Bt contracts.
EEABREASE

EER ARSI A FE
SFRUARISE R - I
JeR B AR A B AR RS

FRVE L 5 RAOTAEL
HEL -

2015 2014
BT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000
i3 Corporate 29,319,782 29,330,207
$RTT Bank 6,031,455 7,893,668
35,351,237 37,223,875
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R BEN (8

3. NERPEREZESTEIAT 3. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach (continued)

MiEERE (8)

3.5 NEFPRERENREAT R

3.5 Risk assessment for corporate and bank exposures under IRB approach

SRR IHIRR
¥

IRIPRAEER 12 F
31 HEEBAZERAIE
W A TR < 5 L o
BRI R A R T8
AR 2 3 R RTT
HOEL R RIE -

LUR £ 26 R $RAT 2 34y
JEU B AR R B RERTE
BT SR AR SRR
T E R R ATE R
& MASLE AR

The tables below detail the Group’s total EAD of corporate and bank exposures by
exposure-weighted average risk-weight and exposure-weighted average PD for each
obligor grade as at 31 December.

The EAD and PD disclosed below in respect of corporate and bank exposures have taken
into account the effect of recognised collateral, recognised netting and recognised
guarantees. The Group did not have any recognised credit derivative contracts.

AEELTAETRELY -

A& EBNERAE

For definition of each obligor grade, please refer to page 228.

FopASE228H -

(A) EEERE (8

(A) Corporate exposures (other than specialised lending under supervisory slotting

RS o IEAER] criteria approach)
SFRENEMEE
&)
2015
JEg AR
YRR JEg AR
Exposure- HYROR
B EERAE weighted Exposure-
Exposure average weighted
WEREESE] Internal Credit Grades at default risk-weight average PD
BETT % %
HK$'000
Sl 1 Grade 1 - 0.00 0.00
&Rl 2 Grade 2 295,203 18.44 0.03
&A1 3 Grade 3 14,642,595 26.12 0.07
&Rl 4 Grade 4 40,599,750 44.25 0.25
&R 5 Grade 5 72,146,362 77.07 1.09
&R 6 Grade 6 12,487,428 105.51 4.95
&R 7 Grade 7 82,519 194.25 28.48
4R 8, LY Grade 8/Default 589,024 95.56 100.00

140,842,881
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R BEN (8

3. NERPEREZEEETEIAT 3. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach (continued)

MiEERE (8)

3.5 NEaRap A BIA T 3.5 Risk assessment for corporate and bank exposures under IRB approach (continued)

S KSR g AR O B
FHE (8D
(A) EREEERE (CFa (A) Corporate exposures (other than specialised lending under supervisory slotting
TR AT R criteria approach) (continued)
SFRENEMEE
g) (&)
2014
JE\ B AR HE TITE
PR E JE\ B AR HE TIIE
Exposure- S ELER
EA R AR weighted Exposure-
Exposure average weighted
N E S S8R Internal Credit Grades at default risk-weight average PD
BT % %
HK$'000
&1 Grade 1 - 0.00 0.00
&Rl 2 Grade 2 308,114 23.37 0.04
&Rl 3 Grade 3 18,733,272 23.45 0.07
&Rl 4 Grade 4 34,181,018 40.24 0.24
S G Grade 5 67,814,411 72.43 1.14
&R 6 Grade 6 15,926,506 121.46 5.18
&R 7 Grade 7 67,764 171.14 20.40
4 8, LY Grade 8/Default 942,666 62.15 100.00
137,973,751
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3. NERPEREZESTEIAT 3. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach (continued)
HESER (8)

3.5 NiEaRapEBEABIA T 3.5 Risk assessment for corporate and bank exposures under IRB approach (continued)

S KSR U AR O B
B (80
(B) inE¥EREEAE (FH (B) Corporate exposures (specialised lending under supervisory slotting criteria
EESEEAEEA approach)
HIEFIEER)
2015 2014
R BN TR T
FHRREE SRR
Exposure- Exposure-
BRI weighted BB weighted
Exposure average Exposure average
BEERIRR]  Supervisory Rating Grades at default risk-weight at default risk-weight
BT % AT %
HK$'000 HK$'000
& Strong 443,946 60.96 505,694 60.17
B Good 527,400 88.30 312,252 86.96
e Satisfactory - 0.00 725,969 115.00
RiE Weak - 0.00 - 0.00
EL Default - 0.00 - 0.00
971,346 1,543,915
HP A SRS T The supervisory rating grades and risk-weights of specialised lending are
AR AR AN B SR b A B T determined in accordance with section 158 of the Banking (Capital) Rules.

I CBRITSE (A
HIAI) 26 158 fREIHE
TEMMEE ©
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3. NEEE4REL#ESTE AT 3. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach (continued)
NiEgRE (&)

3.5 NEaRap A BIA T 3.5 Risk assessment for corporate and bank exposures under IRB approach (continued)

3 RS T R B R Y LB
FFAd ()
(C) shfTRbE&LE (C) Bank exposures
2015
RS ARHE ntE
R g E RS ARHE ntE
Exposure- SRR
BAE RS weighted Exposure-
Exposure average weighted
WEREESE] Internal Credit Grades at default risk-weight average PD
BT T % %
HK$'000
WA 1 Grade 1 - 0.00 0.00
Wl 2 Grade 2 14,541,766 22.47 0.04
WAl 3 Grade 3 48,928,810 28.33 0.06
WAl 4 Grade 4 31,425,420 55.79 0.23
WAl 5 Grade 5 3,632,122 73.09 0.79
KA 6 Grade 6 - 0.00 0.00
W7 Grade 7 - 0.00 0.00
4R 8, 1EL Grade 8/Default - 0.00 0.00
98,528,118
2014
JE\ B AR A e
S E b e JE\ B AR A e
Exposure- S IELIER
B ERRE weighted Exposure-
Exposure average weighted
RG] Internal Credit Grades at default risk-weight average PD
BT % %
HK$'000
& 1 Grade 1 - 0.00 0.00
4Rl 2 Grade 2 9,809,605 22.95 0.04
43 Grade 3 49,085,042 31.00 0.07
44 Grade 4 38,122,386 58.62 0.24
4R 5 Grade 5 6,055,608 75.57 0.75
&1 6 Grade 6 - 0.00 0.00
&7 Grade 7 - 0.00 0.00
4R 8, L Grade 8/Default - 0.00 0.00

103,072,641
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R BEN (8

3. NEEEsREL#ESTE AT 3. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach (continued)

HERRE (&)

3.6 NI ERETEIETE 3.6 Risk assessment for retail exposures under IRB approach

il e i)l e
TEYIRRY 12 H 31 Hi% The tables below show breakdown of retail exposures on a pool basis by expected loss
TRIHEA H o thdl A E percentage (EL%) range as at 31 December.

B R

EEEHEK

B E1%
>1%
L)

GERERES

R%E10%
>10%
#Y

HitEAZEE

% E2%
>2%
B

Residential mortgages

2015 2014
AT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000
Up to 1% 13,474,453 11,697,637
>1% 29,401 36,464
Default 2,174 7,916
13,506,028 11,742,017
Qualifying revolving retail
2015 2014
AT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000
Up to 10% - -
>10% - -
Default - -
Other retail to individuals
2015 2014
AT ATT
HK$'000 HK$°000
Up to 2% 8,665,952 7,919,599
>2% 220,943 110,794
Default 5,372 2,491
8,892,267 8,032,884
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information (continued)

3. NEEE4REL#ESTE AT 3. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach (continued)

HERRE (&)

3.6 NEFHREESRIATE

BB AR R
(8

BB/

R EL%
>1%

Y

HRBL R AEREROAT

IR AR RIS R
AL - HERBRES
FENN R AERT RUE
{18 R AR HE S T £
Byt CELREHREH R (i
BURFALRE AR

B3

SRAT
[EVN- & i lE e =tireio]
GRBIERTE
HAEAZE
TN

TR ERCRE R Y
kb EFIR 2015 £
BENREIE S R E B
HRD o

3.6 Risk assessment for retail exposures under IRB approach (continued)

Small business retail

Up to 1%
>1%
Default

3.7 Analysis of actual loss and estimates

2015 2014
BT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000

1,823,740 2,078,789
23,344 46,372
43,425 35,546

1,890,509 2,160,707

The table below shows the actual losses broken down by class of risk exposure, which
represent the net charges (including write-offs and individually assessed impairment
allowances) made by each class of exposures under the internal ratings-based

approach for the year.

Corporate

Bank

Residential mortgages to individuals and
property-holding shell companies

Qualifying revolving retail

Other retail to individuals

Small business retail

2015 2014
AT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000

761,668 811,457
- 3,653

829 5,750
16,365 4,056
778,862 824,916

Decrease in the loan impairment charge of corporate exposures was mainly due to the
decrease in the amount of new classified or impaired loans in 2015.
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3. NEEE4REL#ESTE AT 3. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach (continued)
NiEgRE (&)

3.7 BEEEELREEENSHT 3.7 Analysis of actual loss and estimates (continued)

(&)

N E G EYEE R R The table below shows the expected loss broken down by class of risk exposure, which
TEEAEZ - THEAESZTE is the estimated loss likely to be incurred arising from the potential default of the obligors
&5 N5t A B RS RIS in respect of the exposure over a one-year period.

— AN ATRERIE A5 |2
HyftEHR -

2014412 H31H 2013412 F 31 H

TREARE THIEL

Expected loss Expected loss

at 31 December at 31 December

2014 2013

AT AT

HK$'000 HK$'000

13 Corporate 999,302 1,226,201

SRIT Bank 58,265 76,415
EPN &L N E e st 7E o) Residential mortgages to individuals and

B property-holding shell companies 5,018 5,384

HERIERESE Qualifying revolving retail - B

HAE AN ZEE Other retail to individuals 45,257 41,431

TR/ NP Small business retail 29,691 20,068

1,137,533 1,369,499
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3. NEEE4REL#EETE AT 3. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach (continued)
NESRERE (&)

Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information (continued)

3.7 BIEHRA RAGEERI ST
(&

3.7 Analysis of actual loss and estimates (continued)

TRELSHEEEEIEY The tables below set out the actual default rate compared against the estimated PD of

2R L fik TR LY R R A 3
Et

the respective portfolio.

2015 4R 20144 12H 31 H

HIEROE BRI

Actual default Estimated PD

rate during at 31 December

2015 2014

% %

i3 Corporate 1.68 1.90

$RTT Bank - 0.25
PN & NI et e Residential mortgages to individuals and

B property-holding shell companies 0.02 0.52

BEBIEREE Qualifying revolving retail - _

HARE N EE Other retail to individuals 0.17 0.77

FE/ NP Small business retail 1.14 1.31

2014 5] 201312 H 31 H

BRI fEREL R

Actual default Estimated PD

rate during at 31 December

2014 2013

% %

1 Corporate 1.12 2.01

$RTT Bank - 0.26
{8 A S 22738 N S s Residential mortgages to individuals and

B property-holding shell companies 0.04 0.57

GAKEREE Qualifying revolving retail - _

HAME N EE Other retail to individuals 0.10 0.79

TN Small business retail 0.96 1.42
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3. NEEE4REL#ESTE AT 3. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach (continued)

HERRE (&)

3.7 EEHBRARAERENIN

(8

TAHHERAE R BAR A
R EET RN
B DR EHBHAVETE S
SERIEEHAEAD - AR
FT{EEPERHELER - BERRH
ERRRE THRK ) AUE
FHIEEAR - FHNHRR
FEEZERHEA R EENE
3 N ERLRBTE A
&K WEBRE BRI ]
{E R L A AR B
515 B b R AR B Y B
PR FERREOR © TIERRE
REBENEEAREES

AER R (T B I
(RS iye A

IR RATRERE
BONEHABE (it
JR\ARHE SR P E (&
B ) MEEES
TEERAILE — (KO AR
R ELRIEE -
WAERTER F THEEH— 4RI
VTR B LR -

PRI - H R S R 8
BRI TR
B N (TRERER )
HIFBEOREE G ER
B 5 A A RO S

B HEERRIRI R
TRILEIRBLIRORST

3.7 Analysis of actual loss and estimates (continued)

It should be noted that expected loss and actual loss are measured and calculated using
different methodologies compliant with relevant regulatory and accounting standards,
which therefore may not be directly comparable. The limitation arises mainly from the
fundamental differences in the definition of “loss”. The expected loss under Basel Accord
which estimates the economic loss arising from the potential default of the obligor by
taking into account the time value of money and including the direct and indirect costs
associated with the recoveries on the credit exposures during the workout process,
while actual loss is the net charge of individually assessed impairment allowances and
write-offs made during the year in accordance with the accounting standards.

The actual default rate is measured by using the number of obligors (for wholesale
exposures) or number of accounts (for retail exposures) defaulted whereas the estimated
PD is an estimate of the long run average default rate over an economic cycle and is the
estimated one-year forward-looking PD from the date of rating assignment.

Hence, actual default rate in a particular year (“point-in-time”) will typically differ from the
estimated PD which is the “through-the-cycle” estimates as economies move above or
below the cyclical norms.

The estimated PD is more conservative than the actual default rate for all asset classes.
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4, B ([SEEK) & 4. Credit risk under the standardised (credit risk) approach
ETHEERRER

4.1

4.2

SMES (= BRTAEHERE(ECAI)
FPERHIER

AEERAELE (FER
be) SECEILLIINERE
SPAR RIS - FEE A EE
JR At [EI T A G (o A AR
WEREPARERAEET BRI
HR {5 B AR LAUR DL
TNEEDE BRI
EEREREE

- ZIEREREIRTT

AREEEE CBRIT3E (BA)
AT 25 4 SOBENE
JEREAE - (SN B
ST AP SR
??EFE@HF@%TFE AEEH

FOATHYS N5 BERT AL
a?ﬁﬁﬁjﬁﬁﬁ 2HFIE
I

EREBRGE

N (EERRE)
SHRVARY(E B RARYE -
Fria R R R 2
?&?ﬁ&.éﬁﬁﬁ”@%ﬁ%ﬁ
* BRI A - I
» SE A AT Ry S
%ﬂ&z%#’sﬂ’] IR
o AEEEFREE A AL
FREFE (BRIT3E (EA)
BRI hEreRetEEE
JE\ B 4 R A K © 12
e (EERE) StRE
SREEREREERE
K BFHER A EREH
R\ e B A B (Y
B ABEA %
BRI TRE AR
PR DR AR AR T
%SHB}’?‘E%W%@@WE’J%E
1T R BAIMER S Rl
%‘s"’%ﬁ)\a%&ﬂ’]ﬁ% i
Hh > AR AR RS
SEmERaEEA AN
PSR R LTE
TERS -

Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information (continued)

4.1 Use of ratings from External Credit Assessment Institutions (“ECAI")

The Group adopts STC approach based on external credit rating to determine the risk
weight of the small residual credit exposures that was approved by the HKMA to be
exempted from FIRB approach and the following asset classes of exposures:

- Sovereign
- Public sector entity

- Multilateral development bank

The Group performs the ECAI issuer ratings mapping to its exposures in banking book in
accordance with Part 4 of the Banking (Capital) Rules. The ECAIs recognised by the
Group include Standard & Poor’s, Moody’s and Fitch.

4.2 Credit risk mitigation

For credit exposures adopting STC approach, the main types of recognised collateral
include cash deposits, debt securities and equities for non-past due exposures. In
addition, real estate collateral is also recognised for past due exposures. The treatment
of recognised collateral is compliant with the comprehensive approach for credit risk
mitigation as mentioned in the Banking (Capital) Rules. For credit exposures under STC
approach, the recognised guarantees for capital calculation include the guarantees
given by sovereigns, public sector entities, multilateral development banks, or banks and
corporates with ECAI issuer ratings both exempted from FIRB approach for credit
exposures, that have lower risk weights than the counterparty. Besides, the recognised
netting for credit risk mitigation includes derivatives subject to valid bilateral netting
agreements.
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i BER (8
4, B ([SEEK) & 4. Credit risk under the standardised (credit risk) approach (continued)
ETHEERRE (&)

4.3 EREE USRI R RES
e (EERE) ST8%E

THIERERAE

4.3 Credit risk exposures other than securitisation exposures under the standardised
(credit risk) approach

LEABERAEREE On-balance sheet exposures

BT
INVEEL
gz 50

AT

SR E]

fiit 3

B H

EETE

EEfHEERK

N S A U
R

R R

KA RN R

-
ki

B A RS NI R
FReEsR A 2 R AT
ETEGEYNIE
FEEAFRINERRR
&
SEIFRAR S AT
TH&Y

KA RS NI R
ki

Bl eallee |0
skl

1,250% g S AT
i

Sovereigns

Public sector entities

Multilateral development
banks

Banks

Securities firms

Corporates

Cash items

Regulatory retail

Residential mortgage loans

Other exposures which are
not past due

Past due exposures

Total on-balance sheet

exposures

Off-balance sheet exposures

Off-balance sheet exposures
other than securities
financing transactions and
derivative contracts

Securities financing
transactions and derivative
contracts

Total off-balance sheet

exposures

Total non-securitisation

exposures

Exposures that are risk-weighted

at 1,250%

2015
EERE R B R
RS BBRIIERER WERS EERS
Exposures after CRM* Risk-weighted amount Total Total
JEBSRIE exposures exposures
&% covered by covered by
Total Bk SR Rk FHE&F4L  recognised recognised
exposures Rated Unrated Rated Unrated collateral guarantees
AETIT ABRTT BETT  B¥TIT O EBETT BETIT E%TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
34,997,144 35,070,486 - 571,753 - - -
1,648,325 1,578,161 - 137,507 - - 73,342
1,500,101 1,500,101 - - - - -
159,679 159,679 - 32,873 - - -
7,200,215 - 7,181,808 - 7,181,808 18,407 -
442 - 442 - - - -
2,117,320 - 2,036,780 - 1,527,585 80,540 -
12,166,871 - 12,163,694 - 6,081,847 - 3,177
396,777 - 278,248 - 287,398 118,529 -
84,207 - 84,207 - 109,117 34,387 -
60,271,081 38,308,427 21,745,179 742,133 15,187,755 251,863 76,519
472,850 99,480 373,370 19,896 339,192 - 3,669
16,506 - 16,506 - 13,371 - -
489,356 99,480 389,876 19,896 352,563 - 3,669
60,760,437 38,407,907 22,135,055 762,029 15,540,318 251,863 80,188
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4, fEE (EEER) & 4. Credit risk under the standardised (credit risk) approach (continued)
ZETHEERR (8

4.3 EREE bR RES
e (EERE) 5T8R%E

THEREBAE (&)

ENE
ANEELL
BT

B
EEEN
BT
TR
Es
AR

B AR R
S

HE ARSI R
bRt RS 5 T
ETEGEYNIE
FEARRINERRK
&
SEIFRASR S AT
TREEY

HE ARSI R
&

FERER LI R
skl

1,250%%\ gt S &
IR IELEEE

* R E SRR
& (T ()
HH) ATERIER B
ffe

LEABERAEREE On-balance sheet exposures

Sovereigns

Public sector entities

Multilateral development
banks

Banks

Securities firms

Corporates

Cash items

Regulatory retail

Residential mortgage loans

Other exposures which are
not past due

Past due exposures

Total on-balance sheet

exposures

Off-balance sheet exposures

Off-balance sheet exposures
other than securities
financing transactions and
derivative contracts

Securities financing
transactions and derivative
contracts

Total off-balance sheet

exposures

Total non-securitisation

exposures

Exposures that are risk-weighted

at 1,250%

4.3 Credit risk exposures other than securitisation exposures under the standardised
(credit risk) approach (continued)

2014
S SO AR
SRR AR JE g A SR HEEGY
Exposures after CRM* Risk-weighted amount Total
JoE g 2 exposures  exposures
HagH covered by covered by
Total R RERER TERFAR NIESER  recognised  recognised
exposures Rated Unrated Rated Unrated collateral guarantees
BIETIT  BNTOT BIETUT BIEToT BIToT BT ENTT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
32,454,627 32,481,294 - 136,437 - - -
419,432 395,107 - 27,978 - - 26,667
330,293 330,293 - - - - -
6,267,904 161,088 6,106,816 33,183 1,258,144 - -
8,048,718 - 7,985,809 - 7,985,809 62,909 -
264 - 264 - - - -
2,381,688 - 2,334,894 - 1,751,171 46,794 -
11,197,935 - 11,195,593 - 5,597,797 - 2,342
602,837 - 444,236 - 561,191 158,601 -
67,216 - 67,216 - 94,353 12,943 -
61,770,914 33,367,782 28,134,828 197,598 17,248,465 281,247 29,009
366,704 25,570 341,134 5,114 314,349 - 4,759
9,781 - 9,781 - 7,714 - -
376,485 25,570 350,915 5,114 322,063 - 4,759
62,147,399 33,393,352 28,485,743 202,712 17,570,528 281,247 33,768
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5. XGEFEEEEMHERM 5. Counterparty credit risk-related exposures

Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information (continued)
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SEEEE DU EXR SR
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The Group’s counterparty credit risk arising from derivative contracts and securities financing
transactions both in trading and banking book is subject to the same risk management
framework as mentioned in Note 4 to the Financial Statements. The Group establishes credit
limit of counterparties through formal credit approval procedures to control the pre-settlement
credit risk arising from derivative transactions and settlement limit to control the settlement
risk arising from foreign exchange-related transactions for counterparties in both the trading
book and banking book. The Group monitors the risk exposure due to fluctuations in the
market by using the current exposure and the potential exposure value of the transactions.
Exceptions or excesses are timely and closely identified and monitored by risk management
units.

Credit equivalent amount and capital charge for the relevant counterparty credit exposures
are determined following the regulatory capital requirements. Currently, the Group has
adopted the Current Exposure Method to measure the relevant credit equivalent amount,
which comprises current exposures and potential future exposures. The relevant counterparty
default risk capital charge is calculated under the FIRB/STC (credit risk) approach. In
addition, the Group has adopted standardised credit valuation adjustment (“CVA”) method to
calculate the relevant counterparty CVA capital charge.

The Group establishes prudent eligibility criteria and haircut policy of debt securities being
pledged as collateral for securities financing transactions.

The Group formulates policy for classification of credit assets according to the PD of
counterparties and the period of overdue. If there is objective evidence that an impairment
loss has been incurred, impairment allowance will be provided according to HKFRS and
regulatory requirements.

In controlling and monitoring of wrong-way risk (risk of existence of positive correlation
between the PD of a counterparty and credit exposures driven by mark-to-market value of the
underlying transactions), specific wrong-way risk transactions are generally not allowed and
monitoring measures have been formulated for those counterparties identified by stress
testing that would be exposed to potential general wrong-way risk.
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information (continued)

T EBEFEEEEMAERM 5. Counterparty credit risk-related exposures (continued)

5.1 Counterparty credit risk exposures under the internal ratings-based approach

The following table summarises the Group’s exposures to counterparty credit risk arising
from securities financing transactions and derivative contracts calculated using the
Current Exposure Method. There is no effect of valid cross-product netting agreements on
these exposures.

S ATE

ERFA R PG
A S RAEN
Z B R e
&

I wE AT

- A%
- HA

[SURESEE Sob et
AR T BAE N
Z BRI
AR R R

PIAZ G TR
BLE R R R
B3
AT

PIAE G T4
JE\f AR
B3
AT

R EEIRERIE A (=
BPTAE TR AL
FHH

2015 2014
BHRELS EAFRER S
Securities TTETHEEN Securities T THEAY
financing Derivative financing Derivative
transactions contracts transactions contracts
BRI BETT AT T BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
Gross total positive fair
value 373,984 86,822
Default risk exposures
after the effect of valid
bilateral netting
agreements 2,384,183 686,116 2,763,929 418,634
Less: Value of recognised
collateral
- Debt securities (339,774) - - -
- Others (472,002) - (2,061,803) -
Default risk exposures
after the effect of valid
bilateral netting
agreements net of
recognised collateral 1,572,407 686,116 702,126 418,634
Default risk exposures by
counterparty type
Corporate - 70,209 - 102,812
Bank 2,384,183 615,907 2,763,929 315,822
2,384,183 686,116 2,763,929 418,634
Risk-weighted amounts
by counterparty type
Corporate - 63,226 - 111,619
Bank 683,839 184,081 291,016 101,312
683,839 247,307 291,016 212,931

Notional amounts of
recognised credit
derivative contracts that
provide credit protection
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RiE (&)

5.2 & (ERER) 18X

XY FEEEEHERBE 5. Counterparty credit risk-related exposures (continued)

5.2 Counterparty credit risk exposures under the standardised (credit risk) approach

THXBHFEERR
AiE

IR A A B [ R 2R
TR\ AR HE U7 AT B
HFETITETLRESY
T EE A A AR > A0 H
A RS E S B A

The following table summarises the Group’s exposures to counterparty credit risk arising
from derivative contracts calculated using the Current Exposure Method. There is no
effect of valid cross-product netting agreements on these exposures.

FlmaI e -

FEETHE

[SURESpe Sobh it
A S RAEN
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&
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- 5%
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A ST RAEN
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BIECEEREE Sl

2015 2014
Securities TIETEEY Securities T HESY
financing Derivative financing Derivative
transactions contracts transactions contracts
AT BT T HETT AR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Gross total positive fair
value 322,282 352,250
Default risk exposures
after the effect of valid
bilateral netting
agreements - 16,506 - 9,781
Less: Value of recognised
collateral
- Debt securities - - - -
- Others - - - -
Default risk exposures
after the effect of valid
bilateral netting
agreements net of
recognised collateral - 16,506 - 9,781
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R BEN (8

5. X 5HFEEEEFER 5. Counterparty credit risk-related exposures (continued)

RiE (&)

5.2 & (E8RB) S8E
THXHHFEERRE
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BEEE
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INEERAL
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BETE
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Default risk exposures by
counterparty type
Sovereigns
Public sector entities
Corporates
Regulatory retail
Other exposures which

are not past due
Past due exposures

Risk-weighted amounts
by counterparty type
Sovereigns
Public sector entities
Corporates
Regulatory retail
Other exposures which

are not past due
Past due exposures

Notional amounts of
recognised credit
derivative contracts that
provide credit protection

5.2 Counterparty credit risk exposures under the standardised (credit risk) approach
(continued)

2014
Securities TTETHEEY Securities T EAY
financing Derivative financing Derivative
transactions contracts transactions contracts
BRI BETT AT T BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
3,948 - 1,488
12,542 - 8,265
16 - 28
16,506 - 9,781
3,948 - 1,488
9,407 - 6,198
16 - 28
13,371 - 7,714
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i BER (8
6. BESZAHE 6. Assets securitisation

REHEER—FHEHME > 1> There was no assets securitisation for which the Group is an investing institution at 31
20154E12 A31 HfE&EES  December 2015 (2014: Nil).
b (20144 : %) -

7. TBEEEARTR 7. Capital charge for market risk

2015 2014
BT AT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
A (SRR STEVET Under the standardised (market risk) approach
SR RRRYE GFEH) Foreign exchange exposures (net)
FlI R i Interest rate exposures
- IR LB R i - Non-securitisation exposure
P P R Commaodity exposures
FRE A S R s Equity exposures
TEAFERETEEAT Under the internal models approach
NP R R ) — e SR B A General foreign exchange and interest rate exposures 48,993 45,648
G EkEE A K Capital charge for market risk 48,993 45,648
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i BER (8
7. TR EBEAER (&) 7. Capital charge for market risk (continued)

FofFe (2011 SE8RIT3R (A

(gsT) #AN) - SRk E
AARER R AT R 2 B
EEAZK - MRYMALEH
DI B A R R R —
SR bR A AR A
e (e 2 PRI (L

Market risk regulatory capital charge is calculated under the Banking (Capital) (Amendment)

Rules 2011 to incorporate capital charge for stressed VAR. The following table sets out the

IMM VAR and stressed VAR for the general market risk exposure calculated under the IMM

approach of the Group.

o o s
B12 7 REERE EeRE FERE
31 H Minimum Maximum  Average
FEy At 31 for the for the for the
Year | December year year year
BT BT BETOT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
SN B R B B > N B IMM VAR for foreign exchange
SHECEEEE and interest rate risk 2015 2,657 1,686 4,080 2,613
2014 1,868 1,868 4,120 3,064
bINGEE SR\ PRI S T B A IMM VAR for foreign exchange
JeE B L risk 2015 2,644 1,299 4,355 2,608
2014 1,597 1,597 4,156 3,094
FRE > NEER ST EE IMM VAR for interest rate risk
JeE B L 2015 370 89 810 353
2014 765 652 2,554 1,956
YNGR R FIPR TR\ 2 IR R B Stressed VAR for foreign exchange
= and interest rate risk 2015 15,020 4,740 32,445 16,227
2014 8,825 7,683 33,097 16,191
J NG 7 R b (L Stressed VAR for foreign exchange
risk 2015 7,101 1,924 8,600 6,734
2014 1,957 1,957 8,098 7,193
TR\ > A7 R\ (B Stressed VAR for interest rate risk 2015 11,201 1,897 27,852 11,653
2014 8,273 3,532 31,258 14,119

B

1. T e B A B A
ST RUE b (8 R =2 BE g fEL A
T 99% EF/KV R 10 Kff
AR - ZEE R PR
Je\f (EAA R AR R 0% » RIS
EISH &R 12 (E B B
THYRE LSBT -

Note:

1. IMM VAR and stressed VAR measures used for market risk regulatory capital purposes are calculated to a

99% confidence level and use a 10-day holding period. The stressed VAR uses the same methodology as

the VAR model and is generated with inputs calibrated to the historical market data from a continuous

12-month period of significant financial stress relevant to the Group’s portfolio.
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i BER (&)
7. TR EBEAER (&) 7. Capital charge for market risk (continued)

TEFIRAEEREEETH  The graphs below show the regulatory back-testing result of the Group’s market risk under
AEETEHEENEEREH  IMM approach.

AR -
20155F4F K TGS
Daily Back-testing in 2015
HBETT — L —
HED 000 Actual Revenues ViR
7,000
6000
5000
4,000
3,000
2000
1,000
0
1.000 * - S
000
000
4,000
000
20FAFR IR A
Daily Back-testingin 2014
BT — A —
HKD '000 Actual Revermes VaR

2015 4 PN [0 gE O R 45 5 There was 1 actual loss exceeding the VAR for the Group in 2015 as shown in the back-testing
o REEAE—REATSIE  results (2014: Nil).

5% 8 a8 B s E HY 75 5 (2014

) o
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8. Capital charge for operational risk

PRIEEBR A EIK

ASEBTREE CETRRER
o) sHEDES RIS R
= -

- SRETHRAVAAE R ki O.

A HA A SRR SRR
TE H % 55 B RE B 996 T (8 A
HEE o PRIBH A B SR A R T
AR BN A (S
HEAME) MHEFARIRAER L
RN - BERFERTH
HIRER & (BRI E
5] ~ AE RSB EIER
B R A AR R -
WEFEEERAN SREEE
FIR -

ARG R FHELREF A 15 =
ff3¥ 2.9(4)-2.12-2.13 1 2.15
FHIE 2 Erat BRI R (8 AR
FHERITHR TP BRI R A = LAY
R bR Ry - L (E
—H BT I R
51 " DIAFEEENERT
B o BRI A RHR Y
& o 65 B —TEA e A AR
REAE - EEMFENNE
ANE HIER B GRS AL
B SR BOREN YA -

SR HE R AR HE A B 2 W =
IR T

HEEANTER I

PAEEFE IR R PR 2R
HIRE

2015 2014

T AT IT

HK$'000 HK$’000

Capital charge for operational risk 980,405 900,408

The Group uses the standardised (operational risk) approach to calculate its operational risk
capital charge.

Equity exposures in banking book

Equity holdings in other entities are accounted for in accordance with the underlying
intentions of holdings at the inception of acquisition. The classifications for equity holdings
taken for relationship and strategic purposes will be separated from those taken for other
purposes (including capital appreciation). Investments in equity shares which are intended to
be held on a continuing basis, but which do not comprise investments in associates, joint
venture or subsidiaries, are classified as available-for-sale securities and are reported in the
balance sheet as “Financial investments”.

For equity exposures in banking book other than subsidiaries, the Group applies the same
accounting treatment and valuation methodologies as detailed in the Notes 2.9(4), 2.12, 2.13
and 2.15 to the Financial Statements, further details on their valuation are outlined in Note
5.1 “Financial instruments measured at fair value” to the Financial Statements. If additional
investment is made subsequently such that an investee becomes an associate, joint venture
or subsidiary, then the investment is reclassified in accordance with the Group’s accounting
policies.

Gains or losses related to equity exposures are summarised below:

2015 2014

BT T AT

HK$'000 HK$'000

Realised gains from sales 71,892 -
Unrealised gains on revaluation recognised in reserves

but not through income statement 4,363 64,576
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10. Risk management

4
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The Overview

The principal types of risk inherent in the Group’s businesses are credit risk, interest rate
risk, market risk, liquidity risk, operational risk, reputation risk, legal and compliance risk, and
strategic risk. The Group’s risk management objective is to enhance shareholder value by
maintaining risk exposures within acceptable levels.

Risk Management Structure

The Bank’s Board of Directors (the “Board”) holds the ultimate responsibility for the Group’s
overall risk management. It determines the risk management strategies and the risk
management structure.

To achieve the Group’s goals in risk management, the Board sets up the Risk Management
Committee, which comprises of Independent Non-executive Directors, to oversee the
Group's various types of risks and approve the high-level risk management policies.

According to the risk management strategies established by the Board, risk management
policies and controls are devised and reviewed regularly by relevant departments and
respective management committees set up by the Chief Executive.

The risk management units develop policies and procedures for identifying, measuring,
monitoring and controlling credit risk, market risk, operational risk, reputation risk, legal and
compliance risk, interest rate risk, liquidity risk and strategic risk; set appropriate risk limits;
and continually monitor risks.

The Audit Department conducts independent reviews on the adequacy and effectiveness of
risk management policies and controls to ensure that the Group is operating according to the
established policies, procedures and limits.

Independence is crucial to effective risk management. To ensure the independence of the
Risk Management Department and the Audit Department, they report directly to the Risk
Management Committee and the Audit Committee respectively. Both committees are
specialised committees set up by the Board and all members are directors of the Bank.
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information (continued)

10. Risk management (continued)

Risk Management Structure (continued)

(i) Credit risk management
Details of credit risk management are set out in Note 4 to the Financial Statements.

(i) Liquidity risk management
Details of liquidity risk management are set out in Note 4 to the Financial Statements.

(iii) Market risk management
Details of market risk management are set out in Note 4 to the Financial Statements.

(iv) Operational risk management

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes,
people and system, or from external events. The risk is inherent in every aspect of
business operations and confronted by the Group in its day-to-day operational activities.
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information (continued)

10. Risk management (continued)

Risk Management Structure (continued)

(iv) Operational risk management (continued)

The Group has implemented the “Three Lines of Defence” for its operational risk
management. All departments or functional units as the first line of defence are the first
parties responsible for operational risk management, and carry out the duties and functions
of self-risk control in the process of business operation through self-assessment and
self-enhancement. The Operational Risk, Legal and Compliance Division together with
certain specialist functional units in relation to operational risk management within the
Group, including the Human Resources Division, Business Planning & Optimization
Division, Administration Division, Financial Management Division and Accounting Division
(collectively known as “specialist functional units”), are the second line of defence. They are
responsible for assessing and monitoring the operational risk conditions in the first line of
defence, and providing them with guidance. The Operational Risk, Legal and Compliance
Division, being independent from the business units, is responsible for assisting the
Management in managing the Group’s operational risk, including the establishment and
review of the operational risk management policy and framework, designing the operational
risk management tools and reporting mechanism, and assessing and reporting the overall
operational risk position to the Management and Risk Management Committee. Specialist
functional units are required to carry out their managerial duties of the second line of
defence with respect to some specific aspects of operational risk and its related issues.
Besides taking charge of operational risk management in their own units, these units are
also required to provide other units with professional advice/training in respect of certain
operational risk categories and to lead the Group-wide operational risk management. Audit
Department is the third line of defence which provides independent assessment to the
effectiveness and adequacy of the operational risk management framework and is required
to conduct periodic audit of the operational risk management activities of various
departments or functional units within the Group regarding their compliance and
effectiveness and to put forward recommendations for remedial actions.
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information (continued)

10. Risk management (continued)

Risk Management Structure (continued)

(iv) Operational risk management (continued)

The Group has put in place an effective internal control process which requires the
establishment of policies and control procedures for all the key activities. The Group
adheres to the fundamental principle of proper segregation of duties and authorisation. The
Group adopts various operational risk management tools or methodologies such as key risk
indicators, self-assessment, operational risk events reporting and review to identify, assess,
monitor and control the risks inherent in business activities and products, as well as
purchase of insurance to mitigate unforeseeable operational risks. Business continuity plans
are established to support business operations in the event of an emergency or disaster.
Adequate backup facilities are maintained and periodic drills are conducted.

(v) Reputation risk management

Reputation risk is the risk that negative publicity about the Group’s business practices,
whether genuine or not, will cause a potential decline in the customer base, or lead to costly
litigation or revenue decrease. Reputation risk is inherent in other types of risk and every
aspect of business operation and covers a wide spectrum of issues.

In order to mitigate reputation risk, the Group has formulated and duly followed its
Reputation Risk Management Policy. The policy aims to identify and prevent reputation risk
proactively at an early stage when an incident occurs. Since reputation risk is often caused
by various types of operational and strategic issues that negatively impact the trust and
perception of the Group, all operational and key risks identified are assessed through the
established Key Control Self-Assessment framework, including risk assessment tools, to
evaluate the severity of their impact on the Group, including the damage to reputation.

In addition, the Group has put in place a comprehensive framework to continuously monitor
reputation risk incidents in the financial industry. This continuous monitoring enables the
Group to effectively manage, control and mitigate any potential adverse impact from an
incident. The Group also adopts robust disclosure practices to keep our stakeholders
informed at all times, which helps build confidence in the Group and establish a strong public
image.
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information (continued)

10. Risk management (continued)

Risk Management Structure (continued)

(vi) Legal and compliance risk management

Legal risk is the risk that unenforceable contracts, lawsuits or adverse judgments may
disrupt or otherwise negatively affect the operations or financial conditions of the Group.
Compliance risk is the risk of legal or regulatory sanctions, financial losses or losses in
reputation the Group may suffer as a result of its failure to comply with all applicable laws
and regulations. Legal and compliance risks are managed by the Operational Risk, Legal
and Compliance Division. All legal matters are handled by the Operational Risk, Legal and
Compliance Division. As part of the Group’s corporate governance framework, the policy
for the management of legal and compliance risk is approved by the Risk Management
Committee as delegated by the Board.

(vii) Strategic risk management

Strategic risk generally refers to the risks that may cause current or future negative impacts
on the earnings, or capital or reputation or market position of the Group because of poor
business decisions, improper implementation of strategies and inadequacies in the
response to the changing market condition. The Board reviews and approves the strategic
risk management policy. Key strategic issues have to be fully evaluated and properly
endorsed by the Management and the Board.

The Group regularly reviews its business strategies to cope with the latest market situation
and developments.
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11. Business Review

The year 2015 saw a weakening of the global economic growth, alongside with increasing
volatility in financial markets and more prominent divergence. The Chinese economy
continued to operate within a reasonable range but downside pressure remained. In Hong
Kong, unemployment rate was maintained at a relatively low level in spite of a slowdown in
economic growth and a continuously challenging banking business environment. To cope
with market changes, we took into account the actual operating conditions and proactively
made our preparations throughout the year with focus on our strategy of expanding scale,
adjusting structure, managing risks and increasing efficiency, while striving to increase
development force and ensuring the quality of development to achieve sustainable
development.

Financial Summary

As at the end of December 2015, the Group recorded operating profit of HK$3,238 million,
representing an increase of 0.03% compared with the previous year. Net interest income
was HK$4,720 million, down by 9.05% year-on-year; non-interest income was HK$1,784
million, up by 23.09%, of which net fee income increased by 8.15%. As at the end of
December 2015, the Group’s after-tax profit amounted to HK$2,897 million, representing a
year-on-year increase of 5.28%; return on equity and return on assets were 8.05% and
0.95% respectively, representing a decline of 0.14 percentage point and growth of 0.01
percentage point from their comparables in the previous year; net interest margin was
1.65%, down by 0.18 percentage point from that in the previous year. Classified or impaired
loan ratio was 0.44%, a decline of 0.40 percentage point from that at the end of last year.
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information (continued)

11. Business Review (continued)

Business Review

Expanding operations and tapping new growth markets

This year, we actively developed quality customers in the course of solidifying the size of
deposits, constantly introducing deposit products attracting individuals and corporates with
the aim of making the deposit and loan operation bigger and stronger. As at the end of
December, deposits and loans grew by 4.12% and 4.50% respectively compared to the
end of last year. We strengthened publicity in all domains via newspapers, posters,
vehicles, Internet and other media with focus on cross-selling to secure the deposits from
key customers and expand the size of deposits. At the same time, we raised the
percentage of low to zero-interest deposits and sourced deposits primarily denominated in
currencies with spread contributions to effectively control the cost of deposits. In addition,
we kept pace with the market in actively seizing opportunities arising from national
strategies such as the gradual opening up of the domestic Renminbi market, the “One Belt
One Road” initiative and the construction of mainland free-trade zones, proactively seeking
business growth points with reasonable risk and attaching equal importance to
cross-border and local operations, as a result of which a number of massive lending
operations were successfully implemented and the driving force for sustainable
development was maintained. After becoming one of the first banks engaging in Qianhai's
cross-border Renminbi loans in 2013, earlier this year, the Bank successfully led and
handled massive cross-border Renminbi loans for the construction in Qianhai on close
cooperation with the Group’s member banks in Shenzhen, Hong Kong and Macau,
effectively introducing overseas financing channels to mainland enterprises and developing
a new cross-border financing model, hence bringing into play advantages of Hong Kong as
an international financial center and further consolidating the Bank’s position as a leader in
the cross-border business area. In the beginning of the year, NCB was awarded with the
“Excellent Cross-border Banking Service Brand” in the “Hong Kong Leaders Choice 2015”
organized by Metro Finance Radio and Metro Finance Digital Radio.
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information (continued)

11. Business Review (continued)

Business Review (continued)

Strengthening marketing and stressing the development of primary customers

In 2015, to achieve the goal for scale expansion, we allocated resources in a reasonable
manner through three dimensions (market, customer and product) and continued launching
products in series to drive the development of primary customers and the growth in
business. Since the beginning of the year, we continued to lay out deposits in different
currencies and deposit periods as well as new account attraction programs by way of
advertising, direct marketing and other means to encourage clients to do their banking
mainly with the Bank. On the personal finance front, we implemented comprehensive
publicity through “NCB Wealth Management”, “i-Free” and “Enrich”, actively carrying out a
variety of marketing plans targeting varying customer levels, hence forming wave after
wave of promotions throughout the year. We also played an active role in tapping potential
customers and introduced the “New Family Account Rewards” program to develop
parent-child accounts and young clientele. Furthermore, with primary and secondary
students, parents and teachers as targets of our integrated marketing, we launched a
systematic promotion “New Campus Account Rewards” with focus on automatic transfer
and payroll service to expand low- and zero-interest settlement service and provide
campuses with grant projects which are conducive to enhancing the Bank’s social image.
We actively followed the world’s rapidly developing automated banking service trends. This
year, aside from providing clients with comprehensive financial and investment services
through online and mobile banking, we introduced WeChat ID and all-new “NCB mobile
app” and “NCB mortgage expert” mobile apps which have enabled our clients to obtain the
latest information and handle their financial needs wherever they are. In the first half of the
year, to cope with the launch of the “Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect”, we were also
active in promoting innovation in Renminbi products and services to keep clients abreast of
Renminbi investment opportunities. NCB won the “Award for Outstanding Retail Bank —
Traditional Business” in the “RMB Business Outstanding Awards 2015” organized by Metro
Finance Radio, Metro Finance Digital Radio and Wen Wei Po.

266



%) NCB #7144

REFELL
B ER (80
11. EHER (8

FEBEE (8

a7 - ERERE
2 (8

BRI - PR HE
B A R A B R S Y
HE LI — - TR
TS T REEERS
RESHEEEE > BhEL
P %% R k42 77 A L A U5
o B E R R AR
e PR EBELTLE
# o fe iy e £ %
AR o v P e B
#r o~ i SR K R
fHIRE -

RICE LR SR
BT BRI HEL RS A
HWEYR - WHERE (PED
T A R e IR R
W B SR T A
R - 2 9 HE > A
ITERBEABY RS
JATRH - BESh > Pl
s TEEEEE R, FXE
ERENEMERN > 2 EF
s Re s -

ELEEHE - HBEENNRTT
=

HAE RT3 2L T Y
W —E E R E(LAEHE - iR
e TECEA ) R (R
RS o AR FRFTIN
EATSA R > (e -
B RBEESTHET
R EEH FEEWAER
JR o REZESETE T o m AR
W F % APP ~ Bf 4% 3 3&
HKET,“Money Times &
B B I
BEEEARM - REEESE
BE - WA SR FREES
TALIRE T F > IR E =
FhME

Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information (continued)

11. Business Review (continued)

Business Review (continued)

Strengthening marketing and stressing the development of primary customers
(continued)

On the corporate finance front, institutional customer promotion is one of our major
initiatives to attract primary customers this year. During the period, we proactively
promoted “business accounts” with a number of exclusive offers, providing industrial and
commercial clients with comprehensive financial solutions to improve operational efficiency
and cost effectiveness. We also provided one-stop payroll service for employers through
diversified channels to resolve their issues in terms of payroll, tax and MPF contribution.

To be in line with the development of Internet finance, we successfully introduced WeChat
ID in the first half of the year and joined hands with NCB (China) to expand customers in
Hong Kong and China through social networking media, hence increasing our brand
presence in both places. As at the end of September, the growth in the number of our
followers on WeChat was higher than expected. In addition, we introduced “NCB mortgage
expert” and other major mobile apps to enhance customer service experience.

Optimizing structure and adjusting the approach for earnings growth

In recent years, we have always attached importance to optimizing structure in the course
of business development, actively developing “capital-light” operations to promote
transformation and growth. In the first half of the year, we seized favourable opportunities in
the market by tackling many aspects including product, promotion and service to improve
contribution from wealth management fee income. On the stock business front, we timely
introduced commission-free stock purchase, stock custodian offers and other offers
through new-version mobile apps as well as advertising on financial magazine
HKET/Money Times and provided key trading clients with diversified financing solutions to
increase customer loyalty.
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information (continued)

11. Business Review (continued)

Business Review (continued)

Optimizing structure and adjusting the approach for earnings growth (continued)

In addition, we co-organized investment seminars with radio stations and invited senior
stock analysts to hold lectures in different forms to describe trends in the global market,
foreign exchange market and the Hong Kong stock market, strengthening customer
confidence in the market and the Bank’s wealth management brand and service in order to
motivate investment and financial needs of clients. On the life insurance business front,
under adverse circumstances of an anticipated rise in deposit rates and accordingly an
indirect impact on the sale of saving-type single-/regular-premium policies, we made every
endeavor to promote and explore customers’ security needs. During the period, we
continued to cooperate with insurers in launching the “Financial Needs Analysis” campaign,
customer reinsurance promotion rewards and premium discounts as well as providing
premium financing/policy pledge and other ancillary products and paid close attention to
the follow-up of customers at the expiration of policy with high-sum insurance schemes
tailored to the needs of individual customers, hence effectively attracting key branch
accounts to purchase insurance. On the fund business front, given the impact of the robust
investor sentiment in the Hong Kong stock market in the first half of the year, we also
seized favourable marketing opportunities in the fund business to attract all-new fund
clients tying to the “NCB Wealth Management” brand and actively made preparations to
promote existing fund clients to timely re-examine their investment portfolios so as to
achieve a certain increase in the number of subscription and swap transactions. We also
strengthened cooperation with mortgage agents and adopted a flexible price policy to
actively seek mortgage loans, introducing the “Easi-Personal Loan” preferential scheme
exclusively for mortgage accounts to provide them with removal and renovation funds. As
at the end of December, the Bank ranked 10th in terms of the number of mortgage loans
granted among its peers for the entire year of 2015, which was encouraging. On the
cross-border business front, we actively collaborated with the affiliate NCB (China) in
expanding operations, offering mainland “going-abroad” enterprises with different solutions
for financing and fund receipt and payment as well as constantly providing quality service
to customers with cross-border business needs with the “One Brand, Joint Service”
strategy.
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information (continued)

11. Business Review (continued)

Business Review (continued)

Optimizing structure and adjusting the approach for earnings growth (continued)

On the SME business front, we adhered to the business direction of providing good service
to local merchants and continued the expansion of the “NCB Small Business Loan” and
“SME Financing Guarantee Scheme” lending programs, providing SMEs with financing
channels to support their business developments.

Strengthening management and control and achieving an overall stability in assets
quality

Given the continued instability in the market environment and the increasing pressure on
business operations, individual credit accounts saw a rise in the overall NPL ratio on
deteriorating business conditions earlier this year. In this respect, we actively intensified our
efforts on risk management and control. Firstly, we commenced various kinds of risk
investigations with focus on changes in different risk factors to ensure early warning of
credit risk is properly done. Next, in accordance with risk appetite and the Bank’s business
strategy, we continued to optimize risk policies and systems and conduct credit risk
analysis and evaluation in a prudent manner to strengthen assets quality monitoring
mechanisms. At the same time, we optimized stress test methods through system
improvements to enhance risk management techniques, thereby ensuring the quality of
bank assets. Relevant management effects have started to emerge and the NPL ratio and
bad debt expense have successively stabilized. We also strengthened the credit risk
management of NCB (China) with focus on its assets quality, setting risk indicators and
developing a series of corrective measures for the bank, monitoring the implementation
and effectiveness of its policies and making recommendations for improvement.

To meet the standards and requirements of the Hong Kong Monetary Authority on
anti-money laundering and terrorist financing work, we continued to optimize a number of
anti-money laundering reporting systems which effectively simplified processes and
enhanced the quality of monitoring, hence strengthening the governance of anti-money
laundering work. We also reinforced the work on operational risk and compliance
inspection to meet regulatory requirements so as to ensure our banking operations are
compliant.
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information (continued)

11. Business Review (continued)

Business Review (continued)

A stabilizing and upward trend in mainland operations

In 2015, NCB (China)’s operations faced greater pressure and challenges on the impact of
factors including a downturn in the external macroeconomic situation, frequent risk
incidents and in the midst of an adjustment and transitional period. Nevertheless, with the
full guidance and support of the Group, NCB (China) steadily pushed forward specialized
operation paying attention to adjusting the monetary structure as well as customer and
business mix to actively enhance the capacity for risk management and control, effectively
improving the performance of network branches, strengthening system construction and
reinforcing internal management. As a result, stabilizing and bettering business conditions
have appeared.

Corporate social responsibility

While promoting business developments, we also play an active role in assuming corporate
social responsibility. We actively participated in the “Premium Loan Insurance Scheme”,
the “Reverse Mortgage Programme” and the “Microfinance Pilot Scheme” led by the Hong
Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited to promote services conducive to the development of
Hong Kong. We also sponsored the “Ma Shi Chau Tour” event organized by the Hong Kong
Joint Council of Parents of the Mentally Handicapped and subsidized The Community
Chest BOCHK Charity Golf Day 2015 and Po Leung Kuk’s 2015 elderly caring program.
We were continuously invited to take part in the “Smart Finance” educational activity
co-organized by the Hong Kong Association of Banks and The Hong Kong Council of
Social Service for low-income families in Hong Kong. In addition, the Bank sold raffle
tickets on behalf of Po Leung Kuk and received donations for relief aid to Syrian refugees,
the Nepal earthquake, floods in Southern Africa and South Asia, famine campaigns, 2015
Dress Causal Day of The Community Chest and the Caritas Charity Show.
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Appendix

Subsidiaries of the Bank

The particulars of our subsidiaries are as follows:

EEf B
MR B EfEETRTRAE AR FEEH
B Place and date of incorporation/ Registered capital/ Interest Principal
Name operation issued share capital held activities
FEFEREEIRIT (hED) ARAE ] FEMEA 100% TS
2007 £ 12 F 14 H A% 6,500,000,000 7T
Nanyang Commercial Bank The People’s Republic of China Registered capital Banking
(China), Limited 14 December 2007 RMB6,500,000,000 business
FEBEIRTEtARAE i Eogiilice 100% (EEEH
1976 4210 H 22 H ¢ 3,000,000 7T
Nanyang Commercial Bank Hong Kong Ordinary shares Trustee
Trustee Limited 22 October 1976 HK$3,000,000 services
R rE B B A TR A E] HE Feiilig 100% i —qpeil
1984 45 H 25 H &% 3,050,000 7T
Kwong Li Nam Investment Agency Hong Kong Ordinary shares Investment
Limited 25 May 1984 HK$3,050,000 agency
FEEEIRGT (REA) ARAE | &8 Fo il 100% [ReiiPNE
1980 428 H 22 H &M% 50,000 7T
Nanyang Commercial Bank Hong Kong Ordinary shares Nominee
(Nominees) Limited 22 August 1980 HK$50,000 services
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Definitions

In this Financial Statements, unless the context otherwise requires, the following terms shall have the meanings set out below:

Terms

Meanings

“ALCO”

the Asset and Liability Management Committee

“Board” or “Board of Directors”

the Board of Directors of the Bank

“BOC” Bank of China Limited, a joint stock commercial bank with limited liability established
under the laws of the PRC, the H shares and A shares of which are listed on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange and the Shanghai Stock Exchange respectively

“BOCHK” Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited, a company incorporated under the laws of Hong

Kong

“BOCI-Prudential Manager”

BOCI-Prudential Asset Management Limited, a company incorporated under the laws
of Hong Kong, in which BOCI Asset Management Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of BOC International Holdings Limited, and Prudential Corporation Holdings Limited
hold equity interests of 64% and 36% respectively

“BOCI-Prudential Trustee”

BOCI-Prudential Trustee Limited, a company incorporated under the laws of Hong
Kong, in which BOC Group Trustee Company Limited and Prudential Corporation
Holdings Limited hold equity interests of 64% and 36% respectively

“CET1” Common Equity Tier 1

“‘cIc” China Investment Corporation
“CRM” Credit Risk Mitigation

“CVA” Credit Valuation Adjustment
“Central Huijin” Central Huijin Investment Ltd.
“DVA” Debit Valuation Adjustment

“EAD” Exposure at Default

“ECAI(s)" External Credit Assessment Institution(s)
“EL” Expected Loss

“EV” Economic Value Sensitivity Ratio
“FIRB” Foundation Internal Ratings-based
“Fitch” Fitch Ratings

“HKAS(s)" Hong Kong Accounting Standard(s)
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Definitions (continued)

Terms Meanings

“HKFRS(s)" Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard(s)
“HKICPA” Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
“HKMA” Hong Kong Monetary Authority

“Hong Kong” or “Hong Kong SAR”

Hong Kong Special Administrative Region

“ICAAP” Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process
“IFRS” International Financial Reporting Standards
“IMM” Internal Models

“IRB” Internal Ratings-based

“LCR” Liquidity Coverage Ratio

“LGD” Loss Given Default

“Moody’s” Moody'’s Investors Service

“MPF" Mandatory Provident Fund

“MPF Schemes Ordinance”

the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, Chapter 485 of the Laws of Hong
Kong, as amended

“Mainland” or “Mainland of China”

the mainland of the PRC

“NCB (China)”

Nanyang Commercial Bank (China), Limited, a company incorporated under the laws
of the PRC and a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Bank

“ORSO schemes”

the Occupational Retirement Schemes under Occupational Retirement Schemes
Ordinance, Chapter 426 of the Laws of Hong Kong

“‘OTC” Over-the-counter

“PD” Probability of Default

“PRC” the People’s Republic of China
“PVBP” Price Value of a Basis Point

“RMB” or “Renminbi”

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

“SME(s)”

Small and Medium-sized Enterprise(s)

“Standard & Poor’s”

Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services
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Definitions (continued)

Terms Meanings

“STC” Standardised (Credit Risk)
“STM” Standardised (Market Risk)
“STO” Standardised (Operational Risk)

“Stock Exchange” or “Hong Kong Stock
Exchange”

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

“the Bank” Nanyang Commercial Bank, Limited, a company incorporated under the laws of Hong
Kong and a wholly-owned subsidiary of BOCHK

“the Group” the Bank and its subsidiaries collectively referred as the Group

“us” the United States of America

“VAR” Value at Risk
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	預計與本集團相關之香港財務報告準則詳列如下：
	 香港會計準則第1號（經修訂）「披露的自主性」。香港會計準則第1號的修訂旨在進一步鼓勵企業運用專業判斷去決定在其財務報表中需披露的資料。例如，此修訂明確指出重大性需應用於整個財務報表，而包含不重要的資料會減低財務披露的效益。此外，此修訂闡明企業應運用專業判斷去決定在何處及以什麼次序把資料呈列在財務披露內。該項修訂對本集團的財務報表沒有重大影響。
	 香港會計準則第27號(2011) （經修訂） 「獨立財務報表內的權益法」。該項修訂重新允許企業在單獨財務報表中對其子公司、聯營公司、合資企業之投資採用權益法列賬。企業可提前採納該修訂。改用權益法的企業需要在單獨財務報表中的每項投資分類採用與所選一致的會計處理及作出追溯性修訂。該項修訂對本集團的財務報表沒有重大影響。
	 香港財務報告準則第9號「金融工具」。國際財務報告準則第9號「金融工具」的頒佈完成了國際會計準則委員會對金融危機的全面回應。香港財務報告準則第9號，即香港財務報告準則之下對應國際財務報告準則第9號的會計準則，包含具邏輯的分類及計量模型，單一且具前瞻性的「預期損失」減值模型，及與風險管理更緊密連繫的對沖會計方法。對香港財務報告準則第9號的修訂詳細闡述如下：
	 香港財務報告準則第15號「源於客戶合同的收入」。香港財務報告準則第15號應用單一模型並明確所有源於客戶合同收入的會計處理。該新準則的核心原則乃是對經承諾的商品或服務在控制權轉移至客戶時，會被確認為收入以反映預期取得之作價。其亦適用於確認及計量出售部分非金融資產，例如物業、設備等非經常性活動所產生的盈虧。香港財務報告準則第15號亦包括一套有關源於客戶合同收入的披露要求。該新準則將取代現有香港財務報告準則下不同準則對於商品、服務和建造合同的各自模型。該新準則允許企業提前採納。本集團正在評估應用該準則的財務影響及其應用時間。
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	Taxation in the income statement represents:
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	18. 董事、高層管理人員及主要人員酬金
	18. Directors’, senior management’s and key personnel’s emoluments
	本年度本集團就本銀行董事為本銀行及管理附屬公司提供之服務而已付及其應收未收之酬金詳情如下：
	18. 董事、高層管理人員及主要人員酬金（續）
	18. Directors’, senior management’s and key personnel’s emoluments (continued)
	(b) CG-5下高級管理人員及主要人員的薪酬
	18. 董事、高層管理人員及主要人員酬金（續）
	18. Directors’, senior management’s and key personnel’s emoluments (continued)
	(b) CG-5下高級管理人員及主要人員的薪酬（續）
	19. 庫存現金及存放銀行及其他金融機構的結餘
	19. Cash and balances with banks and other financial institutions
	23. 貸款減值準備
	23. Loan impairment allowances
	23. 貸款減值準備（續）
	23. Loan impairment allowances (continued)
	25. Investment properties
	投資物業之賬面值按租約剩餘期限分析如下：
	25. Investment properties (continued)
	於2015年12月31日，列於資產負債表內之投資物業，乃依據獨立特許測量師第一太平戴維斯估值及專業顧問有限公司於2015年12月31日以公平值為基準所進行之專業估值。公平值指在計量當日若在有秩序成交的情況下向市場參與者出售每一項投資物業應取得的價格。
	房產之賬面值按租約剩餘期限分析如下：
	The carrying value of premises is analysed based on the remaining terms of the leases as follows:
	As at 31 December 2015, premises were included in the balance sheet at valuation carried out at 31 December 2015 on the basis of their fair value by an independent firm of chartered surveyors, Savills Valuation and Professional Services Limited. The fair value represents the price that would be received to sell each premises in an orderly transaction with market participants at the measurement date.
	As at 31 December 2015, the net book value of premises that would have been included in the Group’s balance sheet had the premises been carried at cost less accumulated depreciation was HK$607,766,000 (2014: HK$625,329,000). 
	27. Other assets
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	The Group leases its investment properties under operating lease arrangements, with leases typically for a period from one to three years. The terms of the leases generally require the tenants to pay security deposits. 
	The Group has been served a number of claims and counterclaims by various independent parties. These claims and counterclaims are in relation to the normal commercial activities of the Group. 
	No material provision was made against these claims and counterclaims because the directors believe that the Group has meritorious defences against the claimants or the amounts involved in these claims are not expected to be material.
	39. Segmental reporting (continued)
	39. Segmental reporting (continued)
	41. Offsetting financial instruments
	41. Offsetting financial instruments (continued)
	42. Transfers of financial assets

	Particulars of loans made to directors of the Bank pursuant to section 383 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 3 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as follows:
	2015
	2014
	HK$’000
	HK$’000
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